
 
 
Lone Tree City Council Agenda 
Tuesday, April 19, 2016 

 
Meeting Location:  City Council Meeting Room, Lone Tree Civic Center, 8527 Lone Tree Parkway. 
Meeting Procedure: The Lone Tree City Council and staff will meet in a public Study Session at 4:30pm. At 6:00pm 
and following the meeting, if necessary, the Council Meeting will adjourn and convene in Executive Session. If an 
Executive Session is not necessary, Council will recess for dinner. The Regular Session will be convened at 7:00pm. Study 
Sessions and Regular Sessions are open to the public, Executive Sessions are not. Comments from the public are welcome 
at these occasions: 1. Public Comment (brief comments on items not scheduled for a public hearing) 2. Public Hearings. 
To arrange accommodations in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act at public meetings, please contact the 
City Clerk at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

 
4:30pm Study Session Agenda 

1. Introduction of Lisa Albers, Capital Improvement Project Manager  
2. Introduction of Robert McCutcheon, Municipal Court Clerk I  
3. Introduction of Audra Gerber, Building Permit Coordinator  
4. Bike to Work Day Proposal from the Citizens’ Recreation Advisory Committee  
5. Pedestrian Bridge Contract Presentation  
6. Arbor Day Proclamation and Spring Tree Care Seminar Update  
7. Zoning Enforcement Quarterly Update  
8. Summer Event Update  

 
6:00pm Executive Session Agenda 

1. Roll Call 
2. Executive Session 

 
7:00pm Regular Session Agenda 

3. Opening of Regular Meeting/Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Amendments to the Agenda and Adoption of the Agenda 
5. Conflict of Interest Inquiry 
6. Public Comment 
7. Announcements 
8. Presentations 

a.     Arbor Day Proclamation  
9. Consent Agenda 

a. Minutes of the  Regular Meeting 
b. Claims for the Period of March 28 - April 11, 2016 
c. Treasurer’s Report for February 2016 

10. Administrative Matters 
a. Approval of Park Meadows Business Improvement District 2015 and 2016 Budget 

Amendment  
b. Resolution 16-12, A RESOLUTION CANCELLING THE MAY 2, 2016 BIENNIAL 

ELECTION AND DECLARING CANDIDATES ELECTED  
c. Resolution 16-13, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE ARTS COMMISSION  

 
  

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 1 of 240



d. Pedestrian Bridge IGA Approvals  
i. Approval of IGA w/Board of County Commissioners of the County of Douglas 

Regarding Financial Contribution toward a Pedestrian Bridge Over Lincoln Avenue 
within the City of Lone Tree and the County of Douglas  

ii. Approval of IGA w/Park Meadows Metropolitan District Regarding Financial 
Contribution toward a Pedestrian Bridge Over Lincoln Avenue 

iii. Approval of IGA w/South Suburban Park and Recreation District Regarding 
Financial Contribution toward a Pedestrian Bridge Over Lincoln Avenue 

iv. Approval of an Agreement w/RidgeGate Investments, Inc. Regarding Financial 
Contribution toward a Pedestrian Bridge Over Lincoln Avenue 

v. Approval of IGA w/Omnipark Metropolitan District Regarding Financial 
Contribution toward a Pedestrian Bridge Over Lincoln Avenue 

vi. Approval of Pedestrian Bridge Donation Agreement w/Heritage Hills Metropolitan 
District  

11. Community Development 
a. RTD Southeast Rail Extension Station Site Improvement Plans (SIP)  

i. Sky Ridge Station SIP (SP16-09R) 
ii. Lone Tree City Center Station SIP (SP16-10R) 

iii. RidgeGate Station SIP (SP16-11R) 
b. RidgeGate East Filing 1, 1st Amendment (SB16-23R)  

12. Public Works 
a. Approval of Pedestrian Bridge Contract  
b. Approval of 2016 Overlay (Asphalt) Contract  
c. Approval of 2016 Overlay (Concrete) Contract  

13. Council Comments 
14. Adjournment 

 
City of Lone Tree Upcoming Events  

more info available at www.cityoflonetree.com  & www.lonetreeartscenter.org  
• May 3rd Municipal Election will be cancelled 
• Applications being accepted for the anticipated District One Council Seat vacancy until April 28 
• Cyrano, April 21 – 30, LTAC, Main Stage 
• Exploring the Light: Photography show, April 27 – May 29, LTAC 
• Exploring the Light - Opening Reception, Saturday, April 30th, 4:30-6:30pm, LTAC lobby 
• Tree Seminar for Lone Tree Residents and Businesses on April 28th from 7-8pm, Civic Center, 

RSVP space is limited 
• Mayor Gunning Farewell Reception, May 10th  from 4:30-6:30pm, LTAC 

 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 2 of 240

http://www.cityoflonetree.com/
http://www.lonetreeartscenter.org/


 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
___________ 

Whereas,  In 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of Agriculture that a special day be 
set aside for the planting of trees, and  

Whereas,  this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of more than a million trees in 
Nebraska, and 

Whereas,  Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and 

Whereas,  trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and water, cut heating and cooling 
costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce life – giving oxygen, and provide habitat 
for wildlife, and 

Whereas,  trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, fuel for our fires and 
countless other wood products, and 

Whereas,  trees in our city increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of business areas, and 
beautify our community, and 

Whereas,  trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual renewal. 

Whereas, the City of Lone Tree seeks to continually celebrate Arbor Day and add to our urban forest, Lone 
Tree residents can purchase a tree for their property at a discounted price in a program coordinated 
by the Lone Tree Arts Center in partnership with Alameda Wholesale Nursery and South 
Suburban Parks and Recreation on Sunday, June 5, 2016. 

Whereas, the City of Lone Tree seeks to assist homeowners and property owners in caring for their trees, the 
Community Development Department has initiated a partnership with scientists at the Colorado 
State University in order to provide information about proper tree selection, planting and 
maintenance.  

Now, Therefore, I, James D. Gunning, Mayor of the City of Lone Tree, do hereby proclaim Saturday, April 30th, 
2016 as Arbor Day in the City of Lone Tree, and I urge all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and support efforts to 

protect our trees and woodlands, and Further, I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the 
well-being of this and future generations. 

Dated this 19th day of April, 2016 

 

__________________________________ 

James D. Gunning, Mayor  

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 3 of 240



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
HELD 

April 5, 2016 
 

A regular meeting of the Council of the City of Lone Tree was held on Tuesday, 
April 5, 2016, at 7:00 p.m., at the Lone Tree City Council Chambers located at 8527 
Lone Tree Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124. 
  

 
Attendance  
  In attendance were: 
 

James D. Gunning, Mayor 
Jacqueline Millet, Mayor Pro Tem  
Harold Anderson, Council Member 
Kim Monson, Council Member  
Susan Squyer, Council Member 
 
Also in attendance were: 

 
Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 
Steve Hebert, Deputy City Manager 
Torie Brazitis, Assistant to the City Manager 
Jeff Holwell, Economic Development Director 
Chief Jeffery Streeter, Lone Tree Police Department 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director  
Kelly First, Community Development Director 
Lisa Rigsby Peterson, Lone Tree Arts Center Director 
Gary White, City Attorney, White, Bear and Ankele, P.C. 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney, White, Bear and Ankele, P.C. 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, TTG Corp. 
   

 
Call to Order 
  Mayor Gunning called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m., and observed that a  
  quorum was present. 

  
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
  Mayor Gunning led those assembled in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
    
 
Amendments to the Agenda 

There were no amendments to the agenda.  

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 4 of 240



______ 
 
Conflict of Interest 

There was no conflict of interest. 
______ 

 
Public Comment 

Barbara Feuerstein, 7522 La Quinta Cove, shared her concerns regarding snow 
plowing.  
______  
  

Announcements 
Jason Fisher, Youth Commissioner, gave Council an update on the Youth 
Commission. 
 
Mayor Gunning announced upcoming events. 
______ 
  

Consent Agenda 
Mayor Gunning noted the following items on the Consent Agenda, which consisted 
of: 

 
 Minutes of the March 15, 2016 Regular Meeting 
 Claims for the period of March 7-28, 2016 

 
Council Member Anderson moved, Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to approve 
the Consent Agenda. The motion passed with a 5 to 0 vote.  
   

 
Community Development 

Approval of RidgeGate Sec. 22 Filing 1(Tract GG aka the Retreat at RidgeGate) 
Preliminary Plan and Sub-Area Plan Amendment, Project #SB16-12R 
 
Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner, introduced the item.  
 
Darryl Jones, Coventry Development and representing the land owner, spoke about 
the project. Lisa Evans, Managing Director of Development for applicant, Century 
Communities, also spoke about the project. Ms. Evans asked that her PowerPoint 
be added to the official record.  
 
Jarod Wright, 10695 Montecito, stated he is the Montecito HOA Communications 
Committee Chairman. Mr. Wright shared the response for a survey regarding 
closing Alicante Road that he sent to 132 homeowners out of the 140 homes. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Anderson seconded, to approve 
RidgeGate Sec. 22 Filing 1(Tract GG aka the Retreat at RidgeGate) Preliminary 
Plan subdividing 48.95 acres into 50 residential lots and 14 tracts; and Sub-Area 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 5 of 240



Plan amendment, Project #SB16-12R subject to the following conditions:  
 
1. For the City to allow the Alicante Road connection between Tract GG and 
Montecito as a private emergency/pedestrian-only access, the applicant shall 
provide evidence to the City, at the time of final plat, of a draft agreement between 
the Montecito HOA and Century Communities, on behalf of The Retreat at 
RidgeGate HOA. The agreement shall address, to the satisfaction of the City, 
responsibility for all aspects of the near- and long-term maintenance of the access 
including, but not limited to: paving, striping, snow plowing, signage, parking 
enforcement, and landscaping, as applicable. Should the Council find that the 
agreement addresses issues to their satisfaction, execution of the agreement shall 
then be accomplished prior to, or concurrent with, recordation of the Final Plat. 
Should the parties not reach an agreement acceptable to the City, the road 
connection shall be platted as a public street for through traffic.  
 
Additionally, prior to or concurrent with recordation of the final plat for Tract GG, 
the plat for Montecito (RidgeGate Section 15, Filing 14, 1st Amendment) shall be 
re-platted to vacate the affected public right-of-way and a public access easement 
shall be granted over the new private tract.  
 
2. The Final Plat application shall include a detailed landscape plan, including 
detailed plans for the parks, retaining walls, entryways, and pump house.  
 
3. The applicant shall provide wildfire mitigation measures as called for in the 
proposed Sub-Area Plan chapter on Planning Area 11 in the CC&Rs to be recorded 
with the Final Plat. 
 
4. The applicant shall post a large map in the sales office and provide a map to 
purchasers and prospective purchasers of lots in Tract GG that shows the extension 
of Cabela Drive to the bluffs, with a note that states that there are a maximum of 
346 residential units zoned for development on the mesa tops. The applicant will 
also post signs with the same information and a map along the extension of Cabela 
Drive, with such signs to be maintained by the Rampart Range Metro District. 
 
5. The developer shall provide information to residents about living with wildlife 
when they buy their homes, available through the Colorado Parks and Wildlife 
offices. 
 
6. Construction inspection reports, as-built records and a final written and sealed 
certification shall be provided (by a licensed professional structural engineer and/or 
professional Geotechnical Engineer) demonstrating that the retaining walls as 
constructed are in conformance with the approved structural engineer design 
provided. This Certification shall be provided before approvals for issuance of 
associated building permits.   
 
7. Final approval by the Public Works Department. 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 6 of 240



8. Proposed private streets (Tracts C and D) shall be designed to meet the City’s 
public street standards per Public Works Department requirements, provided the 
resulting impact of retaining walls is not substantially greater than the applicant’s 
current estimates (described in this report). The street design, grading and walls 
will be evaluated as part of the Final Plat review process, which will require City 
Council approval. 
 
9. A note shall be added to the final plat restricting Lot 10 to a ranch model only.  
 
The motion passed with a 5 to 0 vote.  
  
 

Adjournment  
There being no further business, Mayor Gunning adjourned the meeting at  
8:50 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk  

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 7 of 240



 
FINAL STAFF REPORT 

 
 

To:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
   
From:  Kelly First, Director of Community Development 
  Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
Date:  April 6, 2016 
 
Subject: RidgeGate Section 22, Filing 1 

Preliminary Plan (Tract GG, also known as the Retreat at RidgeGate) 
 Project File SB16-12R 
 
Owner:     Representative: 
RidgeGate Investments, Inc.   Century Communities 
10270 Commonwealth St., Suite B.  8390 E. Crescent Pkwy, Suite 650 
Lone Tree, CO  80124   Greenwood Village, CO 80111  
 
 
Planning Commission Hearing Date:  March 22, 2016    
City Council Hearing Date:     April 5, 2016   
________________________________________________________________ 
 
The City Council unanimously approved the Preliminary Plan for 50 residential lots and 14 tracts 
on 48.95 acres, subject to the following conditions:  
 
10. For the City to allow the Alicante Road connection between Tract GG and Montecito as a private 

emergency/pedestrian-only access, the applicant shall provide evidence to the City, at the time of 
final plat, of a draft agreement between the Montecito HOA and Century Communities, on behalf of 
The Retreat at RidgeGate HOA. The agreement shall address, to the satisfaction of the City, 
responsibility for all aspects of the near- and long-term maintenance of the access including, but not 
limited to: paving, striping, snow plowing, signage, parking enforcement, and landscaping, as 
applicable. Should the Council find that the agreement addresses issues to their satisfaction, execution 
of the agreement shall then be accomplished prior to, or concurrent with, recordation of the Final Plat. 
Should the parties not reach an agreement acceptable to the City, the road connection shall be platted 
as a public street for through traffic.  

 
Additionally, prior to or concurrent with recordation of the final plat for Tract GG, the plat 
for Montecito (RidgeGate Section 15, Filing 14, 1st Amendment) shall be re-platted to vacate 
the affected public right-of-way and a public access easement shall be granted over the new 
private tract.  

 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 8 of 240



11. The Final Plat application shall include a detailed landscape plan, including detailed plans for the 
parks, retaining walls, entryways, and pump house.  

 
12. The applicant shall provide wildfire mitigation measures as called for in the proposed Sub-Area Plan 

chapter on Planning Area 11 in the CC&Rs to be recorded with the Final Plat. 
 

13. The applicant shall post a large map in the sales office and provide a map to purchasers and 
prospective purchasers of lots in Tract GG that shows the extension of Cabela Drive to the bluffs, 
with a note that states that there are a maximum of 346 residential units zoned for development on the 
mesa tops. The applicant will also post signs with the same information and a map along the 
extension of Cabela Drive, with such signs to be maintained by the Rampart Range Metro District. 

 
14. The developer shall provide information to residents about living with wildlife when they buy their 

homes, available through the Colorado Parks and Wildlife offices. 
 

15. Construction inspection reports, as-built records and a final written and sealed certification shall be 
provided (by a licensed professional structural engineer and/or professional Geotechnical Engineer) 
demonstrating that the retaining walls as constructed are in conformance with the approved structural 
engineer design provided. This Certification shall be provided before approvals for issuance of 
associated building permits.   

 
16. Final approval by the Public Works Department. 

 
17. Proposed private streets (Tracts C and D) shall be designed to meet the City’s public street standards 

per Public Works Department requirements, provided the resulting impact of retaining walls is not 
substantially greater than the applicant’s current estimates (described in this report). The street design, 
grading and walls will be evaluated as part of the Final Plat review process, which will require City 
Council approval. 

 
18. A note shall be added to the final plat restricting Lot 10 to a ranch model only.  

 

While not a condition, the applicant will also correct page 7 of the Sub-Area Plan, Figure 7b to 
read: “Lot 50 shall have a 5’ side setback from the adjacent Tract L open space.” 
 
END 

 
 

 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 9 of 240



 
CITY OF LONE TREE 

STAFF REPORT 
      

 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director 

DATE:  April 12, 2016 

FOR:   April 19, 2016, Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Approval of Park Meadows Business Improvement 
District 2015 and 2016 Budget Amendments 

Summary 
The Park Meadows Business Improvement District (PMBID) was formed by the 
City Council in 2006 to provide financing for public improvements and services 
for Park Meadows Mall.  It is a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the state.  Each year, it is required to submit its Operating Plan 
and Budget to the City for approval.  Additionally, if the Budget presented and 
approved by City Council is amended by the PMBID, approval of the municipality 
is also required.   
 
The PMBID will be at the April 19, 2016 meeting to present to City Council a 
budget amendment for both 2015 and 2016.  Information from PMBID on the 
budget amendments is attached.   
 
Cost 
N/A 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to approve the Park Meadows Business Improvement District 2015 and 
2016 Budget Amendments. 
 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 10 of 240



Park Meadows Business Improvement District 
2015 and 2016 Budget Amendments 

April 2016 
 
The Park Meadows Business Improvement District (“BID”) annually prepares and the Board of Directors 
approves an operating plan and budget.  The BID completes the budget process for each year in August 
of the preceding year.  In the event total expenditures for a year exceed the approved budget or 
approved activities will cause total expenditures to exceed the approved budget, the BID Board of 
Directors will approve an amended budget. 
 
The BID Board of Directors approved amended budgets for 2015 and 2016 at their March 2016 meeting.  
The original and amended budget amounts for both 2015 and 2016 are shown on the accompanying 
budget exhibits. 
 
The amended 2015 Approved Budget was due to: 
 

1) 2014 and 2015 revenues exceeded budget revenues allowing the BID to pursue maintenance 
projects - landscaping, parking lot repairs and overlays, and interior improvements that may 
have otherwise been deferred to later years at a higher cost. 

2) The BID incurred higher than normal snow removal costs in 2015. 
3) The Polar Vortex of November 2014 created extraordinary damage requiring the BID to replace 

a large number of trees and other landscaping improvements in 2015. 
 
The amendment to the 2016 Approved Budget is due to a re-assessment of the Park Meadows Retail 
Resort’s immediate need for emergency repairs from deferred and deteriorating conditions identified in 
the parking structure and other customer utilized areas.  BID revenues have exceeded budget for the 
last several years and the BID’s fund balances have grown accordingly in anticipation of upcoming 
needs.  The BID has major parking lot replacement projects and parking structure repairs, combined 
approximately $2,600,000 that the BID Board of Directors have approved for 2016.  The Park Meadows 
BID is also making a few minor budget line item changes reflecting better estimates of 2016 
expenditures available today compared to estimates made last fall preparing the original budget. 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 11 of 240



Park Meadows Business Improvement District
Budget Amendment 2015

Preliminary Original Budget Amended

Actual Budget Changes Budget

2015 2015 2015 2015

Revenues

Retail sales & use taxes 5,462,139$     5,150,000$       312,000$          5,462,000$       

PMMD property tax payment 287,143          210,000             77,143               287,143             

Interest & other revenues 42,847             33,400               6,600                 40,000               

  Total revenues 5,792,129       5,393,400         395,743             5,789,143         

Operating expenditures

Operations & maintenance 1,967,980       1,479,400         490,600             1,970,000         

Lease expense 541,829          535,000             6,900                 541,900             

PMMD payment 287,143          209,962             77,181               287,143             

Management & administration 220,663          222,500             350                    222,850             

Marketing 227,148          200,000             30,000               230,000             

Other operating expenses 26,815             30,000               8,107                 38,107               

  Total operating expenditures 3,271,578       2,676,862         613,138             3,290,000         

Non-operating expenditures

Capital replacement & repairs 937,542          430,000             510,000             940,000             

Maintenance projects 176,619          700,000             (520,000)           180,000             

Debt service principal & interest 1,243,095       1,244,000         (4,000)                1,240,000         

Emergency reserve 150,000             -                          150,000             

  Total non-operating expenditures 2,357,256       2,524,000         (14,000)              2,510,000         

Total Expenditures 5,628,834       5,200,862         599,138             5,800,000         

Revenues less expenditures 163,295$        192,538$          (203,395)$         (10,857)$           

Beginning funds available 5,962,129$     5,219,893$       742,236$          5,962,129$       

End of year funds available 6,125,424$     5,412,431$       538,841$          5,951,272$       

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 12 of 240



Park Meadows Business Improvement District
Budget Amendment 2016

Original Budget Amended

Budget Changes Budget

2016 2016 2016

Revenues

Retail sales & use taxes 5,407,500$         -$                          5,407,500$         

PMMD property tax payment 287,143               -                            287,143               

Interest & other revenues 38,538                 -                            38,538                 

  Total revenues 5,733,181            -                            5,733,181            

Operating expenditures

Operations & maintenance 1,581,000            -                            1,581,000            

Lease expense 594,000               -                            594,000               

PMMD payment 287,143               -                            287,143               

Management & administration 251,500               6,000                   257,500               

Marketing 296,000               59,000                 355,000               

Other operating expenses -                            -                            -                            

  Total operating expenditures 3,009,643            65,000                 3,074,643            

Non-operating expenditures

Capital replacement & repairs 428,000               17,000                 445,000               

Maintenance projects 575,000               2,573,000            3,148,000            

Debt service principal & interest 1,244,000            -                            1,244,000            

Emergency reserve 150,000               150,000               

  Total non-operating expenditures 2,397,000            2,590,000            4,987,000            

Total Expenditures 5,406,643            2,655,000            8,061,643            

Revenues less expenditures 326,538$             (2,655,000)$        (2,328,462)$        

Beginning funds available 6,141,121$         -$                          6,141,121$         

End of year funds available 6,467,659$         (2,655,000)$        3,812,659$         

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 13 of 240



STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM: Neil Rutledge 

DATE: April 13, 2016 

FOR:  April 19, 2016 

SUBJECT: Resolution 16-12 Cancelling the May 3, 2016 Election and 
Declaring Candidates Elected 

Summary 
This Resolution effectuates the provisions of the City’s Election Ordinance, which state 
that if the only matter in an election is the election of persons to office and if, at the close 
of business nineteen days before the election, there is only one candidate for each 
position, and no write-in candidates, the City Clerk shall cancel the election and, the City 
Council, by Resolution, shall declare the candidates elected. 

Cost 
There is no cost to the City. 

Suggested Motion 
I move to approve Resolution 16-12, Cancelling the May 3, 2016 Regular 
Biennial Election and Declaring Candidates Elected. 

Background 
The City’s regular biennial election was scheduled for May 3, 2016, to elect two Council 
Members and a new Mayor. Each of these positions had only one person file valid 
petitions for office, and there were no write-in candidates. No other matters were to be 
considered at the election. 

The City’s Election Ordinance and a Resolution of the City Council authorize the City 
Clerk to cancel the election nineteen days before the election under those circumstances. 
As a result, the City Clerk has cancelled the May election. The Election Ordinance also 
states that the City Council shall adopt a Resolution declaring the candidates elected. 
This Resolution approves and ratifies the cancellation of the election and declares the 
candidates elected.  

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 14 of 240



CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 16-12 

 
A RESOLUTION CANCELLING THE MAY 3, 2016 REGULAR 

BIENNIAL ELECTION AND DECLARING CANDIDATES 
ELECTED 

 
WHEREAS, the Home Rule Charter (the "Charter") of the City of Lone Tree (the "City") 

requires that the City Council consist of one (1) Mayor and four (4) Council members; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s regular biennial election is scheduled for May 3, 2016 (the 
"Election") to fill the office of Mayor and one (1) City Council seat for each of the two voting 
districts in the City, as outlined in the Charter; and 

 
WHEREAS, only one candidate per office has submitted the appropriate petition to be 

included on the May 3, 2016 ballot (the "Ballot"), which petitions have been found to be in 
compliance with the Colorado Municipal Election Code, as required by Article IX, Section 1 of 
the Charter; and 

 
WHEREAS, no qualified individual has submitted an Affidavit of Intent to be a write-in 

candidate on the Ballot; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 08-03  provides that if the only matter before the electors of 
the City is the election of persons to office and if, at the close of business on the nineteenth day 
before the election, there are not more candidates than offices to be filled at such election, 
including candidates filing Affidavits of Intent to be write-in candidates, the City Clerk, if 
instructed by resolution of the City Council, shall cancel the election and, by resolution, the 
candidates shall be declared elected; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 16-06, authorized the City Clerk to cancel the May 3, 2016 

election if the only matter before electors was the election of candidates, and there was only one 
candidate per office by close of business on the nineteenth day before the election, April 14, 2016; 
and 

 
WHEREAS,  as  of  the  nineteenth  day  prior  to  the  election, there  were  not  more 

candidates than offices to be filled, no person had submitted an Affidavit of Intent to be a write-
in candidate on the Ballot and the City Clerk cancelled the election; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 08-03 and the above referenced circumstances, the 

City Council shall declare the candidates elected by resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has published a notice of cancellation of said election in the 
Douglas County News Press, and posted a notice of cancellation at the designated polling place 
and the official posting location for the City; 

 
 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LONE TREE, COLORADO: 

 04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 15 of 240



1.    The actions by the City Clerk are hereby approved and ratified, and the City’s regular 
biennial election set for May 3, 2016 is cancelled.   

 
2.    The following individuals are hereby declared elected effective Tuesday, May 3, 
2016, to the following respective offices: 
 

 A. Jackie Millet  Mayor 
 B. Wynne Shaw  Council Member, District 1 
 C. Cathie Brunnick Council Member, District 2 
 
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 19TH DAY OF APRIL, 2016. 
 

 
 
 
      CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 
      By:        
             James D. Gunning, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
          (SEAL) 
 

          
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 16 of 240



CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 16-13 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE  
ARTS COMMISSION FOR THE CITY OF LONE TREE 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lone Tree established an Arts 
Commission by Resolution 99-19 (the "Commission") to consider requests for sponsorship 
of or assistance with artistic and cultural events within the City; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution 10-42 established the Commission membership to seven 
(7) members; and 

WHEREAS, there is currently one vacancy on the Commission due to the 
resignation of Damian Gonzalez; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to appoint one new member to that vacancy. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO: 

That Sarah Heaton is hereby appointed to the Arts Commission to fill the vacancy 
created by the resignation of Damian Gonzalez, for the remainder of his term which 
expires on December 31, 2016. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 19th DAY OF APRIL, 2016. 

CITY OF LONE TREE 

By: 
James D. Gunning, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

(S E A L) 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 17 of 240



 
CITY OF LONE TREE 

STAFF REPORT 
      

 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director 

DATE:  April 12, 2016 

FOR:   April 19, 2016, Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Pedestrian Bridge IGA Approvals 

Summary 
 
City staff has been working with our external funding partners to get IGAs for the 
Lincoln pedestrian bridge contributions.  The other entities that will be 
contributing $3,535,000 to this project as shown below: 
 

• Douglas County - $1 million 
• Park Meadows Metro District - $1 million 
• South Suburban Park and Rec District - $1 million 
• RidgeGate Investments Inc. - $500,000 
• Omni Park Metro District - $25,000 
• Heritage Hills Metro District - $10,000 

Attached are the agreements from the partners for Council consideration.   
 
Cost 
2016 budgeted cost total $7,000,000 with $3,535,000 coming from the above 
partners and $3,465,000 being funded by the City.   
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to approve the Pedestrian Bridge Intergovernmental Agreements with 
Douglas County, Park Meadows Metro District, South Suburban Park and Rec 
District, Omni Park Metro District and Heritage Hills Metro District and the 
Agreement with RidgeGate Investments.   
 
 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 18 of 240



Background 
 
The Lincoln Pedestrian Bridge is currently in the design phase.  The construction 
contract will also be presented to City Council for consideration on April 19th.   
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 19 of 240



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LONE TREE AND THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS, STATE OF COLORADO, REGARDING FINANCIAL 
CONTRIBUTION TOWARD A PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE OVER LINCOLN AVENUE 

WITHIN THE CITY OF LONE TREE AND THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, (“Agreement”), is made and entered 
into this _____ day of ____________, 2016, by and between the City of Lone Tree, Colorado, a 
Colorado home rule municipality (the "City"), and the Board of County Commissioners of Douglas 
County, State of Colorado, (the "County"), hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Parties." 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Parties are legally empowered under Section 29-1-201, et seq., C.R.S. to 
enter into this Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, Lincoln Avenue is a major thoroughfare that transverses the City within the 
County; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties are aware that it can be very challenging for pedestrians and 
bicycle traffic to cross Lincoln Avenue at grade, which is a barrier to these modes of travel due to 
the width of the road and the large volume of vehicular traffic it carries; and  

WHEREAS, the use of pedestrian traffic signals and crosswalks can have a deleterious 
effect on overall traffic operations since a significant amount of signal time is needed to provide 
adequate time for pedestrians to cross Lincoln Avenue at grade, which is primarily due to the 
roadway’s width; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to establish a safe and convenient means of access for 
pedestrians and bicyclists to and from both sides of Lincoln Avenue; and  

WHEREAS, the City has concluded that constructing a bridge that will carry pedestrians 
and bicyclists over Lincoln Avenue is the most efficacious solution to the problem; and 

WHEREAS, the City has concluded that the proposed bridge should be located where it 
can readily connect to existing established trails that serve the community; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to cooperate and share in the funding needed to construct 
this regionally significant pedestrian / bicycle bridge over Lincoln Avenue improvement project, 
hereinafter referred to as (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Project will positively affect traffic operations for the traveling public, as 
well as the enhance access to existing and future business and recreational opportunities in both 
the City and County; and 

WHEREAS, other governmental bodies and private entities recognize the importance of 
this Project and are committing funds toward its construction by separate agreement(s); and   

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 20 of 240



WHEREAS, the County is willing to contribute funds for constructing the Project, 
according to the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 
contained herein, the sufficiency of which are mutually acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

1. Acknowledgment and Incorporation of Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are hereby 
acknowledged by the Parties to be true and correct and are incorporated into this Agreement. 

2. Term.  This Agreement shall commence upon execution by both Parties (the 
“Effective Date”) and shall continue until the County has reimbursed the City for the County’s 
portion of the Project’s construction cost and the City has constructed the Project.  

3. City Contribution.  The City has estimated that the total Project costs will exceed 
Six Million Dollars, (which includes but is not limited to the costs associated with the design, 
right-of-way acquisition, utility relocations, material testing, inspections and construction).  The 
City agrees to manage all aspects of the Project from inception through completion of construction.  
The City agrees to own, operate, and maintain the improvements associated with the Project.  The 
City agrees that it is responsible to pay the consultants and contractor directly for applicable Project 
costs.  The City shall diligently pursue completion of the project. 

4. County Contribution.  The County contribution shall be used to reimburse the City 
for a portion of the actual construction costs.  The County agrees to pay the City a one-time lump 
sum payment of One Million Dollars and No Cents ($1,000,000.00), which is due within forty-
five (45) days after receipt of an invoice from the City.  The City may request reimbursement from 
the County after the City as incurred at least $1,000,000 in actual construction cost.  The invoice 
submitted by the City shall include a copy of the most recent contractor’s monthly progress 
payment that identifies the actual cost for the work completed.   Said payment shall be the County’s 
total contribution. 

5. Remedies.  The Parties hereto acknowledge and agree that each Party may exercise 
all rights and remedies in law or in equity, by a decree in specific performance, or such other legal 
or equitable relief as may be available.  This Section shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 

5. Termination.  The City may terminate this Agreement prior to commencing 
construction or prior to requesting reimbursement from the County; and the County may terminate 
this Agreement if the City has not awarded a contract to construct the Project before June 30, 2017.   

6. Notice.  Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given for all purposes if sent by certified mail or 
registered mail, postage and fees prepaid, addressed to the Party to whom such notice is to be 
given, at the address set forth below, or at such other address as has been previously furnished in 
writing, to the other Party.  Such notice shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in the 
United States mail. 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 21 of 240



City of Lone Tree: City of Lone Tree 
9220 Kimmer Drive, Suite 100 
Lone Tree, Colorado 80124 
Attention: Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
 

Douglas County: Douglas County        
   100 Third Street 

Castle Rock, Colorado 80104 
Attention: Douglas J. DeBord, County Manager 

7. Appropriation.  Pursuant to section 29-1-110, C.R.S., any financial obligations of 
the City and the County contained herein that are payable after the current fiscal year are contingent 
upon funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted and otherwise made available on an 
annual basis. 

8. Additional Documents.  The Parties agree to execute any additional documents or 
take any additional action that is necessary to carry out the intent of this Agreement. 

9. Colorado Law.  The laws of the State of Colorado shall govern this Agreement.  
Venue for any action hereunder shall be in the District Court, County of Douglas, State of Colorado 
and the Parties waive any right to remove any action to any other court, whether state or federal. 

10. Separate Entities.  The Parties enter into this Agreement as separate, independent 
governmental entities and shall maintain such status throughout. 

11. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  The enforcement of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and all rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the 
Parties, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall give or allow any such claim or right of 
action by any other or third person under such Agreement.  Any beneficiary of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement are not intended beneficiaries but are incidental beneficiaries only. 

12. No Waiver of Governmental Immunity Act.  The Parties hereto understand and 
agree that the County, its commissioners, officials, officers, directors, agents and employees, and 
the City, its council members, officials, officers, directors, agents and employees are relying on, 
and do not waive or intend to waive by any provisions of this Agreement, the monetary limitations 
or any other rights, immunities and protections provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity 
Act, sections 24-10-101 to 120, C.R.S., or otherwise available to the County and the City.    

13. Entirety.  This Agreement merges and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations and agreements between the Parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof and 
constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties concerning the subject matter hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto as of the date 
first written above.   

 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 22 of 240



CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO  
 
 
____________________________________ 
 

James D. Gunning, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 

Jennifer Pettinger, CMC   Neil Rutledge 
City Clerk      Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
OF DOUGLAS COUNTY 

 
 

____________________________________ 
 

David A. Weaver, Chair 
 
ATTEST:        APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
________________________________   ________________________________ 
 

Meghan McCann,      Douglas J. DeBord, 
Deputy Clerk to the Board     County Manager 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:           APPROVED AS TO FISCAL CONTENT: 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
 

Nick Pijoan,      Andrew Copland, 
Sr. Assistant County Attorney    Director of Finance 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 23 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 24 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 25 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 26 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 27 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 28 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 29 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 30 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 31 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 32 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 33 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 34 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 35 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 36 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 37 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 38 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 39 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 40 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 41 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 42 of 240



 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

Project Summary 
 

 
Date:   April 19, 2016 City Council Meeting 
 
 
Project Name: RidgeGate Section 15 Filing 17  
  Sky Ridge Station Station 
 
 
Location: The site is located west of I-25 and north of Sky Ridge Avenue, 

between Trainstation Circle East and Trainstation Circle West. 
 
 
Project Type / #: Site Improvement Plan SP16-09R 
 
 
Staff Contacts: Kelly First, Community Development Department Director 
  
  
Meeting Type: Public Meeting  
 
 
Summary of Request:  Site Improvement Plan approval for the Sky Ridge Station 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: 
  
 Unanimous approval, with conditions. 
  
Suggested Action:  
 Approval, subject to two conditions noted in staff report.  

 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 43 of 240



 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
 
DATE:  April 13, 2016 
 
FOR:  April 19, 2016 City Council Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: RidgeGate Section 15 Filing 17  
 Site Improvement Plan SP16-09R 
 Sky Ridge Station Station 
 
 

Owner Representative 

RidgeGate Investments, Inc 
Keith Simon 
10270 Commonwealth Street 
Lone Tree, CO 80124 
720-279-2581 

Regional Transportation District 
Nathan Herman 
1600 Blake Street 
Denver, CO 80202 
303-628-9000 

 
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date: April 12, 2016 
City Council Meeting Date:    April 19, 2016      
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
A. REQUEST: 

 
Approval of a Site Improvement Plan (SIP) for the Sky Ridge Light Rail Station.  
 
In addition to the platforms, this station includes a landscaped transition plaza, a Kiss-n-
Ride, and bicycle storage. 
 
LOCATION: 

 
 The site is located west of I-25 and north of Sky Ridge Avenue, between Trainstation 

Circle East and Trainstation Circle West. 
        

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 44 of 240



Vicinity Map 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B. SITE CHARACTERISTICS: 
 

The site has no distinctive topographical or vegetative features. As part of the Southeast 
Extension project, RTD prepared an Environmental Assessment, which resulted in a 
Finding of No Significant Impact.  
 

 
C. SERVICE PROVIDERS:   
 
  Water:   Southgate Water District 
  Sanitation:  Southgate Sanitation District 
  Police:   Lone Tree Police 
  Fire:   South Metro Fire Rescue Authority 
  Metro District:  Rampart Range Metropolitan District 
 
 
D. BACKGROUND: 

 
The 2.3 mile-long southeast extension project, from Lincoln Avenue to RidgeGate 
Parkway, is part of the RTD’s 2004 voter-approved FasTracks Program. The Southeast 
Line includes 19.1 miles extending from I-25/Broadway to Lincoln Avenue, with an 
additional connection along I-225 from I-25 to Parker Road. Construction on the 
extension is expected to begin this spring with service beginning in 2019. When 
completed, residents will be able to travel from the RidgeGate station on the new R Line 
through Aurora to Peoria Station and connect to the commuter train to Denver 
International Airport. They will be able to travel from RidgeGate to Union Station on the 

N 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 45 of 240



E Line and from RidgeGate to 18th and California in downtown Denver on the F Line. 
The attached Fact Sheet from RTD provides additional information. 
 
This SIP is one of three station SIPs that comprise the RTD Southeast Rail Extension 
project. Additional stations are Lone Tree City Center (SP16-10R) and RidgeGate 
(SP16-11R). 
 
In January of 2015, City staff and members of the RTD design team presented an 
overview of the project to the Planning Commission and City Council. The purpose of the 
work sessions was to seek feedback about key design elements and address them 
prior to the project going out for bid, thereby reducing the need for potentially 
costly changes later on. Comments regarding aesthetic elements like canopies, 
walls, fencing and landscaping were provided and have been incorporated into 
SIP.  In March, 2016, RTD again provided an overview of the stations to the 
Planning Commission and City Council, in anticipation of the SIPs coming 
forward for City Council action in April.  

 
 
E. DESCRIPTION: 
 

Zoning.  The site is zoned Planned Development (PD) 
under the RidgeGate Planned Development 4th 
Amendment. The proposed use is in conformance with 
zoning, and is located within Planning Area C/M-U #2.  
 
The location and design concept for the station are also 
consistent with the Sky Ridge Station TOD Sub-Area 
Plan.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Site Design. The site is designed to provide convenient and safe access and circulation, 
and contains design features that create an inviting and safe public realm. The light rail 
track extends down along the eastern side of the station area. Stairs and ramps lined 
with landscaped planters will guide pedestrians from street level up to the platform, 
which is approximately nine feet above street level. Benches are proposed along 
landscaped walls.  
 
A semi-circular gathering space is provided between the stairs on the platform level of 
the transition plaza. This area will have a stone feature wall lined with a Colorado rose 
sandstone veneer and buff sandstone cap. This gathering plaza may be used year round 
for special events and community activities.  
 
 
 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 46 of 240



 
  Site Plan 
 

 
 
Access.    Riders can access the station as pedestrians and bicyclists from the 
surrounding area, or be dropped off at the station.  Bicycle storage is provided in close 
proximity to the platform. Large employment centers like Sky Ridge Medical Center, 
Charles Schwab, and offices to the north are all within walking distance to the station. 
Various multi-family projects are also nearby and mixed-use development around the 
station is planned in the future. Crosswalks and signage are provided to guide access to 
and around the station.  
 
Vehicle pull-offs for passengers are provide on either side of Trainstation Circle West.  
 
RTD does not plan on bus stops at this location. 
 
Parking.  Sky Ridge Station is a Kiss-n-Ride station only, meaning there is no vehicular 
parking provided.  

 
Design Elements. The station platform includes overhead canopy structures that are 
white, barrel shaped, with a standing seam metal roof. Benches, bike racks, trash 
receptacles, and other site features are detailed in the SIP. 
 
Stone walls at the plaza will have a metal ornamental fencing with custom art panel, 
where art could be added in the future. Other fencing at the site includes wrought iron 
fencing around the traction power substation at the north end of the site, and RTD 
standard chain link fencing along the track, which is outside the pedestrian zone. 

N
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 47 of 240



 
Landscaping. The site will be landscaped as generally shown on the colored site plan 
and landscape plan. Details are still in progress relative to specific landscape species, 
sizes and quantities date. It is recommended that the final landscape plan be subject to 
staff approval prior to final approval of the SIP. 

        
Lighting.  The location of street, parking and pedestrian lighting and associated 
specifications are included on the SIP. Lighting is compliant with City requirements.  
 
 

F. REFERRALS:    
 
The project was sent on referral to all key agencies and subscribers to the City’s referral 
list. There are no major concerns noted. All responses of substance are attached. 
 

 
G. PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 

  
The following has been taken directly from the minutes of the April 12, 2016 Planning 
Commission meeting. Minutes have not yet been approved and are in DRAFT form: 
 
Commissioner Spencer congratulated the applicant on beautiful stations. He 
inquired about the paver material around the planting areas within the circular 
feature at the Sky Ridge station. He wanted to ensure there was some visual 
interest and not just a large wave of concrete. The applicant pointed out the 
walkway area that would have earth-toned colored paving. Other areas would of 
flatwork would be concrete, have a medium broom finish for texture to prevent 
slips and falls, and be scored in a roughly five-foot grid pattern of expansion 
joints.  
 
Commissioner Spencer had questions about the architecture of the circular 
retaining wall at Sky Ridge Station – it would be articulated by columnar pilasters, 
approximately located at every other fence post, topped with pediments 
constructed of a contrasting material. Up-lighting was not planned. Mr. Johnson 
added that the design development was still in progress. He stated that there 
would likely be some up lighting at the base of the circular retaining wall. 
 
Mr. Spencer inquired about whether the station would feature the Lone Tree 
logo. Mr. Cotton noted that the logo is planned on the bridges, and could be 
added to the stations by the City later. 
 
Commissioner Dodgen inquired about whether the Planning Commission would 
get to see the landscape plan. Ms. First said that final plans would comply with 
City requirements and recommended they be subject to administrative approval. 
Commissioner Dodgen inquired about the frequency of pedestrian-train accidents 
at light-rail stations. The applicant was unaware of exact numbers; however, they 
said the frequency was probably low. Mr. Johnson responded that care was 
being taken regarding safety for everything from slips, trips, and falls, to 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 48 of 240



separation from overhead power lines, to preventing pedestrians from being run 
over by trains. 
 
Commissioner Dodgen inquired about the small outbuildings. Mr. Johnson 
responded that these were bike lockers where riders can store their bikes. 
 
Commissioner Dodgen inquired about station access for development 
immediately to the east. Mr. Johnson responded that the station was laid out in 
anticipation of a plaza to the east. 
 
Commissioner Carlson appreciated the materials sample boards. She stated that 
the materials and colors were tasteful and very “Colorado”. She inquired about 
the proposed monument sign. The monument recalls the style of the one at 
Lincoln Avenue and Yosemite Street. The monument sign would have similar 
columns.  
 
Commissioner Carlson commended the applicant on their emphasis on safety, 
recognizing that Lone Tree emphasizes dark skies. In this context, lighting for 
safety would be important. Mr. Johnson stated that the FTA mandates a certain 
level of lighting around transit stations. The photometric plan therefore was a 
requirement that had to be met; however, appropriate down-cast lighting fixtures 
were utilized.  
 
Commissioner Carlson inquired about solar panels on the canopies. Tom 
Papadinoff with RTD responded that RTD is investigating system-wide solar 
panels, but they are not planned at this location. 
 
Commissioner Heskin complimented the applicant on using indigenous stone. He 
took issue with the contract documents being 90 percent complete and the 
applicant’s statement that changing things at this point would be a huge effort. 
Mr. Johnson described the progression of the design work, which started when 
they were awarded the contract last fall, and were now working towards being 
ready-for-construction.  
 
Commissioner Heskin expressed concern that at something like this you would 
usually have a traffic pattern that went counter-clockwise. What would the path 
be if someone in a wheelchair were dropped off on southwest-bound Trainstation 
Circle, they would have to travel down a long ramp all the way to the southern 
end of the station to ascend to platform grade. This long ramp was there due to 
the substantial grade. There is also a highblock to gain access to door-level for 
people with disabilities. 
 
Commissioner Dodgen inquired if the southern edge of the station was closer to 
grade. Tom responded that there was insufficient right-of-way (ROW) at the 
southern intersection of Trainstation Circle and Sky Ridge Avenue for a drop-off 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 49 of 240



there. The driving factor was the grade of station and specific safety 
requirements that cause the geometries of the project to be set. 
 
Commissioner Heskin inquired about vehicular access from the east. Mr. Cotten 
responded that this was more of a requirement than a need – as they did not 
anticipate heavy traffic from the east. Commissioner Heskin was interested in a 
receiving/drop-off area from Trainstation Circle to the east. Mr. Cotton said there 
were issues from the Public Utilities Code (PUC) that would preclude this. 
Commissioner Heskin suggested building a turnaround on Trainstation Circle 
east so that mobility-impaired folks could be dropped off closer to the platform. 
 
Mr. Jones with Coventry Development, responded that the land had a higher 
dollar value, and was dedicated developable land. Providing an additional drop-
off might be undesirable to the land owners. 
 
Commissioner Heskin further inquired about why there could not be a left turn 
movement onto Trainstation Circle West from east-bound Sky Ridge Avenue. Mr. 
Cotton explained that there is not enough distance between this intersection and 
the Park Meadows Boulevard/Sky Ridge Avenue intersection to allow for left0turn 
stacking to occur in a left-turn bay.  
 
Commissioner Heskin inquired about the mesh paneling on the fence above the 
wall, as it was rendered differently in two places.. Mr. Johnson responded that 
there would be rectilinear mesh panels as design elements within the metal 
fencing. One rendering is intended to depict that panels are easily retrofit-able to 
solid rectangular panels that could accommodate artwork. 

 
Commissioner Heskin asked if RTD knows how many riders will be dropped off 
versus walk-up. Nathan Herman, with RTD, said they did not have this data, but 
said they could provide overall estimated ridership for each station. 
Commissioner Heskin inquired about vehicle stacking, especially during major 
events, for people being dropped off from Trainstation Circle. Mr. Herman said 
that Lincoln Station is a better alternative that would capture more riders for large 
events, and said their models support that. The Sky Ridge Station is a different 
ridership model. 
 
Chair Kirchner asked if the distance traveled by someone in a wheelchair would 
be comparable to Yale Station and other stations. Tom responded that the 
distance traveled at Yale Station was greater. 
 
Chair Kirchner noted that this station is intended to serve capture more 
commuter ridership. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez asked about the dimensions and screening of the 
traction power substation (TPSS). Mr. Johnson responded they are about half the 
size of a house trailer, and would be screened with landscaping. Mr. Herman 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 50 of 240



added that they will try to balance the desire to screen these facilities, with the 
need to also maintain some lines of sight for safety purposes.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez inquired when he anticipated the 100% designs would 
be complete. Mr. Johnson responded that this would be was anticipated in May 
or early summer. Commissioner Rodriguez inquired to staff whether there would 
be an additional review of the 100 percent plans when they were submitted – as 
this would be post-City Council approval. Ms. First responded that this afforded 
us through the “pending final Public Works approval” standard condition attached 
to all site-improvement-plans (SIPs), and added that the main aspects of the 
station designs are complete and will not change; only minor details are being 
refined at this point. 
 
Commissioner Steele stated asked about the intended use of the circular plaza 
area. Mr. Johnson responded that it was intended for public use. Commissioner 
Steele asked who would be responsible for landscaping and who would be 
responsible for reserving the space. Mr. Herman with RTD responded that there 
would be a maintenance agreement entered into between the City and RTD. He 
added that RTD does not have a system for “reserving” spaces.  
 
Ms. First added that the Sky Ridge TOD Subarea plan called for this station to 
feature a plaza area. Commissioner Steele further inquired about conditions for 
maintenance of the Sky Ridge Station plaza. Nate stated that there would be no 
“grey lines” in terms of maintenance – that RTD would maintain it. Commissioner 
Steele stated in his experience these things needed to be legally recorded, as 
opposed to entered into on trust, for long term tenability. 
 
Commissioner Steele also inquired about pedestrian access. Mr. Johnson stated 
that there would be controlled access points for pedestrians so they did not cross 
the tracks. He stated that the PUC had strict guidelines for pedestrian and 
vehicle crossings of rail tracks. 
 
Commissioner Steele expressed concern over the fenced track becoming a 
pedestrian barrier in a major commercial center. Mr. Herman guided the 
commission through the overall alignment of the track, describing where the track 
is above grade and at-grade, and how pedestrian would have access underneath 
bridges. Also, there are crossings at the platforms, and at an at-grade crossing at 
the edge of the station without a fenced guideways. 
 
The applicants also stated that the future pedestrian bridge crossing I-25 at Sky 
Ridge would link pedestrians to the future east-side infrastructure. Mr. Johnson 
stated that an estimated quarter-mile bridge would link the future City Center with 
the west village. 
 
Mr. Herman stated that there would be a future grade separated crossing north of 
RidgeGate Parkway in the east village. Also, there would be a future multi-use 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 51 of 240



path along the guideway connecting the end-of-line station to the sidewalk along 
RidgeGate Parkway.  
 
Commissioner Steele inquired of staff, when this becomes operative in 2019, will 
the Lone Tree Link expire. Mr. Cotten responded that it remains to be seen 
based on budget and participation. He stated that he thinks the Link will continue 
to exist in some form, but perhaps morph into something different in the future. 
 
Chair Kirchner stated that one of the notes states 10 bicycle racks and lockers; 
however another note calls for three spaces. Ten lockers equals 20 bicycle 
spaces. 
 
Chair Kirchner asked that ticket validators be located at convenient places for 
people to check tickets at different points throughout the stations. Mr. Johnson 
responded that they are located at the ends of the stations and intermittently 
throughout the stations. 
 
Chair Kirchner inquired about the number of parking spaces at Lincoln Station – 
it is 2000 – however RTD does not use all of these, some are leased out to 
adjacent businesses. 
 
Commissioner Dodgen moved to recommend approval of the RTD Sky Ridge 
Station subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of Lone Tree 
Public Works approval. 

 
2. Prior to final SIP approval, the landscape plan shall be further detailed per 

City Zoning requirements to specify proposed plant species, quantities, 
and sizes.  

 
Commissioner Spencer seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.  
 

 
H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone 
Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, the RidgeGate PDD, 
4th Amendment, and the Sky Ridge Station TOD Sub-Area Plan. 

 
Staff recommends approval of the SIP, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of Lone 

Tree Public Works approval. 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 52 of 240



2. Prior to final SIP approval, the landscape plan shall be further detailed per 
City Zoning requirements to specify proposed plant species, quantities, 
and sizes.  

 
 

 
I. ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Letter of Authorization 
2. Development Application 
3. Narrative & Statement of Design Intent 
4. Referral Comments  
5. RTD Fact Sheet 
6. SIP 
7. Renderings 

 
END 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 53 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 54 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 55 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 56 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 57 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 58 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 59 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 60 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 61 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 62 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 63 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 64 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 65 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 66 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 67 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 68 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 69 of 240



P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

COVER

March 18, 2016

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

SIP SHEET INDEX

SITE PLAN 03/18/161 of 12

Sheet NameN
U

M
B

E
R

Sheet Issue Date

03/18/162 of 12 GRADING PLAN

03/18/163 of 12 LANDSCAPE PLAN

03/18/164 of 12 SITE FURNISHINGS

03/18/166 of 12

03/18/167 of 12

03/18/168 of 12

03/18/169 of 12

03/18/1610 of 12 WALL ELEVATIONS

03/18/1611 of 12

03/18/1612 of 12

PHOTOMETRICS PLAN

LIGHTING FIXTURES

EAST PLATFORM ELEVATION

WEST PLATFORM ELEVATION

GRAND STAIR DETAILS

SECONDARY STAIR DETAILS

03/18/165 of 12 SITE FURNISHINGS

Vicinity Map

*

LINCOLN AVENUE

IN
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E
 2

5

R
ID

G
E

G
A

T
E
 P

K
W

Y

P
A
R

K
M

E
A
D

O
W

S
B

L
V

D

SKY RIDGE AVE

PLAN OR SUB-AREA PLAN.

OTHERWISE BE ADDRESSED IN AN APPROVED DEVELOPMENT 

PARKING, SIGNAGE AND OUTDOOR STORAGE, EXCEPT AS MAY 

INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO MAINTENANCE, LIGHTING, 

APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS OF THE LONE TREE ZONING CODE, 

STANDARD NOTE: THE PROPERTY HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL 

      

CONTACT: MICHAEL KIEFER

P: 303.781.9590

DENVER, CO 80211

2000 CLAY STREET, SUITE 200

YEH AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING

CONTACT: ALAN WISKUS

P: 720.481.3290

GREENWOOD VILLAGE, COLORADO 80111                            

5105 DTC PARKWAY, SUITE 420 

PK ELECTRICAL, INC.

LIGHTING AND ELECTRICAL DESIGN

CONTACT: STEVE HAKES

P: 303.953.9014

LITTLETON, CO 80120

801 WEST MINERAL AVENUE, SUITE 200

SAN ENGINEERING LLC

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING

CONTACT: CHRIS COOPER   

P: 303.456.2887  

DENVER, CO  80202

1615 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 411

BRITINA DESIGN GROUP

LANDSCAPE DESIGN

CONTACT: TARA BURKE

P: 720.855.7572

DENVER, CO 80202

475 17TH STREET, SUITE 720

IRON HORSE ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

CONTACT: KAREN CREAMER

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

WSP|PARSONS BRINCKERHOFF

LEAD DESIGN FIRM

CONTACT: ANDY MUTZ

P: 303.299.6965

DENVER, CO 80202

1560 BROADWAY 

SOUTHEAST RAIL EXTENSION 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT  

APPLICANT

CONTACT: KEITH SIMON

P: 720.279.2581

LONE TREE, CO 80124

10270 COMMONWEALTH STREET, SUITE B

RIDGEGATE INVESTMENTS, INC.

OWNER

APPROVAL CERTIFICATE

ADA REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET.

BEEN SATISFIED. THE APPLICANT IS RESPONSIBLE TO ENSURE THAT SAID 

REQUIREMENTS OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) HAVE 

APPROVAL BY THE CITY OF LONE TREE DOES NOT SIGNIFY THAT THE 

(NOTARY PUBLIC)

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL.

                 , 20     , BY                                                                      .

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS       DAY OF

COUNTY OF

STATE OF

(PRINTED NAME AND TITLE)

(SIGNATURE OF OWNER)

(NAME OF OWNER)

CORPORATE AUTHORIZATIONS, HAVE BEEN OBTAINED.

AUTHORIZATIONS TO ENTER THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING ANY 

REPRESENTATIVE(S) BELOW INDICATE THAT ANY REQUIRED 

SHALL ALSO BE BOUND. THE SIGNATURES OF THE OWNERS(S)'(S) 

THAT (2) THE HEIRS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS OF THE OWNER(S) 

COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 16 OF THE LONE TREE MUNICIPAL CODE AND 

ACCORDANCE WITH THIS APPROVED SITE IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND IN 

TO DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IN 

THE OWNER(S) OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED HEREIN, HEREBY AGREE(S) (1) 

DATE:

TITLE:   MAYOR

NAME:

BY:

DATE:

TITLE:   CITY ENGINEER

NAME:

BY:

DATE:

TITLE:   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

NAME:

BY:

ACCORD WITH CITY REGULATIONS, AS APPROVED BY THE CITY ON (DATE).

THIS SIP HAS BEEN REVIEWED AND FOUND TO BE COMPLETE AND IN 

)

)

) ss.

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 70 of 240



W

M
H M
H

M
H

M
H

M
H

M
H

M
H

M
H

W

WW

W W

W W

W

W

S

S

S

S

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

W

IR

IR

IR

E

S
C

A
L
E
: 
1
.7
5

A
R
-C

O
N

C

S
C

A
L
E
: 
1
.7
5

A
R
-C

O
N

C

ST

RH

CH

P
C

C

RH

TPSS

30 60 900

SCALE  IN  FEET

(BY OTHERS)FUTURE EXTENSIONSKY RID
GE AVENUE

SHEET 1 OF 12

OVERALL SITE PLAN

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

ACCESS PAD

6" THICK ABC TPSS 

SUBSTATION (TPSS)

TRACTION POWER 

BIKE LOCKERS (10 EA)

BIKE RACKS (10 EA)

HEIGHT = 3')

WALL WITH PRECAST CAP (MAX 

CAST IN PLACE RETAINING 

ORNAMENTAL FENCE

SIGNAGE

IDENTIFICATION 

STATION 

PILASTER (TYP)

STONE

2
7
.0

0
'

3
.5

0
'

1
2
.0

0
'

2
5
.0

0
'

3
2
.1

8
'

1
6
.0

0
'

3
4
.0

0
'

WALL

PLANTER 

STAIR

GRAND 

NORTH 

12.00'

25.00'

MACHINES (TVM)

TICKET VENDING 

PAVING

SPECIALTY 

6" VERTICAL CURB

2
5
.0

0
'

1
2
.0

0
'

2
6
.0

0
'25.00'

3
.5

0
'

PLANTER WALL

10.00'

1
0
.0

0
'

8.00'

2
4
.8

0
'

STAIRS

SECONDARY 

8
.0

0
'

GATES (TYP)

PEDESTRIAN SWING 

GATE ARM (TYP OF 4)

1
3
.5

0
'

1
3
.5
0
'

1
0
.0

0
'

8.
00
'

T
R

A
IN

S
T

A
T
IO

N
 C
IR

C
L
E
 E

A
S

T

HOUSE)

EQUIPMENT (RELAY 

LIGHT RAIL SIGNAL 

FURNISHINGS/DETAILS

SEE PLATFORM ELEVATIONS FOR 

SKYRIDGE STATION PLATFORMS - 

3
7
.0
' 
B

O
C
 -
 B

O
C

(EXISTING STREET)

CIRCLE WEST

TRAINSTATION 

ROADWAY)
AVENUE (E

XIS
TIN

G 

SKY R
IDGE 

6
5
.0

0
' 
E

X
 R

O
W

128.00' EX R
O

W~81.0' BO
C
- BO

C

PD ZONING - COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE (C/M-U)

LOT 4 - RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY

PD ZONING - COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE (C/M-U)

LOT 6B - RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17, 1ST AMENDMENT

UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY

PD ZONING - COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE (C/M-U)

RIDGEGATE - SECTION 15 FILING NO. 2 1ST AMENDMENT

SKY RIDGE MEDICAL CENTER DEVELOPMENT

PD ZONING - COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE (C/M-U)

LOT 5 - RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

CHARLES SCHWAB BUILDING

U
T
IL
IT

Y
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

E
X
 1

0
.0

0
' 
P
S

C
O

CONTROL CABINET )

COMM HOUSE, POWER 

EQUIPMENT (RELAY HOUSE, 

LIGHT RAIL SIGNAL/ELECTRICAL 

E
A
S

E
M

E
N

T

U
T
IL
IT

Y

E
X
 8
.0

0
'

UTILITY EASEMENT

EX 10.00' PSCO

65.00' EX ROW

37.00' BOC - BOC

CURB CUT

24' CONCRETE 

L=248.00'

LC=242.85'

R=350.00'

U
T
IL
IT

Y
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
 P

S
C

O

E
X
 1

0
.0

0
'

C NORTHBOUND LIGHT RAIL TRACKL

HYDRANT

EX FIRE 

3
2
.1

3
'

SKY RIDGE MONUMENT

L=38.54'

LC=38.49'

R=207.50'

400.00' 2
5
.0

0
'

2
5
.0

0
'

25.00'180.38'

CURB

6" VERTICAL 

185.67'

BENCH (TYP OF 3)

5'X14' LANDING W/ STONE 

(M
IN
)

1
3
.5
0
'

AT-GRADE RAIL CROSSING

STAIR

SOUTH GRAND 

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 7
.2

5
'

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 8
.0

0
'

HEIGHT ~10')

FEATURE WALL (MAX 

SKY RIDGE STATION 

12
.0
0'

L=203.00'

LC=201.15'

R=432.50'

1
0
.5

0
'

(M
IN
)

17
.7
4'

U
T
IL
IT

Y
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

E
X
 1

0
.0

0
' P

S
C

OLOCATION (BY XCEL)

APPROXIMATE TRANSFORMER 

LOADING/UNLOADING) PULLOUTS 

KISS N RIDE (PASSENGER 

REQUIRED LANDSCAPED AREA)

NATURAL AREAS (NOT INCLUDED IN THE 

INTERIOR PARKING ISLANDS, TRAILS AND WALKS

LANDSCAPED AREA (EXCLUDING PLANTED 

PARKING ISLANDS)

PARKING/ROADS (INCLUDING PLANTED INTERIOR 

BUILDING FOOTPRINT

AREA IN ARTICLE XXXVI)

TOTAL FLOOR AREA (SEE DEFINITION OF FLOOR 

BUILDING CODE)

MAXIMUM HEIGHT (AS MEASURED BY THE CITY'S 

PROVIDED

REQUIRED

PROVIDED

REQUIRED

ITEM

ITEM

ITEM

FOOTAGE

SQUARE 

SITE

% OF GROSS 

SQUARE FOOTAGE

N/A 

N/A 

76%

24%

N/A 

PARKING

BICYCLE PARKING

GROSS SITE AREA 100%

SPACES REQUIRED

0%

N/A 

N/A 

L=203.00'

LC=201.15'

R=432.50'

0

30

30

TYP OF 4

AND ANTI-SLEEP ARMS) 

BENCH B (WITH BACK 

STONE BENCH (TYP OF 3)

3.5'X8' LANDING W/ 

(TYP OF 5)

STONE BENCH 

EASEMENT (WIDTH VARIES)

PROPOSED DRAINAGE 

106,186

0 (KISS N RIDE PER EIA)

80,231

25,955

TRACTION POWER SUBSTATION

WROUGHT IRON FENCE AT 

TO TRACK CORRIDOR)

6' CHAINLINK FENCE (ADJACENT 

C SOUTHBOUND LIGHT RAIL TRACKL

EX FIRE HYDRANT

AREA

SNOW STORAGE 

BUILDING SIZE

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 71 of 240



5
9
9
5

5
9
9
5

6
0
0
5

5
9
8
5

5
9
9
0

5
9
9
5

5985

59
90

5
9
9
5

599
5

5
9
9
5

6000

6000

6
0
0
0

6005

W

M
H M
H

M
H

M
H

M
H

M
H

M
H

M
H

W

WW

W W

W W

W

W

S

S

S

S

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

W

IR

E
C
B

IR

IR

E

ST

RH

CH

P
C

C

RH

TPSS

5995

6
0
0
0 6000

6000

6002

60046
0
0
0

5995

5992

6000

6000

6005

30 60 900

SCALE  IN  FEET
SHEET 2 OF 12

OVERALL GRADING PLAN

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

(BY OTHERS)FUTURE EXTENSIONSKY RID
GE AVENUE

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

SUBSTATION (TPSS)

TRACTION POWER 

POWER SUBSTATION

FENCE AT TRACTION 

BIKE LOCKERS (10 EA)

BIKE RACKS (10 EA)

HEIGHT = 3')

WALL WITH PRECAST CAP (MAX 

CAST IN PLACE RETAINING 

FENCING PLANS

FENCE (TYP) - SEE 

ORNAMENTAL FENCE

SIGNAGE

IDENTIFICATION 

STATION 

PILASTER (TYP)

STONE

WALL

PLANTER 
MACHINES (TVM)

TICKET VENDING 

PAVING

SPECIALTY 

6" VERTICAL CURB

PLANTER WALL

GATES (TYP)

PEDESTRIAN SWING 

GATE ARM (TYP OF 4)

T
R

A
IN

S
T

A
T
IO

N
 C
IR

C
L
E
 E

A
S

T

HOUSE)

EQUIPMENT (RELAY 

LIGHT RAIL SIGNAL 

FURNISHINGS/DETAILS

SEE PLATFORM ELEVATIONS FOR 

SKYRIDGE STATION PLATFORMS - 

(EXISTING STREET)

CIRCLE WEST

TRAINSTATION 

ROADWAY)
AVENUE (E

XIS
TIN

G 

SKY R
IDGE 

PD ZONING - COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE (C/M-U)

LOT 4 - RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY

PD ZONING - COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE (C/M-U)

LOT 6B - RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17, 1ST AMENDMENT

UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY

PD ZONING - COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE (C/M-U)

RIDGEGATE - SECTION 15 FILING NO. 2 1ST AMENDMENT

SKY RIDGE MEDICAL CENTER DEVELOPMENT

PD ZONING - COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE (C/M-U)

LOT 5 - RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

CHARLES SCHWAB BUILDING

U
T
IL
IT

Y
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

E
X
 1

0
.0

0
' 
P
S

C
O

CONTROL CABINET )

COMM HOUSE, POWER 

EQUIPMENT (RELAY HOUSE, 

LIGHT RAIL SIGNAL/ELECTRICAL 

E
A
S

E
M

E
N

T

U
T
IL
IT

Y

E
X
 8
.0

0
'

UTILITY EASEMENT

EX 10.00' PSCO

65.00' EX ROW

CURB CUT

24' CONCRETE 

U
T
IL
IT

Y
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
 P

S
C

O

E
X
 1

0
.0

0
'

C NORTHBOUND LIGHT RAIL TRACKL

C SOUTHBOUND LIGHTRAIL TRACKL

SKY RIDGE MONUMENT

CURB

6" VERTICAL 

AT-GRADE RAIL CROSSING

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 7
.2

5
'

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 8
.0

0
'

HEIGHT ~10')

FEATURE WALL (MAX 

SKY RIDGE STATION 

U
T
IL
IT

Y
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

E
X
 1

0
.0

0
' P

S
C

OLOCATION (BY XCEL)

APPROXIMATE TRANSFORMER 

LOADING/UNLOADING) PULLOUTS 

KISS N RIDE (PASSENGER 

EASEMENT (WIDTH VARIES)

PROPOSED DRAINAGE 

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

(TYP)

STONE BENCH 

BENCH B (TYP)

ELEV = 6003.1

BOS = 5994.3

TOS =6002.5

SOUTH GRAND STAIR

BOS = 5992.4

TOS = 6002.5

NORTH GRAND STAIR

ELEV = 6003.3

ELEV = 5994.6

ELEV = 6001.9

ELEV = 5992.7

ELEV = 5991.1

ELEV = 5999.8

BOS = 6000.4

TOS ELEV = 6002.4

SECONDARY STAIRS

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 72 of 240



W

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

STL CASING

1" IN 6"

HEATED STRUCTURE

1" RPBFP IN

RH

TPSS

LEGEND

ROCK MULCH TYPE 1

SEED MIX

TURF

DECIDUOUS TREE 

ORNAMENTAL TREE 

EVERGREEN TREE 

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES 

DECIDUOUS SHRUB &

EVERGREEN SHRUB 

ROCK MULCH TYPE 2

ROCK MULCH

20 40 600

SCALE  IN  FEET

1

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

N
O
T 
FO

R
 

P
R
E
LI

M
IN

A
R
Y

B

SHEET 3 OF 12

LANDSCAPE PLAN

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

  LANDSCAPE PLAN

ROCK MULCH TYPE 1 (TYP)

SHADE TREE (TYP)

TURF (TYP)

ORNAMENTAL TREE (TYP)

BENCH (TYP)

WALL

EVERGREEN TREE (TYP)

RTD MONUMENT SIGN

CONCRETE EDGER

SEAT WALL (TYP)

STONE BENCH (TYP)

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 73 of 240



SHEET 4 OF 12

SITE FURNISHINGS

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

AA

AMERICAN BICYCLE SECURITY

MODEL 352 W/ PADLOCK HANDLE

PN #010

45.00 MIN.45.00

45.00

45.00

45.00 45.00MIN

30.00

55.87 WITH STIPPLE FINISH (TYP)

TAN FIBERGLASS REINFORCED PLASTIC
TOP VIEW

3
'-
4
"

"2
16'-2

4
'-
1
"

4
'-
0
"

SIDE VIEW FRONT VIEW

3'-4"

W/PADLOCK

DOOR HANDLE

BICYCLE LOCKERS

BICYCLE LOCKERSBICYCLE RACKS
BOC

PLAN

BICYCLE RACK & LOCKER LAYOUT (TYP)

ELECTRICAL DRAWING SERIES

GROUNDING DETAILS IN

GROUNDING CONNECTION. SEE

TO BACK OF BENCH LEG FOR

1"X1"X1/4" STEEL TAB WELDED

RB-12 W/ ANTI-SLEEP RAIL

VICTOR STANLEY STEELSITES

RTD STANDARD BENCH -

ANCHOR, TYP

1/2" SST EXPANSION

BENCH A SIDE ELEVATION

"
8

5
1
'-
5

DUMOR BENCH WITHOUT BACK

BENCH A FRONT ELEVATION

DUMOR BENCH WITHOUT BACK

BENCH A PLAN

DUMOR BENCH WITH BACK

BENCH B FRONT ELEVATION

DUMOR BENCH WITH BACK

BENCH B PLAN

BENCH B SIDE ELEVATION

"
2

1
1
'-
5

NEWSPAPER "RAK" SYSTEMS

NOTES:

FAX: (251) 653-1014

LOCAL: (251) 653-4080

TOLL FREE: (800) 467-1725

THEODORE, AL 36582 U.S.A.

5500 PLANTATION RD.

RAK SYSTEMS, INC.

FROM:

6.  "RAK" SYSTEM MODEL NOS. AND DESCRIPTIONS AVAILABLE 

5.  AVAILABLE WITH LOCK OR LATCH

4.  ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN INCHES.

CONTACT FACTORY FOR DETAILS.

3.  ALL SPECIFICATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. PLEASE 

POWDER-COATED WITH TGIC POLYESTER POWDER COATING.

ETCHED, PHOSPHATIZED AND ELECROSTATICALLY 

2.  ALL FABRICATED COMPONENTS ARE STEEL SHOT-BLASTED, 

1.  STANDARD COLOR SHALL BE RAL 6009 FIR GREEN

"4
36'-0

1'-4"

DOME TOP

SHEET METAL 

DOME TOP

SHEET METAL 

49 B 49 B 49 B

49 HT 49 DW 49 T

SIDE ELEVATION FRONT ELEVATION

MB2 MB2

TRAY - MB3

ANCHOR (TYP.)

STEEL EXPANSION 

1/2"x2-1/2" STAINLESS 

ANCHOR (TYP.)

STEEL EXPANSION 

1/2"x2-1/2" STAINLESS 

"
4

3
5
'-
0

1
'-
7
"

"
4

3
3
'-
5

2
'-
1
1
"

"
4

3
6

"
2

1
1
'-
5

"
2

1
1
'-
5

DETAIL 2 - BICYCLE RACK

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE  ELEVATION TOP VIEW

PLACING ANCHORS

TO BOLT HOLES BEFORE 

SILICON OR POLYURETHANE 

ANCHOR (TYP.) (APPLY 

1/2" X 3" S.S. HILTI EXPANSION 
3/4" STEEL PLATE

BIKE RACK POST

OF BOLT HOLES

R3" TO CENTERLINE 

STEEL BASE PLATE

SECTION A-A

PLATE

STEEL BASE 

COLOR RAL 6009

FIR GREEN 

3
'-
2
"

1'-11"

"2
12 "2

12

1'-11"

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 74 of 240



SHEET 5 OF 12

SITE FURNISHINGS

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

LITTER RECEPTACLE ELEVATION

LITTER RECEPTACLE PLAN

LITTER RECEPTACLE GROUNDING CONNECTION

PREFINISHED METAL

CLEAR ACRYLIC

PREFINISHED METAL FRAME

PREFINISHED METAL SKIRT

SEE 8/AS-1601

TOP OF PLATFORM.

TRASH CAN BOLTED TO

RECEPTACLE

OUTSIDE FACE OF LITTER

IN PLATFORM SLAB

GROUNDING PLATE SET

METAL FRAME

LITTER RECEPTACLE

GROUNDING WIRE

PLATFORM SLAB

PROTRUDE 1 1/2" FROM

ANCHOR BOLT,

1/2" SST EXPANSION

WINDSCREEN TYPE 1 PLAN

WINDSCREEN TYPE 1 FRONT ELEVATION

14'-8"

" TYP8
13'-4

"
2

1
4
'-
6

4
'-
0
" 

T
Y

P

4
" 

T
Y

P

2"

" TYP2
12

2"

BENCH B

SHOWN DASHED

COLUMN BASE

FLOOR SPACE

ADA CLEAR 

"
2

1
8
'-
4

"
2

1
8
'-
0

3
'-
3
"

3
'-
3
"

"
2

1
8

" 
T

Y
P

2
1

2

4
"

PANEL, TYP

3/8" GLASS OR ACRYLIC

STEEL FRAME, TYP

BENCH B

SHOWN DASHED

CANOPY COLUMN

3/8" METAL PANEL, TYP

CONCRETE BASE, TYP

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 75 of 240



C
H

P
C

CRH

BL

C
H

P
C

CRH

N

S

E

W

N

S

E

W

D B

D B

B

B

I I

I III I I I I I I I I I I I I I I

I I I I I II I I I

D

D

I2

I2

I4

I4

I4

I4 I4

I4

I4

I4

I2

I2I4

I4

I4

I4

I4

I4

I4

I4

I4 I4

I4 I4

I4 I4

I4 I4

I II I II I III II I III II

I II

D D D

DD

I II I II

I III II II I III

PL

PL

PR

PR

PR
PL

N
N

8
.1

8
.5

6
.8

7
.3

5
.4

7
.5

7
.7

6
.4

7
.2

5
.1

7
.9

8
.2

6
.6

7
.3

5
.2

7
.6

8
.0

6
.4

7
.0

5
.1

7
.4

7
.8

6
.2

6
.7

4
.9

7
.8

8
.2

6
.6

7
.1

5
.2

8
.7

9
.2

7
.3

7
.9

5
.5

9
.2

9
.7

7
.6

8
.2

5
.7

8
.9

9
.4

7
.3

8
.1

5
.7

8
.1

8
.5

6
.8

7
.3

7
.4

7
.8

6
.2

6
.7

4
.9

8
.0

8
.4

6
.7

7
.3

5
.2

8
.5

8
.9

7
.0

7
.9

8
.1

8
.4

6
.7

7
.6

7
.1

7
.4

6
.1

5
.1

6
.8

6
.3

6
.5

5
.6

4
.8

6
.0

5
.4

5
.4

5
.4

4
.6

4
.6

5
.4

5
.7

6
.0

6
.2

4
.3

5
.1

5
.4

5
.7

5
.9

4
.0

4
.8

5
.2

5
.4

5
.6

3
.8

4
.6

5
.0

5
.2

5
.3

3
.7

4
.5

4
.8

5
.0

5
.2

3
.6

4
.4

4
.7

4
.9

5
.1

3
.6

4
.3

4
.7

4
.8

5
.0

3
.5

4
.2

4
.6

4
.8

4
.9

3
.5

4
.2

4
.5

4
.7

4
.9

3
.5

4
.2

4
.5

4
.7

4
.9

3
.5

4
.2

4
.5

4
.7

4
.9

3
.5

4
.2

4
.5

4
.7

4
.9

3
.5

4
.2

4
.5

4
.7

4
.9

3
.5

4
.2

4
.5

4
.7

4
.8

3
.5

4
.2

4
.5

4
.7

4
.8

3
.5

4
.2

4
.5

4
.7

4
.8

3
.5

4
.2

4
.6

4
.7

4
.8

3
.5

4
.2

4
.6

4
.7

4
.9

3
.5

4
.2

4
.5

4
.7

4
.9

3
.5

4
.2

4
.6

4
.7

5
.0

3
.5

4
.3

4
.7

4
.8

5
.0

3
.6

4
.3

4
.6

4
.8

5
.0

3
.6

4
.4

4
.7

4
.9

5
.1

3
.7

4
.4

4
.8

5
.0

5
.1

3
.7

4
.4

5
.0

5
.0

5
.1

3
.7

4
.4

4
.9

5
.0

5
.0

3
.6

4
.3

4
.8

4
.8

4
.9

3
.5

4
.3

4
.7

4
.9

5
.0

3
.8

4
.7

4
.5

5
.6

6
.8

5
.1

5
.5

7
.4

7
.4

5
.8

5
.6

7
.0

6
.7

5
.4

6
.0

7
.4

8
.0

6
.6

5
.9

7
.8

6
.5

9
.3

8
.3

5
.2

4
.5

6
.9

5
.0

5
.4

5
.6

6
.1

6
.7

7
.0

7
.3

8
.2

8
.7

8
.1

9
.0

9
.6

8
.2

9
.1

9
.6

7
.6

8
.4

8
.9

7
.0

7
.7

8
.2

7
.4

8
.3

9
.0

7
.5

8
.5

9
.5

7
.0

8
.1

9
.3

6
.0

7
.0

8
.3

5
.3

6
.2

7
.5

5
.4

6
.3

6
.9

6
.1

6
.9

6
.7

6
.6

7
.1

6
.4

6
.5

6
.9

6
.2

3
.9

5
.8

6
.0

6
.4

6
.3

4
.3

6
.5

7
.0

7
.4

5
.8

4
.6

6
.7

7
.4

7
.8

6
.4

5
.4

6
.3

7
.0

7
.4

6
.3

5
.7

5
.6

6
.0

6
.5

5
.9

5
.7

5
.1

5
.4

5
.9

5
.9

6
.0

4
.5

4
.7

5
.3

5
.9

6
.4

3
.9

4
.2

4
.9

6
.0

2
.3

9
.1

5
.8

7
.9

7
.1

7
.1

6
.5

6
.7

4
.2

5
.1

4
.1

4
.8

5
.6

6
.7

3
.1

3
.1

4
.0

5
.8

7
.3

8
.0

2
.0

2
.1

2
.9

4
.5

5
.5

6
.0

5
.9

6
.7

7
.8

3
.4

4
.1

3
.9

3
.8

5
.0

6
.0

5
.7

5
.6

5
.7

2
.8

3
.6

4
.3

3
.9

3
.7

3
.8

3
.6

4
.5

4
.8

2
.8

2
.4

2
.2

2
.3

2
.7

3
.4

3
.9

1
.5

1
.9

0
.0

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

5
4
.6

0
.9

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.3

0
.4

0
.4

0
.2

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.7

1
6
.2

1
.7

0
.4

0
.3

0
.1

0
.1

0
.4

1
7
.5

0
.1

0
.4

0
.4

0
.2

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.3

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.3

0
.3

0
.3

0
.2

1
1
.6

0
.6

0
.4

0
.4

0
.4

3
.9

4
0
.9

0
.9

0
.5

0
.5

0
.6

2
9
.1

0
.5

1
.1

0
.9

0
.6

0
.6

0
.3

0
.7

1
.3

1
.0

0
.8

0
.8

0
.5

0
.8

1
.5

1
.2

1
.0

1
.1

0
.7

1
.0

1
.7

1
.6

1
.4

1
.5

0
.9

2
.4

2
.2

2
.3

2
.6

2
.5

2
.2

2
.1

3
.5

5
3
.7

2
.5

2
.6

3
.0

3
.2

2
.9

2
.8

6
1
.3

5.9

4.6

3.5

5.2

4.3

3.0

4.3

3.6

2.5

3.5

3.0

2.3

4.2

3.5

2.6

5.3

4.2

2.8

5.1

3.9

2.8

6.1

5.0

3.5

6.7

5.6

3.9

5.6

4.7

3.4

5.1

4.3

3.2

6.0

4.8

3.3

5.8

4.5

3.1

6.3

5.0

3.6

6.0

4.2

5.2

3.9

4.8

3.6

5.3

3.7

5.1

3.5

5.4

3.9

6.8

4.8

6.3

4.6

5.7

4.2

5.8

4.1

5.6

3.7

6.4

4.5

7.4

5.4

3.7

6.6

5.0

3.5

6.0

4.4

2.9

5.6

3.8

2.4

5.5

3.8

2.5

6.4

4.9

3.2

5.8

4.7

3.4

4.3

4.6

3.3

4.8

3.4

2.3

4.8

4.1

2.9

5.3

6.2

4.2

4.8

8.0

5.5

8.2

6.2

3.6

2.1

6.6

6.0

3.5

2.1

1.5

0.4

4.2

5.2

3.0

1.8

1.2
3
.3

4
.0

2
.8

2
.1

5
.7

4
.2

2
.6

1
.7

1
.2

4
.8

3
.8

3
.4

2
.5

1
.7

6
.3

4
.7

2
.8

2
.3

1
.9

6
.5

6
.2

5
.5

4
.7

4
.0

2
.6

1
.7

7
.0

5
.9

5
.5

5
.7

4
.6

3
.6

2
.9

2
.1

7
.2

6
.8

7
.4

6
.5

4
.6

3
.9

3
.3

2
.5

2
.1

6
.9

7
.0

6
.6

6
.7

6
.0

4
.2

2
.9

2
.2

1
.7

7
.5

5
.9

5
.8

6
.2

6
.7

6
.1

4
.4

2
.6

1
.6

7
.9

7
.1

5
.6

5
.6

7
.1

8
.2

6
.9

4
.5

2
.8

7
.8

7
.2

6
.3

5
.2

5
.4

6
.9

7
.0

6
.9

6
.0

5
.6

5
.0

4
.8

4
.8

7
.5

6
.1

5
.5

6
.2

6
.1

4
.4

7
.4

6
.2

6
.4

7
.9

6
.9

7
.8

7
.3

6
.1

6
.6

7
.8

5
.7

7
.1

6
.1

5
.1

5
.3

5
.3

5
.2

4
.0

3
.3

3
.2

2
.8

1
.8

4
.6

3
.3

2
.2

1
.7

1
.3

3
.7

2
.8

1
.7

3
.4

2
.9

2
.2

3
.8

3
.6

2
.9

3
.0

1
.5

1
.9

3
.3

4
.4

4
.7

4
.1

2
.0

2
.4

3
.6

5
.6

6
.3

4
.7

3
.1

1
.9

2
.9

2
.8

5
.4

4
.6

3
.1

2
.0

1
.8

4
.0

3
.5

3
.0

2
.7

2
.9

3
.7

4
.5

6
.9

5
.2

4
.4

5
.3

6
.6

6
.7

6
.6

3
.8

8
.3

8
.4

9
.0

1
0
.7

1
1
.4

9
.6

7
.0

5
.6

3
.9

6
.4

8
.8

8
.4

1
4
.5

1
5
.2

1
5
.4

1
3
.9

1
1
.0

7
.8

6
.4

5
.6

2
.0

3
.5

5
.6

7
.4

7
.4

1
0
.1

1
3
.4

1
6
.5

1
9
.3

2
1
.0

2
1
.6

2
2
.4

2
2
.1

2
1
.1

1
8
.4

1
5
.8

1
3
.0

1
0
.3

7
.7

7
.0

1
.6

2
.1

3
.1

4
.7

6
.4

7
.5

1
3
.0

1
8
.8

2
2
.2

2
5
.5

2
7
.1

2
9
.0

2
8
.0

2
8
.2

2
8
.6

2
7
.1

2
5
.9

2
3
.2

2
0
.6

1
6
.1

1
3
.2

1
0
.3

8
.5

7
.8

2
.5

2
.6

2
.8

3
.8

5
.6

8
.3

1
1
.4

1
4
.3

2
0
.1

3
3
.8

4
1
.3

2
7
.6

2
4
.3

1
9
.8

1
5
.9

1
2
.9

9
.8

8
.0

6
.2

4
.5

4
.3

4
.1

5
.5

8
.5

1
2
.9

1
7
.6

2
3
.5

3
4
.4

2
7
.4

2
3
.7

1
8
.3

1
4
.3

1
0
.0

6
.5

5
.3

6
.2

6
.7

6
.1

6
.0

8
.3

1
2
.7

1
8
.3

2
5
.9

3
1
.9

2
5
.8

1
9
.4

1
3
.5

8
.9

6
.0

4
.1

3
.4

6
.3

7
.6

6
.8

8
.0

1
2
.0

1
7
.1

2
5
.1

3
0
.8

2
4
.9

1
7
.6

1
2
.4

8
.0

5
.0

4
.0

4
.2

4
.3

4
.4

5
.5

6
.3

7
.1

1
0
.4

1
5
.6

2
2
.8

3
0
.3

2
3
.9

1
6
.4

1
0
.8

6
.7

5
.1

4
.5

4
.6

5
.5

4
.8

4
.3

4
.7

5
.9

8
.7

1
3
.3

1
9
.2

2
7
.6

2
9
.7

2
1
.1

1
4
.0

9
.3

6
.3

5
.2

5
.5

6
.4

6
.4

5
.0

4
.0

5
.4

6
.7

5
.8

4
.6

4
.7

6
.8

1
0
.8

1
6
.1

2
3
.9

2
6
.0

1
7
.6

1
2
.1

8
.1

6
.4

7
.5

8
.5

7
.5

4
.0

2
.1

3
.8

5
.5

6
.0

5
.1

4
.7

5
.7

8
.1

1
2
.9

1
9
.5

2
7
.5

2
8
.7

2
2
.3

1
4
.8

9
.9

8
.2

9
.8

1
1
.0

8
.9

1
.9

1
.7

2
.1

2
.8

3
.7

4
.1

4
.0

4
.9

6
.7

9
.6

1
4
.6

2
2
.4

2
5
.3

1
6
.8

1
1
.5

9
.6

1
1
.0

1
1
.6

9
.7

3
.0

2
.7

2
.7

2
.7

2
.8

3
.3

3
.8

4
.3

5
.3

7
.5

1
0
.7

1
5
.6

2
4
.1

2
8
.0

1
8
.1

1
2
.5

1
0
.6

1
0
.9

1
0
.4

9
.2

4
.2

4
.6

4
.8

4
.5

4
.1

4
.0

4
.5

5
.2

6
.0

8
.3

1
1
.1

1
4
.6

2
0
.1

2
5
.9

1
7
.5

1
2
.7

1
1
.5

1
0
.7

9
.3

5
.1

5
.8

7
.3

7
.9

7
.0

5
.9

5
.1

5
.1

6
.0

6
.1

7
.4

9
.8

1
0
.8

8
.7

6
.6

7
.2

7
.4

7
.7

8
.4

1
0
.1

1
0
.7

8
.1

4
.8

7
.1

9
.0

9
.6

8
.1

8
.4

8
.4

6
.5

2
.8

3
.4

5
.4

8
.3

1
0
.6

1
1
.0

8
.8

7
.9

6
.7

4
.9

3
.1

3
.4

3
.5

3
.9

5
.2

9
.2

1
0
.7

1
0
.9

8
.7

6
.0

3
.9

3
.8

3
.6

4
.1

4
.7

4
.5

4
.4

4
.9

7
.6

9
.7

1
0
.2

8
.1

5
.3

3
.4

3
.7

4
.3

5
.1

4
.8

5
.1

5
.6

5
.0

4
.7

5
.1

5
.5

6
.8

8
.5

9
.2

8
.4

6
.4

4
.3

3
.0

4
.0

4
.1

4
.2

4
.6

5
.4

5
.3

5
.2

5
.3

5
.0

5
.1

5
.9

6
.9

6
.7

2
.5

3
.8

5
.8

6
.6

2
.5

3
.6

3
.6

4
.2

3
.1

3
.9

7
.0

6
.2

5
.0

4
.3

4
.0

6
.5

6
.3

5
.4

4
.8

4
.4

6
.2

6
.1

6
.0

5
.5

5
.1

5
.9

6
.2

6
.4

6
.0

5
.4

5
.6

6
.4

7
.1

6
.6

5
.9

5
.4

6
.3

7
.4

6
.9

6
.2

5
.0

5
.8

7
.0

6
.6

6
.1

4
.4

5
.2

6
.1

5
.9

5
.6

4
.4

5
.1

5
.8

5
.8

5
.8

4
.4

5
.1

5
.7

5
.7

5
.9

4
.5

5
.1

5
.6

5
.6

5
.9

4
.6

5
.3

5
.7

5
.8

6
.0

4
.8

5
.7

6
.3

6
.3

6
.4

5
.1

6
.4

7
.7

7
.5

7
.2

5
.2

6
.6

8
.2

7
.9

7
.3

5
.1

6
.4

8
.0

7
.6

7
.0

4
.9

6
.2

7
.8

7
.4

6
.7

5
.2

6
.6

8
.2

7
.8

7
.1

5
.5

7
.3

9
.2

8
.7

7
.9

5
.7

7
.6

9
.7

9
.2

8
.2

5
.7

7
.3

9
.4

8
.9

8
.1

5
.4

6
.8

8
.5

8
.1

7
.3

4
.9

6
.2

7
.8

7
.4

6
.7

5
.2

6
.7

8
.4

8
.0

7
.3

5
.4

7
.0

8
.9

8
.5

7
.9

5
.4

6
.7

8
.4

8
.1

7
.6

5
.1

6
.1

7
.4

7
.1

6
.8

4
.8

5
.6

6
.5

6
.3

6
.0

4
.6

5
.4

6
.2

6
.0

5
.7

4
.3

5
.1

5
.9

5
.7

5
.4

4
.0

4
.8

5
.6

5
.4

5
.2

3
.8

4
.6

5
.3

5
.2

5
.0

3
.7

4
.5

5
.2

5
.0

4
.8

3
.6

4
.4

5
.1

4
.9

4
.7

3
.6

4
.3

5
.0

4
.8

4
.7

3
.5

4
.2

4
.9

4
.8

4
.6

3
.5

4
.2

4
.9

4
.7

4
.5

3
.5

4
.2

4
.9

4
.7

4
.5

3
.5

4
.2

4
.9

4
.7

4
.6

3
.5

4
.2

4
.9

4
.7

4
.5

3
.5

4
.2

4
.9

4
.7

4
.5

3
.5

4
.2

4
.8

4
.7

4
.5

3
.5

4
.2

4
.8

4
.7

4
.5

3
.5

4
.2

4
.8

4
.7

4
.5

3
.5

4
.2

4
.8

4
.7

4
.6

3
.5

4
.2

4
.9

4
.7

4
.6

3
.5

4
.2

4
.9

4
.7

4
.5

3
.5

4
.2

5
.0

4
.7

4
.6

3
.5

4
.3

5
.0

4
.8

4
.7

3
.6

4
.3

5
.0

4
.8

4
.6

3
.6

4
.4

5
.1

4
.9

4
.7

3
.7

4
.4

5
.1

5
.0

4
.8

3
.7

4
.4

5
.1

5
.0

5
.0

3
.7

4
.4

5
.0

5
.0

4
.9

3
.6

4
.3

4
.9

4
.8

4
.8

3
.5

4
.3

5
.0

4
.9

4
.7

3
.8

4
.7

5
.6

5
.4

5
.0

4
.5

5
.6

7
.0

6
.7

6
.1

5
.1

6
.8

8
.7

8
.2

7
.3

5
.5

7
.4

9
.6

9
.0

8
.1

5
.8

7
.4

9
.6

9
.1

8
.2

5
.6

7
.0

8
.9

8
.4

7
.6

5
.4

6
.7

8
.2

7
.7

7
.0

6
.0

7
.4

9
.0

8
.3

7
.4

6
.6

8
.0

9
.5

8
.5

7
.5

5
.9

7
.8

9
.3

8
.1

7
.0

6
.5

8
.3

7
.0

6
.0

5
.2

7
.5

6
.2

5
.3

4
.5

6
.9

6
.3

5
.4

3
.9

6
.7

6
.9

6
.1

6
.4

7
.1

6
.6

6
.2

6
.9

6
.5

4
.3

6
.3

6
.4

6
.0

4
.6

5
.8

7
.4

7
.0

6
.5

5
.4

6
.4

7
.8

7
.4

6
.7

5
.7

6
.3

7
.4

7
.0

6
.3

5
.7

5
.9

6
.5

6
.0

5
.6

6
.0

5
.9

5
.9

5
.4

5
.1

6
.4

5
.9

5
.3

4
.7

4
.5

6
.0

4
.9

4
.2

3
.9

3
.1

4
.7

4
.1

3
.7

3
.2

4
.5

8
.2

7
.4

3
.9

3
.2

4
.3

6
.6

6
.3

3
.6

2
.7

6
.7

9
.3

1
0
.7

6
.2

3
.9

5
.9

7
.0

9
.6

9
.1

5
.7

1
.9

3
.0

3
.4

2
.5

1
.9

3
.9

5
.8

8
.3

9
.3

6.77.5

4.8 4.5 6.1 3
.6

3
.6

4
.6

3
.3

3
.2

2
.1

1
.8

1
.3

1
.2

0
.9

6.4 7.2

4.64.25.6

5
.8

3
.9

8
.8

7
.0

5
.2

6
.2

7
.7

8
.9

9
.5

5
.3

6
.2

7
.8

8
.7

9
.1

5
.2

6
.0

7
.3

7
.9

8
.1

5
.3

5
.9

6
.8

7
.0

7
.1

6
.1

6
.8

7
.5

7
.0

6
.6

6
.8

7
.4

8
.0

7
.0

6
.2

6
.8

7
.2

7
.6

6
.3

5
.3

6
.3

6
.7

6
.5

4
.6

3
.4

6
.7

7
.0

6
.1

6
.8

7
.2

6
.3

6
.2

6
.9

6
.4

5
.3

6
.2

6
.6

4
.2

4
.9

5
.8

7
.0

4
.8

4
.9

5
.8

7
.0

5
.6

5
.2

6
.0

7
.0

6
.1

5
.1

5
.9

6
.6

7
.3

6
.1

5
.1

6
.5

7
.0

7
.4

5
.9

4
.7

6
.3

6
.7

6
.8

5
.3

4
.1

5
.7

5
.8

5
.7

4
.6

3
.6

5
.5

5
.4

5
.3

4
.4

3
.5

5
.3

5
.3

5
.2

4
.4

3
.6

5
.2

5
.2

5
.2

4
.4

3
.7

5
.0

5
.1

5
.1

4
.4

3
.7

4
.9

5
.1

5
.2

4
.5

3
.8

5
.1

5
.3

5
.4

4
.7

4
.0

5
.3

5
.5

5
.6

4
.8

4
.1

5
.5

5
.6

5
.7

4
.9

4
.2

5
.5

5
.5

5
.5

4
.7

4
.1

5
.6

5
.6

5
.6

4
.6

3
.8

6
.1

6
.5

6
.4

4
.9

3
.8

6
.6

7
.1

7
.1

5
.4

4
.0

6
.5

7
.0

7
.0

5
.3

4
.0

5
.9

6
.3

6
.4

4
.9

3
.6

6
.4

6
.9

7
.0

5
.3

3
.9

6
.7

7
.2

7
.4

5
.6

4
.2

6
.6

6
.9

7
.0

5
.5

4
.2

6
.1

6
.2

6
.2

5
.1

4
.1

5
.8

5
.9

5
.9

5
.0

4
.2

6
.0

6
.1

6
.1

5
.2

4
.3

5
.9

6
.0

6
.1

5
.1

4
.3

5
.9

5
.9

6
.0

5
.0

4
.1

6
.0

5
.9

5
.8

4
.9

4
.0

6
.2

6
.0

5
.7

4
.8

3
.9

5
.9

5
.9

5
.7

4
.7

3
.9

5
.9

5
.8

5
.6

4
.7

3
.9

6
.0

5
.8

5
.6

4
.7

3
.8

6
.1

5
.8

5
.5

4
.6

3
.8

6
.0

5
.7

5
.4

4
.5

3
.7

5
.9

5
.6

5
.2

4
.3

3
.5

5
.8

5
.7

5
.4

4
.3

3
.4

6
.3

6
.4

6
.1

4
.7

3
.7

7
.2

7
.5

7
.2

5
.5

4
.3

8
.1

8
.5

8
.4

6
.4

4
.9

7
.9

8
.4

8
.3

6
.4

4
.9

8
.1

8
.6

8
.6

6
.6

5
.1

8
.4

8
.9

8
.9

6
.9

5
.3

8
.4

8
.9

9
.0

6
.9

5
.4

7
.7

8
.2

8
.3

6
.5

5
.1

8
.1

8
.7

8
.8

6
.8

5
.3

8
.3

8
.8

9
.0

7
.0

5
.4

8
.1

8
.6

8
.8

6
.9

5
.3

7
.8

8
.4

8
.5

6
.7

5
.2

8
.2

8
.8

8
.9

7
.0

5
.5

8
.0

8
.6

8
.8

6
.9

5
.4

7
.8

8
.4

8
.5

6
.6

5
.2

8
.0

8
.5

8
.6

6
.7

5
.2

8
.3

8
.8

8
.9

6
.9

5
.4

7
.8

8
.1

8
.1

6
.4

5
.1

7
.2

7
.4

7
.2

5
.9

4
.9

7
.7

8
.0

7
.8

6
.1

4
.9

8
.3

8
.7

8
.5

6
.7

5
.2

8
.2

8
.5

8
.4

6
.6

5
.2

7
.3

7
.6

7
.6

6
.0

4
.9

7
.4

7
.8

7
.9

6
.4

5
.3

7
.1

7
.5

7
.7

6
.7

5
.8

6
.1

6
.5

6
.8

6
.3

5
.9

4
.6

4
.9

5
.6

5
.8

3
.7

4
.1

4
.9

5
.8

6
.3

3
.5

4
.0

5
.1

6
.5

7
.1

3
.4

3
.9

5
.2

6
.7

7
.5

3
.6

4
.5

5
.1

6
.6

5
.3

2
.0

2
.4

2
.6

2
.4

1
.7

2
.4

3
.3

3
.9

3
.5

2
.6

1
.7

2
.8

4
.2

3
.4

2
.7

2
.8

4
.9

7
.8

6
.8

5
.8

6
.7

8
.0

9
.6

1
1
.5

7
.9

4
.7

4
.2

4
.3

4
.3

4
.6

5
.1

6
.8

6
.2

3
.8

2
.5

1
.7

7
.7

5
.8

3
.4

2
.5

9
.3

7
.5

7
.1

5
.7

4
.6

4
.1

3
.5

3
.0

3
.2

3
.5

4
.1

3
.2

2
.8

2
.5

4
.1

3
.1

6
.1

5
.2

5
.0

4
.8

1
0
.1

1
1
.0

1
0
.9

9
.0

7
.3

1
0
.1

1
0
.5

1
0
.5

8
.8

7
.4

1
0
.0

9
.9

9
.5

8
.2

7
.3

8
.6

8
.3

7
.7

6
.9

6
.4

6
.8

6
.4

5
.9

5
.4

5
.2

5
.2

4
.9

4
.4

4
.2

4
.2

4
.0

3
.7

3
.4

3
.3

3
.4

3
.1

2
.9

2
.7

2
.7

2
.8

2
.6

2
.5

2
.4

2
.4

2
.6

2
.5

2
.4

2
.3

2
.4

2
.5

2
.8

2
.6

2
.4

2
.4

2
.6

3
.2

2
.9

2
.6

2
.5

2
.6

3
.8

3
.3

2
.7

2
.6

2
.6

4
.0

3
.5

2
.7

2
.5

2
.5

3
.7

3
.2

2
.6

2
.4

2
.4

3
.2

2
.8

2
.3

2
.2

2
.3

2
.5

2
.3

2
.0

2
.1

2
.2

2
.0

1
.9

1
.8

1
.9

2
.1

1
.8

1
.7

1
.7

1
.9

2
.2

1
.7

1
.6

1
.7

1
.9

2
.2

1
.7

1
.6

1
.7

1
.9

2
.1

1
.8

1
.7

1
.7

1
.8

2
.1

1
.8

1
.7

1
.7

1
.8

2
.0

1
.9

1
.8

1
.7

1
.8

2
.0

1
.9

1
.8

1
.8

1
.9

2
.1

2
.0

1
.9

1
.8

1
.9

2
.2

2
.1

2
.0

1
.9

2
.0

2
.2

2
.1

2
.0

1
.9

2
.0

2
.2

1
.9

1
.9

1
.8

1
.9

2
.1

1
.8

1
.7

1
.7

1
.8

1
.9

1
.6

1
.5

1
.5

1
.6

1
.8

1
.5

1
.4

1
.4

1
.5

1
.6

1
.3

1
.3

1
.3

1
.4

1
.5

1
.3

1
.3

1
.3

1
.5

1
.4

1
.3

1
.3

1
.5

1
.5

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.6

1
.5

1
.4

1
.5

1
.7

1
.6

1
.5

1
.5

1
.8

1
.6

1
.5

1
.5

1
.7

1
.6

1
.5

1
.5

1
.7

1
.5

1
.4

1
.5

1
.6

1
.5

1
.4

1
.4

1
.5

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.5

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.5

1
.4

1
.3

1
.4

1
.5

1
.4

1
.3

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.3

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.4

1
.5

1
.5

1
.5

1
.5

1
.5

1
.5

1
.5

1
.6

1
.6

1
.6

1
.6

1
.5

1
.8

1
.7

1
.7

1
.6

1
.6

1
.9

1
.9

1
.8

1
.7

1
.6

2
.0

2
.0

1
.9

1
.8

1
.6

2
.1

2
.0

2
.0

1
.8

1
.7

2
.1

2
.1

2
.0

1
.9

1
.7

2
.0

2
.1

2
.1

2
.0

1
.8

2
.1

2
.1

2
.1

2
.0

1
.9

2
.1

2
.2

2
.2

2
.1

2
.0

2
.2

2
.2

2
.3

2
.2

2
.1

2
.2

2
.3

2
.4

2
.3

2
.2

2
.2

2
.3

2
.4

2
.4

2
.2

2
.2

2
.4

2
.6

2
.6

2
.5

2
.2

2
.4

2
.8

2
.9

2
.9

2
.3

2
.5

3
.0

3
.3

3
.3

2
.5

2
.7

3
.3

3
.6

3
.6

2
.5

2
.8

3
.4

3
.6

3
.6

2
.4

2
.7

3
.2

3
.3

3
.3

2
.4

2
.6

3
.0

3
.0

2
.9

2
.3

2
.5

2
.7

2
.7

2
.3

2
.5

2
.6

2
.5

2
.3

2
.4

2
.6

2
.8

2
.6

2
.3

2
.8

3
.0

3
.2

3
.0

2
.7

3
.4

3
.7

3
.9

3
.7

3
.2

4
.1

4
.6

5
.0

4
.6

4
.0

5
.0

5
.7

6
.3

6
.0

4
.9

5
.9

6
.8

7
.6

7
.2

5
.8

6
.4

7
.5

8
.5

8
.1

6
.5

6
.6

7
.7

8
.6

8
.5

7
.1

6
.4

7
.0

9
.1

1
0
.4

9
.0

7
.1

6
.5

6
.4

7
.7

9
.7

1
0
.5

9
.6

7
.3

6
.0

5
.0

7
.1

9
.1

9
.6

8
.9

6
.5

4
.6

3
.9

5
.8

7
.2

7
.4

7
.0

5
.6

3
.7

3
.4

4
.6

5
.3

5
.4

5
.2

4
.4

3
.1

2
.6

3
.4

3
.8

3
.9

3
.7

3
.2

2
.4

1
.9

2
.4

2
.7

2
.7

2
.6

2
.2

1
.7

1
.3

1
.6

1
.8

1
.9

1
.8

1
.5

1
.2

0
.9

1
.1

1
.2

1
.3

1
.2

1
.0

0
.8

0
.6

0
.7

0
.8

0
.9

0
.8

0
.7

0
.6

0
.4

0
.5

0
.5

0
.6

0
.5

0
.5

0
.4

0
.3

0
.3

0
.4

0
.4

0
.4

0
.3

0
.3

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.1

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

9
.3

8
.0

4
.1

4
.4

5
.5

3
.6

2
.3

1
.4

0
.8

0
.5

0
.3

0
.2

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

8
.0

1
0
.7

1
0
.5

9
.2

6
.7

4
.5

2
.9

1
.7

1
.0

0
.6

0
.4

0
.3

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

9
.5

1
3
.1

1
2
.5

1
0
.4

7
.5

5
.2

3
.4

2
.1

1
.2

0
.8

0
.5

0
.3

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

1
0
.3

1
3
.0

1
2
.1

9
.6

6
.9

4
.9

3
.3

2
.2

1
.4

0
.8

0
.5

0
.3

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

1
0
.1

1
2
.2

1
0
.9

8
.5

6
.2

4
.4

3
.0

2
.0

1
.3

0
.8

0
.5

0
.3

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

7
.5

9
.6

8
.3

6
.7

5
.3

3
.7

2
.6

1
.7

1
.2

0
.7

0
.5

0
.3

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

8
.0

6
.6

3
.8

4
.5

4
.0

2
.9

2
.0

1
.3

0
.9

0
.6

0
.4

0
.3

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

6
.2

5
.4

5
.3

6
.7

6
.0

5
.4

9
.5

6
.9

5
.8

5
.3

4
.2

4
.1

4
.5

9
.5

6
.8

4
.7

3
.9

3
.6

4
.0

8
.9

6
.8

7
.4

6
.3

5
.8

5
.1

5
.8

5
.1

5
.7

5
.4

6
.1

5
.3

6
.9

5
.5

6
.1

5
.3

5
.7

4
.5

5
.2

4
.2

4
.7

4
.2

5
.1

4
.6

5
.3

4
.7

4
.3

5
.9

5
.6

5
.4

6
.1

6
.2

6
.1

5
.4

5
.9

4
.3

4
.8

3
.1

3
.5

2
.7

3
.1

2
.3

2
.3

1
.8

1
.9

2
.0

2
.3

2
.5

2
.1

2
.8

3
.0

2
.2

2
.9

3
.2

3
.0

3
.8

3
.4

4
.2

3
.3

4
.1

3
.2

4
.0

2
.8

3
.6

2
.0

2
.7

1
.7

2
.5

2
.8

1
.6

2
.1

2
.4

1
.2

1
.6

1
.9

1
.4

2
.0

2
.0

2
.8

2
.6

3
.3

4
.0

4
.6

5
.1

5
.6

3
.5

5
.5

8
.0

7
.3

6
.3

4
.8

6
.2

7
.2

6
.8

5
.9

6
.4

8
.1

8
.0

6
.4

5
.7

8
.1

9
.6

8
.9

6
.1

4
.9

8
.1

9
.6

8
.7

5
.9

4
.8

6
.7

7
.8

7
.1

5
.5

5
.1

6
.5

6
.6

6
.0

5
.6

5
.7

3
.4

4
.9

6
.8

8
.3

8
.2

7
.0

6
.5

3
.9

6
.0

8
.3

9
.4

9
.4

8
.1

6
.8

4
.4

7
.0

9
.6

1
0
.2

9
.7

7
.7

6
.0

5
.4

7
.8

9
.5

8
.1

6
.9

6
.0

5
.3

5
.7

7
.9

9
.0

6
.5

5
.2

5
.3

5
.6

4
.7

6
.7

7
.3

5
.7

4
.8

5
.0

5
.7

3
.3

4
.5

4
.3

4
.3

4
.5

5
.1

2
.6

3
.1

3
.7

4
.0

4
.7

3
.2

3
.2

3
.3

3
.7

5
.0

5
.3

4
.4

3
.7

3
.4

4
.7

7
.5

5
.6

3
.0

4
.0

7
.7

5
.8

3
.0

4
.2

6
.1

5
.1

3
.1

4
.6

5
.3

4
.7

3
.3

3
.0

4
.1

6
.6

5
.2

3
.0

4
.0

7
.7

5
.8

3
.0

4
.4

6
.9

5
.3

3
.1

4
.5

4
.4

4
.0

3
.1

3
.0

4
.0

2
.6

2
.7

2
.9

3
.2

4
.5

2
.3

2
.7

2
.9

3
.3

3
.8

5
.1

3
.2

4
.4

3
.9

4
.1

4
.3

5
.1

4
.8

7
.1

7
.2

5
.2

4
.8

4
.9

5
.3

6
.2

8
.9

9
.1

6
.1

5
.3

5
.4

5
.8

5
.7

8
.3

8
.6

6
.3

5
.6

5
.7

6
.2

4
.4

6
.4

7
.5

7
.8

7
.5

6
.4

5
.9

3
.5

5
.4

8
.0

1
0
.2

1
0
.1

7
.6

5
.8

3
.3

4
.9

7
.3

9
.0

8
.9

7
.2

5
.9

5
.7

8
.1

7
.8

4
.4

3
.2

5
.1

7
.7

8
.0

5
.5

4
.4

4
.6

7
.4

8
.8

6
.9

6
.9

3
.9

7
.5

1
0
.3

8
.4

8
.9

3
.7

7
.0

1
0
.0

8
.2

8
.6

3
.5

5
.2

7
.0

6
.4

6
.5

3
.3

3
.7

4
.6

4
.7

5
.1

SHEET 6 OF 12

LIGHTING PHOTOMETRICS

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

SKY R
IDGE A

VENUE

C
IR

C
L
E
 E

A
S

T

T
R

A
IN

S
T

A
T
IO

N
 

C
IR

C
LE
 W

E
S
T

T
R

A
IN

S
T
A
T
IO

N
 

C NORTHBOUND LIGHT RAIL TRACKL

C SOUTHBOUND LIGHT RAIL TRACKL

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 76 of 240



SHEET 7 OF 12

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

LIGHTING FIXTURES

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 77 of 240



M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E
S

E
E
 D

W
G
 N

O
. 
2
 /
  

A
S
-2

2
0
0

TO BALLASTTO RAIL

LIGHT, TYP

PEDESTRIAN

RECEPTACLE

TRASH SMV BENCH BSIGNAGE, TYP NEWSPAPER RACKSMV CANOPY TYPE 1 SMV TVM

HYDRANT

GARDEN

SERIES

REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWING

ORNAMENTAL METAL FENCE,

SIGN POLE

HIGHBLOCK

SWITCHBACK CHAIN LINK FENCE

TYPE 1

WINDSCREENCANOPY TYPE 3

TO RAIL TO BALLAST

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E
S

E
E
 D

W
G
 N

O
. 
1
 /
  

A
S
-2

2
0
0

SMV WINDSCREEN TYPE 1

LIGHT, TYP

PEDESTRIAN

RECEPTACLE

TRASHSIGNAGE, TYP

TELEPHONE

EMERGENCYTVM SMVBENCH B, TYP CANOPY TYPE 3

TYPE 3

CANOPY

TYPE 1

WINDSCREENBENCH B

SERIES

REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWING

ORNAMENTAL METAL FENCE,

CHAIN LINK FENCE

C
O

N
S
T
R

U
C
T
IO

N

N
O
T
 F

O
R

P
R
E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y

SHEET 8 OF 12

EAST PLATFORM ELEVATION

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 78 of 240



TO RAIL TO BALLAST

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E

S
E

E
 D

W
G
 N

O
. 
2
 /
  

A
S
-2

2
0
1

SMVSMVSIGNAGE, TYP

LIGHT, TYP

PEDESTRIANSMVTVMSIGN POLE

HYDRANT

GARDEN

SERIES

REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWING

ORNAMENTAL METAL FENCE,

CANOPY TYPE 1 CANOPY TYPE 3 BENCH B

BENCH A

CANOPY TYPE 3WINDSCREEN TYPE 1

HIGHBLOCK

SWITCHBACK

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E
S

E
E
 D

W
G
 N

O
. 
1
 /
  

A
S
-2

2
0
1

TO RAILTO BALLAST

SMV

LIGHT, TYP

PEDESTRIAN

TELEPHONE

EMERGENCY SIGNAGE, TYP SMV TRASH RECEPTACLE

TYPE 3

CANOPY

TYPE 1

WINDSCREENBENCH B

SERIES

REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWING

ORNAMENTAL METAL FENCE,

SIGN POLE

SHEET 9 OF 12

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

WEST PLATFORM ELEVATION

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 79 of 240



STONE MONUMENT WITH CONCRETE CAP

ORNAMENTAL FENCE

4" COLORADO ROSE STRIP STONE

COLORADO ROSE SANDSTONE VENEER

"
43

1
'-
8

AGGREGATE BASE COURSE

4' OVEREXCAVATION & IMPORTED

SUBGRADE; SEE GEOTECH REPORT.

LANDSCAPE PLANTING

CURB ADJACENT TO

PLANTING HOLD SOIL

 2" BELOW CURB TOP

OF CURB

SIDEWALK STREET

LEVEL

SIDEWALK PLATFORM

LEVEL

1

30

LEDGE ON FOUNDATION TO SUPPORT

FIRST COURSE OF STRIP STONE

LEDGE ON FOUNDATION  TO SUPPORT

FIRST COURSE OF STRIP STONE

"
43

2
'-
0

1
'-
7
"

"
4
3

1'-3
1'-7"

LED STRIP LIGHT CONTINUOUS

AT BASE OF WALL

2
'

SLOPE TYP.

2% MAX 

2%  MAX SLOPE TYP.

4
"

6
"

EDGE OF RETAINING WALL

EDGE OF PILASTER

4" COLORADO ROSE STRIP STONE

1'-9"

"
21

1
'-
4

REQUIREMENTS

SEE SPECS FOR TOPSOIL 

2'-6" TOPSOIL

WALL DRAIN SEE

DRAINAGE DRAWINGS

1" DIA. PVC WEEP HOLE  AT

5' O.C., 3" ABOVE SOIL.

RECESS PVC 1" FROM WALL

SURFACE WRAP INSIDE END

WITH GEOTEXTILE FABRIC.

CAST IN PLACE RETAINING WALL

SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

FOR BACKFILL REQUIREMENTS

3" THICK X 1'-7" MASONVILLE BUFF

SANDSTONE CAP

1'-9"

VARIES

SIDEWALK STREET

LEVEL

1

30

LANDSCAPE PLANTING

COLORADO STRIP STONE

3" MASONVILLE BUFF SANDSTONE CAP

24" MIN. LENGTHS

COLORADO ROSE SANDSTONE VENEER

12" X 12" X 1" CUT TO FIT BATTER INCREASE

HORIZONTAL DIMENSION AS NEED TO ALLOW

FOR 2 PIECES ON FRONT SIDE WITH VERTICAL

JOINT CENTERED ON MONUMENT.

SIDEWALK PLATFORM

LEVEL

V
A

R
IE

S
1
'-
4
"

3
"

"
43

2
'-
0

"
43

1
'-
8

1'-9"

MONUMENT +/- 40' ON CENTER

SEE PLANS FOR LOCATIONS

LED STRIP LIGHT MOUNTED TO BOTTOM

OF WALL CAP TYP.

ORNAMENTAL FENCE WITH CUSTOM

ART PANEL

PANEL

CUSTOM ART

"
4
1

3

RECESSED STONE MEDALLION

PRECAST OR CAST ON SITE CONCRETE CAP

HAND RUBBED FINISH DAVIS COLOR DUNE

SUBMIT FULL SIZE SAMPLE FOR APPROVAL

PRIOR TO FABRICATION OF ALL CAPS.

LED STRIP LIGHT CONTINUOUS

AT BASE OF WALL

CURB ADJACENT TO

PLANTING

PANEL

CUSTOM ART

6
"

1'-9"

COLORADO ROSE SANDSTONE VENEER

12" X 12" X 1" CUT TO FIT BATTER

3" MASONVILLE BUFF SANDSTONE CAP

STONE  MONUMENT WITH CONCRETE CAP

SIDEWALK PLATFORM

LEVEL

1
'-
4
"

3
"

"
43

2
'-
0

"
43

1
'-
8

1'-9"

1

3
"

30

2"

COLORADO ROSE SANDSTONE VENEER

PATHWAY LIGHT IN PILASTER

SEE LIGHTING PLAN

PANEL

CUSTOM ART

PANEL

CUSTOM ART

ORNAMENTAL FENCE WITH

CUSTOM ART PANEL

"
4
1

3

1
SKY RIDGE FEATURE WALL - SECTION 

SCALE: 3/4"=1'

2
SKY RIDGE FEATURE WALL - STREET LEVEL ELEVATION 

SCALE: 3/4"=1'

3
SKY RIDGE FEATURE WALL - PLATFORM LEVEL ELEVATION

SCALE: 3/4"=1'

SHEET 10 OF 12

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

WALL ELEVATIONS

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 80 of 240



TYP.

SIDEWALK AT

PLATFORM LEVEL

TOP OF STAIRS

2' WALL HEIGHT AT

1"1'

1
2" RADIUS

(TYP.)

6
"

9.5° "
43

2
'-
1
0

1'-1"

"
41

3
'-
1

2% WASH

#4 REBAR AT 12" O.C.

BOTH WAYS  AT NOSE

1 12" CLEAR (TYP.)

#4 REBAR AT 12" O.C.

BOTH WAYS (TYP.)

"
43

2
'-
1
0

2% WASH TYP.

6
"

"
41

3
'-
1

3
4" RADIUS TYP.

9
"

3
'-
0
" 

M
IN
. 
T

Y
P
.

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC

AGGREGATE BASE COURSE

4' OVEREXCAVATION & IMPORTED SUBGRADE;

SEE GEOTECH REPORT.

6
" 

T
Y

P
. "

43
2
'-
1
0

"
41

3
'-
1

1
2" EXPANSION JOINT

WITH SEALANT TYP.

1 12" DIA. STAINLESS STEEL RAILING

MOUNTED TO WALL

COLORADO ROSE STRIP STONE WALL

WITH MASONVILLE SANDSTONE CAP

WALL IS A STRAIGHT RUN FROM BOTTOM OF

STAIRS TO TOP OF STAIRS ESTABLISH TOP

AND BOTTOM ELEVATION REQUIREMENTS

TO DETERMINE POINT ELEVATIONS ALONG

WALL.

BOTTOM OF STAIRS

3' WALL HEIGHT AT

1'-3"

BS ELEV.=5992.54

SEE GRADING PLAN

"
21

2
'-
1
1

SIDEWALK AT

STREET LEVEL

CONCRETE LEDGE TO SUPPORT FIRST COURSE OF SANDSTONE FACING

LEDGE SHALL BE FLUSH WITH STONE FACING 12" CHAMFER ON ALL EDGES

ADJACENT TO STONE WORK FINISH CONCRETE WITH HAND RUBBED FINISH

(
T

Y
P
.)

3
" 

TYP.

ELEV.= 5993.69

SEE GRADING PLAN

SIDEWALK AT

STREET LEVEL

BOTTOM OF STAIRS

3' WALL HEIGHT AT

  

1'-3"

3
'

9
"

"
41

3
'-
1

1
2" EXPANSION JOINT

WITH SEALANT (TYP.)

1 12" DIA. STAINLESS STEEL RAILING

MOUNTED TO WALL

"
43

2
'-
1
0

COLORADO ROSE STRIP STONE WALL

WITH MASONVILLE SANDSTONE CAP

WALL IS A STRAIGHT RUN FROM BOTTOM OF

STAIRS TO TOP OF STAIRS ESTABLISH TOP

AND BOTTOM ELEVATION REQUIREMENTS

TO DETERMINE POINT ELEVATIONS ALONG

WALL.

3
4" RADIUS TYP.

"
41

3
'-
1

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC

AGGREGATE BASE COURSE

4' OVEREXCAVATION & IMPORTED SUBGRADE;

SEE GEOTECH REPORT.

2% WASH TYP.

"
43

2
'-
1
0

6
"

1
2" RADIUS (TYP.)

1'1"

9
.5
°

TOP OF STAIRS

2' WALL HEIGHT AT

"
41

3
'-
1

2% WASH

#4 REBAR AT 12" O.C.

BOTH WAYS  AT NOSE

1 12" CLEAR (TYP.)

#4 REBAR AT 12" O.C.

BOTH WAYS (TYP.)

1'-1"

"
43

2
'-
1
0

SIDEWALK AT

PLATFORM LEVEL

CONCRETE LEDGE TO SUPPORT FIRST COURSE OF SANDSTONE FACING

LEDGE SHALL BE FLUSH WITH STONE FACING 12" CHAMFER ON ALL EDGES

ADJACENT TO STONE WORK FINISH CONCRETE WITH HAND RUBBED FINISH

(
T

Y
P
.)

3
" 

"
21

1
'-
9

6
"

3
'-
0
" 

M
IN
. 
(

T
Y

P
.)

1
SKY RIDGE SECTION AT NORTH GRAND STAIR FACING NORTH

"=1'2
1SCALE: 

2
SKY RIDGE SECTION AT SOUTH GRAND STAIR FACING SOUTH

"=1'2
1SCALE: 

T
R

A
IN

S
T
A
T
IO

N
 C
IR
.

W
E
S
T
 

KISS-N-RIDE

DROP-OFF

RAILING KEY MAP

AVE.
SKY 

RI
DG

E 

14
13

1414

1415

14
16

T
R

A
IN

S
T
A
T
IO

N
 C
IR
.

W
E
S
T
 

KISS-N-RIDE

DROP-OFF

RAILING KEY MAP

AVE.
SKY 

RI
DG

E 

14
13

1414

1415

14
16

SHEET 11 OF 12

STANDARD COLOR GRAY CONCRETE. 7.

MEDIUM BROOM FINISH PERPENDICULAR TO STEP DIRECTION.6.

TO MATCH ADJACENT CONCRETE.

JOINT SEALANT SHALL BE A SILICONE THAT IS ON THE CDOT APPROVED PRODUCTS LIST. COLOR 5.

PREFORMED JOINT FILLER SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF AASHTO M-213.4.

PRODUCTS LIST. 

EPOXY ADHESIVE SHALL BE AN ANCHORING ADHESIVE THAT IS IN THE CDOT APPROVED 3.

" COVER.2
1REINFORCEMENT SHALL HAVE 1 

ALL REINFORCEMENT SHALL HAVE 2" COVER UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. STAIR NOSE 2.

ALL REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE EPOXY-COATED.1.

 GENERAL NOTES:

STANDARD COLOR GRAY CONCRETE. 7.

MEDIUM BROOM FINISH PERPENDICULAR TO STEP DIRECTION.6.

MATCH ADJACENT CONCRETE.PRODUCTS LIST. COLOR TO 

JOINT SEALANT SHALL BE A SILICONE THAT IS ON THE CDOT APPROVED 5.

OF AASHTO M-213.

PREFORMED JOINT FILLER SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS 4.

LIST. CDOT APPROVED PRODUCTS 

EPOXY ADHESIVE SHALL BE AN ANCHORING ADHESIVE THAT IS IN THE 3.

" COVER.2
1REINFORCEMENT SHALL HAVE 1 OTHERWISE. STAIR NOSE 

ALL REINFORCEMENT SHALL HAVE 2" COVER UNLESS NOTED 2.

ALL REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE EPOXY-COATED.1.

 GENERAL NOTES:

PLATFORM LEVEL

SIDEWALK AT 

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

GRAND STAIR DETAILS

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 81 of 240



BS ELEV.=6000.41

SEE GRADING PLAN

TS ELEV.=6002.41

SEE GRADING PLAN

1 12" DIA. STAINLESS STEEL RAILING

BOTH SIDES

SET HANDRAIL POSTS IN CONCRETE AFTER CONCRETE HAS CURED

CORE DRILL 2 12" DIA. HOLE 4"  EPOXY EMBEDMENT KEEP HANDRAIL CLEAR

OF REBAR 2" MIN.

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC

4' OVEREXCAVATION & IMPORTED

SUBGRADE; SEE GEOTECH REPORT.

AGGREGATE BASE COURSE

"
43

2
'-
1
1

1'-1"

2
'-
1
0
"

1'

3
'-
1
"

BOTTOM OF STAIRS

" WALL HEIGHT AT2
12'-6

TYP.

2% WASH

#4 REBAR AT 12" O.C. BOTH WAYS

AT NOSE 1 12" CLEAR (TYP.)

#4 REBAR AT 12" O.C.

BOTH WAYS (TYP.)

3
4" RADIUS TYP.

1
2" EXPANSION JOINT

WITH SEALANT TYP.

COLORADO ROSE STRIP STONE

WALL WITH MASONVILLE

SANDSTONE CAP WALL IS A STRAIGHT

RUN FROM BOTTOM OF

STAIRS TO TOP OF STAIRS ESTABLISH

TOP AND BOTTOM ELEVATION

REQUIREMENTS TO DETERMINE POINT

ELEVATIONS ALONG WALL.

STREET LEVEL

PLAZA PAVING

TOP OF STAIRS

" WALL HEIGHT AT2
11'-9

1"1'

1
2" RADIUS

(TYP.)

6
"9.

5°

9
"

3
'-
0
" 

M
IN
. 
T

Y
P
.

CONCRETE LEDGE TO SUPPORT FIRST

COURSE OF SANDSTONE FACING

LEDGE SHALL BE FLUSH WITH STONE

FACING 12" CHAMFER ON ALL EDGES

ADJACENT TO STONE WORK FINISH

CONCRETE WITH HAND RUBBED FINISH.

(
T

Y
P
.)

3
" 

"
21

1
'-
9

6
"

"
21

1
'-
9

6" VERTICAL CURB FOLLOWS GRADE

OF STAIRS

TO STATION PLATFORM

STATION MONUMENT

LANDSCAPE PLANTING

TO STREET LEVEL

ELEV. = 6002.75

SEE GRADING PLAN

STATION

SKY RIDGE

CONCRETE FOOTING

4' OVEREXCAVATION &

IMPORTED SUBGRADE;

SEE GEOTECH REPORT.

AGGREGATE BASE COURSE

#4 AT 12" O.C. EACH WAY

2" CHAMFER

SLOPE FOUNDATION AT 2%

MORTAR SETTING BED

CONCRETE FILLED CMU CORE

FINSHED GRADE

COLORADO ROSE SANDSTONE LEDGE 8" MINIMUM LENGTHS

1
8" x 1" X            STEEL STRAP LOCATE  AT 6" O.C. 2 MIN. PRE STONE, SECURE

TO BACK OF STONE AND CMU CORE WITH 316" X 1 34" HILTI KWIK-CON II+ FASTENERS

OR APPROVED EQUAL, 6 PER STRAP.

5
"

5
"

"2
11

2" THICK COLORADO ROSE SANDSTONE SLAB CUT TO FIT MONUMENT 4 SLABS PER SIDE

CENTER MIDDLE JOINT ON MONUMENT OUTSIDE JOINTS SHALL BE SPACED EQUALLY

FROM CENTER OF MONUMENT.

1
8" x 1" STEEL Z-TIES FABRICATE AS NEEDED LOCATE  AT 6" O.C. 2 MIN. PRE STONE,

SECURE TO BACK OF STONE AND CMU CORE WITH 316" X 1 34" HILTI KWIK-CON II+

FASTENERS OR APPROVED EQUAL, 2 PER STRAP.

2" RED SANDSTONE CAP RUNS CONTINUOUS ALONG TOP OF MONUMENT,

ALL VISIBLE EDGES SHALL HAVE SPLIT FACE FINISH, NO CLEAN SAWN

VISIBLE EDGES WILL BE ACCEPTED.

4" COLORADO ROSE STRIPSTONE FACING

ADJUSTABLE STONE ANCHORING SYSTEM

SUBMIT  PRODUCT INFORMATION FOR APPROVAL

#5 AT 18" O.C. EACH WAY. UTILIZE NOCK OUTS IN CMU BLOCKS FOR REBAR

PLACEMENT AS SHOWN.

1
8" x 1" X            STEEL STRAP LOCATE  AT 6" O.C. 2 MIN. PRE STONE, SECURE TO BACK

OF STONE WITH 316" X 1 34" HILTI KWIK-CON II+ FASTENERS OR APPROVED EQUAL,

3 PER STRAP. EMBED LOOP IN MORTARED CELL OF CMU.

5
"

7" ARIAL FONT STAINLESS STEEL LETTING MOUNT TO MONUMENT WITH STAINLESS

STEEL STUDS WELDED TO BACK OF LETTERING, EPOXY EMBED IN MONUMENT CORE

4" MIN PENETRATION.

"
41

4

"
41

3
'-
9

6
"

2
'

6
"

4
'-
5
"

"
21

6

"
21

1
'-
2

2" REVEAL

"
2
1

3

8'

3" CLEAR (TYP.)

1"

"2
11

5
"

1
8" x 1" STEEL ANGLE STRAP FABRICATE AS NEEDED LOCATE  AT 6" O.C.  2 MIN. PRE STONE,

SECURE TO BACK OF STONE AND CMU CORE WITH 316" X 1 34" HILTI KWIK-CON II+

FASTENERS OR APPROVED EQUAL, 4 PER STRAP.

3
'

3'-
5"

3'-5"

"
4
1

6'-10

OVERHANG

Y RIDGE

TION

C
L

SKY RIDGE SECTION AT SECONDARY STAIR FACING NORTH

1

SKY RIDGE ELEVATION AT SECONDARY STAIR FACING SOUTH

2

STANDARD COLOR GRAY CONCRETE. 7.

DIRECTION.

MEDIUM BROOM FINISH PERPENDICULAR TO STEP 6.

CONCRETE.

APPROVED PRODUCTS LIST. COLOR TO MATCH ADJACENT 

JOINT SEALANT SHALL BE A SILICONE THAT IS ON THE CDOT 5.

REQUIREMENTS OF AASHTO M-213.

PREFORMED JOINT FILLER SHALL CONFORM TO THE 4.

IS IN THE CDOT APPROVED PRODUCTS LIST. 

EPOXY ADHESIVE SHALL BE AN ANCHORING ADHESIVE THAT 3.

COVER.

" 2
1OTHERWISE. STAIR NOSE REINFORCEMENT SHALL HAVE 1 

ALL REINFORCEMENT SHALL HAVE 2" COVER UNLESS NOTED 2.

ALL REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE EPOXY-COATED.1.

 GENERAL NOTES:

SKY RIDGE MONUMENT

3

  

SHEET 12 OF 12

SECONDARY STAIR DETAILS

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15 FILING 17

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

(SKY RIDGE STATION)

SP16-09R

2.438 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #2
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 82 of 240



Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station
Site Plan

SKY RIDGE AVENUE

TRAINSTATION CIRCLE

TR
A

IN
S

TA
TI

O
N

 C
IR

C
LE

Southbound Rail

Northbound Rail

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 83 of 240



design group
BRITINA

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

P: 303.456.2887

DENVER, CO 80202

1615 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 411

GRAPHIC TITLE

DENVER, CO 80202

475 17TH STREET, SUITE 720

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 84 of 240

josh
Image

josh
Rectangle

josh
Image

josh
Text Box
Canopy and Platform Materials

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Image

josh
Image

josh
Snapshot

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Image

josh
Rectangle

josh
Text Box
Pre-Finished Standing Seam

josh
Text Box
Berridge Shasta White

josh
Text Box
Canopy Roof

josh
Text Box
Painted/Pre-Finished Metal

josh
Text Box
Black RAL 9005

josh
Text Box
Windscreen Structure and Panels,Railings, Benches, Light Poles,Trash Receptacles

josh
Text Box
Painted/Pre-Finished Metal

josh
Text Box
Tactile Warning Strip

josh
Text Box
Tnemec White 00WH

josh
Text Box
Canopy StructureVMSCanopy Deck

josh
Text Box
Federal Standard #33538 

josh
Text Box
Concrete

josh
Text Box
Medium Broom Finish

josh
Text Box
Platform, Plaza, Sidewalks

josh
Text Box
Stone Veneer

josh
Text Box
Colorado Rose Sandstone, Buff Finish

josh
Text Box
Canopy Column Bases

josh
Text Box
Stone Veneer

josh
Text Box
Colorado Sandstone, Buff Finish 

josh
Text Box
Canopy Column Bases

josh
Text Box
Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station



design group
BRITINA

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

P: 303.456.2887

DENVER, CO 80202

1615 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 411

GRAPHIC TITLE

DENVER, CO 80202

475 17TH STREET, SUITE 720

Wall Details
04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 85 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 86 of 240



 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

Project Summary 
 

 
Date:   April 19, 2016 City Council Meeting 
 
 
Project Name: Lone Tree City Center Station  
  
 
Location: The site is located east of I-25 and approximately 1,700 feet north 

of RidgeGate Parkway. 
 
 
Project Type / #: Site Improvement Plan SP16-10R 
 
 
Staff Contacts: Kelly First, Community Development Department Director 
  
  
Meeting Type: Public Meeting  
 
 
Summary of Request:  Site Improvement Plan approval for the City Center Station 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: 
  
 Unanimous approval, with one condition. 
  
Suggested Action:  
 Approval, subject to one condition noted in staff report.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 87 of 240



 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
 
DATE:  April 13, 2016 
 
FOR:  April 19, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: Lone Tree City Center Station  
 Site Improvement Plan SP16-10R 
  
 
 

Owner Representative 

RidgeGate Investments, Inc 
Keith Simon 
10270 Commonwealth Street 
Lone Tree, CO 80124 
720-279-2581 

Regional Transportation District 
Nathan Herman 
1600 Blake Street 
Denver, CO 80202 
303-628-9000 

 
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date: April 12, 2016 
City Council Meeting Date:    April 19, 2016      
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
A. REQUEST: 

 
Approval of a Site Improvement Plan (SIP) for the Lone Tree City Center Light Rail 
Station.  
 
 
LOCATION: 

 
 The site is located east of I-25 and approximately 1,700 feet north of RidgeGate 

Parkway. 
 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 88 of 240



        
Vicinity Map 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B. SITE CHARACTERISTICS: 
 

The site has no distinctive topographical or vegetative features. The site and 
surrounding area are currently undeveloped. As part of the Southeast Extension project, 
RTD prepared an Environmental Assessment, which resulted in a Finding of No 
Significant Impact.  
 

 
C. SERVICE PROVIDERS:   
 
  Water:   Parker Water District 
  Sanitation:  Parker Sanitation District 
  Police:   Lone Tree Police 
  Fire:   South Metro Fire Rescue Authority 
  Metro District:  Rampart Range Metropolitan District 
 
 
D. BACKGROUND: 

 
The 2.3 mile-long southeast extension project, from Lincoln Avenue to RidgeGate 
Parkway, is part of the RTD’s 2004 voter-approved FasTracks Program. The Southeast 
Line includes 19.1 miles extending from I-25/Broadway to Lincoln Avenue, with an 
additional connection along I-225 from I-25 to Parker Road. Construction on the 
extension is expected to begin this spring with service beginning in 2019. When 
completed, residents will be able to travel from the RidgeGate station on the new R Line 
through Aurora to Peoria Station and connect to the commuter train to Denver 
International Airport. They will be able to travel from RidgeGate to Union Station on the 
E Line and from RidgeGate to 18th and California in downtown Denver on the F Line.  
 
This SIP is one of three station SIPs that comprise the RTD Southeast Rail Extension 
project. Additional stations are Sky Ridge (SP16-09R) and RidgeGate (SP16-11R).   

N 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 89 of 240



 
In January of 2015, City staff and members of the RTD design team presented an 
overview of the project to the Planning Commission and City Council. The purpose of the 
work sessions was to seek feedback about key design elements and address them 
prior to the project going out for bid, thereby reducing the need for potentially 
costly changes later on. Comments regarding aesthetic elements like canopies, 
walls, fencing and landscaping were provided and have been incorporated into 
SIP.  In March, 2016, RTD again provided an overview of the stations to the 
Planning Commission and City Council, in anticipation of the SIPs coming before 
the City Council for action in April.  

 
 
E. DESCRIPTION: 
 

Zoning.  The site is zoned Planned Development (PD) 
under the RidgeGate Planned Development 4th Amendment. 
The proposed use is in conformance with zoning, and is 
located within the City Center Planning Area #19.  
 
A sub-area plan for the property is currently being 
developed by the owner, with participation by the City of 
Lone Tree staff. The sub-area plan will incorporate the 
station design and provide guidance for how the surrounding 
City Center area will be developed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 90 of 240



Site Design. The initial scope of this station is limited only to the platform on either side 
of the light rail tracks. Lighting, cameras and windscreens/benches will be provided on 
the platform to create a safe and inviting environment. Other station features including 
transition plazas, multi-modal interfaces and pedestrian amenities will be added as the 
adjacent areas develop. Build-out of the station as part of the future overall development 
of the City Center creates a unique opportunity to foster an integrated, compact, mixed-
use environment.  
 
 

Site Plan 
 

 
 
 

F. REFERRALS:    
 
The project was sent on referral to all key agencies and subscribers to the City’s referral 
list. All responses of substance are attached.  
 

 
G. PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 

 
The following excerpt is taken directly from the DRAFT minutes of the April 12, 2016 
Planning Commission Meeting: 
 
Chair Kirchner opened the discussion on the City Center Station. 
 
Commissioner Rodriquez and Steele inquired about access to the City Center 
station. Mr. Herman responded that the City Center station was part of the 
project, and needed to be open with access on opening day; however, it was built 
in anticipation of future growth. However, due to FTA funding requirements, RTD 
might have to create a road to the station if development did not occur prior to 

N
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 91 of 240



opening. There will also be an IGA with the City that states if all parties are in 
agreement that access is not necessary, then a road will may not be built.  
 
Commissioner Spencer inquired about any conflict between the helicopter that 
comes to Sky Ridge hospital and the bridge crossing I-25. The only difference 
between this bridge and Lincoln is the contact wire about 20 feet above the 
bridge. Mr. Cotten responded that the buildings at Sky Ridge were much taller.  
 
Commissioner Dodgen moved to recommend the City Center Station SIP subject 
to the following condition: 
 

1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of Lone Tree 
Public Works approval. 
 

Commissioner Steele seconded, and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 

H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the 
Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the 
RidgeGate PDD, 4th Amendment. 

 
Staff recommends approval of the SIP, subject to the following condition: 

 
1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of 

Lone Tree Public Works approval. 
 
 

 
I. ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Letter of Authorization 
2. Development Application 
3. Narrative & Statement of Design Intent 
4. Referral Comments  
5. SIP 
6. Renderings 

 
END 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 92 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 93 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 94 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 95 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 96 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 97 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 98 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 99 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 100 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 101 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 102 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 103 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 104 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 105 of 240



P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

COVER

March 18, 2016

SIP SHEET INDEX

SITE PLAN 03/18/16

Sheet NameN
U

M
B

E
R

Sheet Issue Date

03/18/16GRADING PLAN

03/18/16SITE FURNISHINGS

03/18/16

03/18/16

03/18/16

03/18/16

PHOTOMETRICS PLAN

LIGHTING FIXTURES

EAST PLATFORM ELEVATION

WEST PLATFORM ELEVATION

03/18/16SITE FURNISHINGS

Vicinity Map

*

IN
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E
 2

5

RIDGEGATE PARKWAY

(LONE TREE CITY CENTER  STATION)

SP16-10R

1.423 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #3
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

Southeast Rail Extension - Lone Tree City Center Station

OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST 

PLAN OR SUB-AREA PLAN.

OTHERWISE BE ADDRESSED IN AN APPROVED DEVELOPMENT 

PARKING, SIGNAGE AND OUTDOOR STORAGE, EXCEPT AS MAY 

INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO MAINTENANCE, LIGHTING, 

APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS OF THE LONE TREE ZONING CODE, 

STANDARD NOTE: THE PROPERTY HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL 

1 of 8

2 of 8

3 of 8

4 of 8

5 of 8

6 of 8

7 of 8

8 of 8

APPROVAL CERTIFICATE

ADA REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET.

BEEN SATISFIED. THE APPLICANT IS RESPONSIBLE TO ENSURE THAT SAID 

REQUIREMENTS OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) HAVE 

APPROVAL BY THE CITY OF LONE TREE DOES NOT SIGNIFY THAT THE 

(NOTARY PUBLIC)

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL.

                 , 20     , BY                                                                      .

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS       DAY OF

COUNTY OF

STATE OF

(PRINTED NAME AND TITLE)

(SIGNATURE OF OWNER)

(NAME OF OWNER)

CORPORATE AUTHORIZATIONS, HAVE BEEN OBTAINED.

AUTHORIZATIONS TO ENTER THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING ANY 

REPRESENTATIVE(S) BELOW INDICATE THAT ANY REQUIRED 

SHALL ALSO BE BOUND. THE SIGNATURES OF THE OWNERS(S)'(S) 

THAT (2) THE HEIRS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS OF THE OWNER(S) 

COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 16 OF THE LONE TREE MUNICIPAL CODE AND 

ACCORDANCE WITH THIS APPROVED SITE IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND IN 

TO DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IN 

THE OWNER(S) OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED HEREIN, HEREBY AGREE(S) (1) 

DATE:

TITLE:   MAYOR

NAME:

BY:

DATE:

TITLE:   CITY ENGINEER

NAME:

BY:

DATE:

TITLE:   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

NAME:

BY:

ACCORD WITH CITY REGULATIONS, AS APPROVED BY THE CITY ON (DATE).

THIS SIP HAS BEEN REVIEWED AND FOUND TO BE COMPLETE AND IN 

)

)

) ss.
      

CONTACT: MICHAEL KIEFER

P: 303.781.9590

DENVER, CO 80211

2000 CLAY STREET, SUITE 200

YEH AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING

CONTACT: ALAN WISKUS

P: 720.481.3290

GREENWOOD VILLAGE, COLORADO 80111                            

5105 DTC PARKWAY, SUITE 420 

PK ELECTRICAL, INC.

LIGHTING AND ELECTRICAL DESIGN

CONTACT: STEVE HAKES

P: 303.953.9014

LITTLETON, CO 80120

801 WEST MINERAL AVENUE, SUITE 200

SAN ENGINEERING LLC

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING

CONTACT: CHRIS COOPER   

P: 303.456.2887  

DENVER, CO  80202

1615 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 411

BRITINA DESIGN GROUP

LANDSCAPE DESIGN

CONTACT: TARA BURKE

P: 720.855.7572

DENVER, CO 80202

475 17TH STREET, SUITE 720

IRON HORSE ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

CONTACT: KAREN CREAMER

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

WSP|PARSONS BRINCKERHOFF

LEAD DESIGN FIRM

CONTACT: ANDY MUTZ

P: 303.299.6965

DENVER, CO 80202

1560 BROADWAY 

SOUTHEAST RAIL EXTENSION 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT  

APPLICANT

CONTACT: KEITH SIMON

P: 720.279.2581

LONE TREE, CO 80124

10270 COMMONWEALTH STREET, SUITE B

RIDGEGATE INVESTMENTS, INC.

OWNER

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 106 of 240



CH

P
C

C

20 40 600

SCALE  IN  FEET

SHEET 1 OF 8

SITE PLAN

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Lone Tree City Center Station

(LONE TREE CITY CENTER  STATION)

SP16-10R

1.423 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #3
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST 

C NORTHBOUND LIGHT RAIL TRACKL

C SOUTHBOUND LIGHT RAIL TRACKL

1
4
.0

0
'

400.00'

2
0
.0

0
'

2
0
.0

0
'

1
4
.4

2
'

1
4
.0

0
'

5
3
.5

8
'

5
0
.0

0
'

MAINTENANCE ACCESS DRIVE

SAFE DISPERSAL AREA (6" ABC SURFACING)

RACK (TYP)

NEWSPAPER 

CURB CUT, TYP

ADA PEDESTRIAN

TYP

CANOPY TYPE 1, 

HIGHBLOCK AND

SIGNAGE, TYP
SMV, TYP

DRAWING SERIES C-109

RTD STANDARD

LINK FENCE, REFER TO

INTERTRACK CHAIN

AND BENCHES, TYP

WITH WINDSCREENS

CANOPY TYPE 3

STRIP, TYP

WARNING

DETECTABLEBENCH A, TYP
TVM, TYP

CROSSING, TYP

STATION AT-GRADE 

GARDEN HYDRANT, TYP

TRASH RECEPTACLE, TYP DOOR MARKER, TYP
OCS POLE, TYP

REQUIRED LANDSCAPED AREA)

NATURAL AREAS (NOT INCLUDED IN THE 

INTERIOR PARKING ISLANDS, TRAILS AND WALKS

LANDSCAPED AREA (EXCLUDING PLANTED 

PARKING ISLANDS)

PARKING/ROADS (INCLUDING PLANTED INTERIOR 

BUILDING FOOTPRINT

AREA IN ARTICLE XXXVI)

TOTAL FLOOR AREA (SEE DEFINITION OF FLOOR 

BUILDING CODE)

MAXIMUM HEIGHT (AS MEASURED BY THE CITY'S 

PROVIDED

REQUIRED

PROVIDED

REQUIRED

ITEM

ITEM

ITEM

FOOTAGE

SQUARE 

SQUARE FOOTAGE

N/A 

N/A 

100%

PARKING

BICYCLE PARKING

GROSS SITE AREA 100%

SPACES REQUIRED

0%

N/A 

N/A 

0

0

0

0 (KISS N RIDE PER EIA)

61,986

BUILDING SIZE

SITE

% OF GROSS 

0%

61,986

0 0%

PD ZONING - CITY CENTER (C/C)

UNPLATTED

UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY

PD ZONING - CITY CENTER (C/C)

UNPLATTED

UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY

PROPOSED ROW, TYP

EASEMENT, TYP

PROPOSED DRAINAGE 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 107 of 240



6
0
2
5

60
25

6030

6
0
3
0

60
30

60
35

6
0
3
5

6
0
3
5

6040

6
0
4
0

6040

6045

6
0
4
5

6050

CH

P
C

C

6030

6030

6035

6035

6035

6035

6035

6035

6
0
3
5

6035

6035

604
0

6045

6035

6035

6035

6035

60
35

6
0
3
5

6035

6030

6035

60
40

6045

865+00863+00 864+00 866+00 867+00 868+00

865+00864+00 866+00 867+00 868+00

20 40 600

SCALE  IN  FEET

FOR PLATFORM FURNISHINGS/DETAILSARCHITECTURAL PLANS 

LONE TREE CITY CENTER STATION PLATFORMS - SEE 

C NB TRACKL

C SB TRACKL

 12800 SF EMERGENCY EGRESS AREA - 6" ABC 

14' ACCESS DRIVE

OVERALL GRADING PLAN

SHEET 2 OF 8

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Lone Tree City Center Station

(LONE TREE CITY CENTER  STATION)

SP16-10R

1.423 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #3
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 108 of 240



SITE FURNISHINGS

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Lone Tree City Center Station

(LONE TREE CITY CENTER  STATION)

SP16-10R

1.423 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #3
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST 

SHEET 3 OF 8

ELECTRICAL DRAWING SERIES

GROUNDING DETAILS IN

GROUNDING CONNECTION. SEE

TO BACK OF BENCH LEG FOR

1"X1"X1/4" STEEL TAB WELDED

RB-12 W/ ANTI-SLEEP RAIL

VICTOR STANLEY STEELSITES

RTD STANDARD BENCH -

ANCHOR, TYP

1/2" SST EXPANSION

BENCH A SIDE ELEVATION

"
8

5
1
'-
5

DUMOR BENCH WITHOUT BACK

BENCH A FRONT ELEVATION

DUMOR BENCH WITHOUT BACK

BENCH A PLAN

DUMOR BENCH WITH BACK

BENCH B FRONT ELEVATION

DUMOR BENCH WITH BACK

BENCH B PLAN

BENCH B SIDE ELEVATION

"
2

1
1
'-
5

LITTER RECEPTACLE ELEVATION

LITTER RECEPTACLE PLAN

LITTER RECEPTACLE GROUNDING CONNECTION

PREFINISHED METAL

CLEAR ACRYLIC

PREFINISHED METAL FRAME

PREFINISHED METAL SKIRT

SEE 8/AS-1601

TOP OF PLATFORM.

TRASH CAN BOLTED TO

RECEPTACLE

OUTSIDE FACE OF LITTER

IN PLATFORM SLAB

GROUNDING PLATE SET

METAL FRAME

LITTER RECEPTACLE

GROUNDING WIRE

PLATFORM SLAB

PROTRUDE 1 1/2" FROM

ANCHOR BOLT,

1/2" SST EXPANSION

TICKET VENDING MACHINE (TVM)

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 109 of 240



SITE FURNISHINGS

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Lone Tree City Center Station

(LONE TREE CITY CENTER  STATION)

SP16-10R

1.423 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #3
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST 

SHEET 4 OF 8

NEWSPAPER "RAK" SYSTEMS

NOTES:

FAX: (251) 653-1014

LOCAL: (251) 653-4080

TOLL FREE: (800) 467-1725

THEODORE, AL 36582 U.S.A.

5500 PLANTATION RD.

RAK SYSTEMS, INC.

FROM:

6.  "RAK" SYSTEM MODEL NOS. AND DESCRIPTIONS AVAILABLE 

5.  AVAILABLE WITH LOCK OR LATCH

4.  ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN INCHES.

CONTACT FACTORY FOR DETAILS.

3.  ALL SPECIFICATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. PLEASE 

POWDER-COATED WITH TGIC POLYESTER POWDER COATING.

ETCHED, PHOSPHATIZED AND ELECROSTATICALLY 

2.  ALL FABRICATED COMPONENTS ARE STEEL SHOT-BLASTED, 

1.  STANDARD COLOR SHALL BE RAL 6009 FIR GREEN

"4
36'-0

1'-4"

DOME TOP

SHEET METAL 

DOME TOP

SHEET METAL 

49 B 49 B 49 B

49 HT 49 DW 49 T

SIDE ELEVATION FRONT ELEVATION

MB2 MB2

TRAY - MB3

ANCHOR (TYP.)

STEEL EXPANSION 

1/2"x2-1/2" STAINLESS 

ANCHOR (TYP.)

STEEL EXPANSION 

1/2"x2-1/2" STAINLESS 

"
4

3
5
'-
0

1
'-
7
"

"
4

3
3
'-
5

2
'-
1
1
"

"
4

3
6

"
2

1
1
'-
5

"
2

1
1
'-
5

WINDSCREEN TYPE 1 PLAN

WINDSCREEN TYPE 1 FRONT ELEVATION

14'-8"

" TYP8
13'-4

"
2

1
4
'-
6

4
'-
0
" 

T
Y

P

4
" 

T
Y

P

2"

" TYP2
12

2"

BENCH B

SHOWN DASHED

COLUMN BASE

FLOOR SPACE

ADA CLEAR 

"
2

1
8
'-
4

"
2

1
8
'-
0

3
'-
3
"

3
'-
3
"

"
2

1
8

" 
T

Y
P

2
1

2

4
"

PANEL, TYP

3/8" GLASS OR ACRYLIC

STEEL FRAME, TYP

BENCH B

SHOWN DASHED

CANOPY COLUMN

3/8" METAL PANEL, TYP

CONCRETE BASE, TYP

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 110 of 240



C8 C9 C10 C11

C4C5C6C7

E7.16

E7.17

5.2 6.2 6.9

6.7 7.6 6.8 2.1 3.7 3.2 3.2 3.4 3.9 3.8 4.3 4.7 5.2 4.8 4.6 4.1 4.1 3.9 3.7 3.5 3.8 3.7 3.5 3.4 3.5 3.1 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6

9.0 9.5 8.1 2.4 3.7 3.3 3.3 3.5 3.9 4.1 4.6 4.9 5.2 4.8 4.6 4.1 4.2 3.9 3.7 3.5 3.9 3.6 3.5 3.3 3.5 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.5

10.3 10.4 8.4 2.3 3.5 3.3 3.1 3.3 3.7 4.1 4.6 4.9 5.0 4.7 4.4 4.1 4.0 3.8 3.7 3.6 3.7 3.6 3.5 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3

9.2 9.2 7.8 2.3 3.6 3.4 3.3 3.6 4.1 4.4 4.7 5.0 5.2 5.1 4.8 4.4 4.4 4.3 4.2 4.2 4.1 4.0 4.1 4.0 3.6 3.3 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5

6.9 7.5 6.8 2.4 3.9 3.7 3.6 4.1 4.5 4.6 4.8 5.0 5.6 5.8 5.3 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 4.8 4.6 4.8 4.8 4.4 3.8 3.5 3.5 3.4 3.3 3.2 3.1 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9

5.4 6.3 7.1

8.4 6.9 6.2 5.5 4.8

7.8 7.3 7.3 6.2 4.8

8.4 8.2 7.9 6.2 4.8

7.8 7.5 7.3 6.0 4.8

8.3 6.9 6.2 5.6 4.9

6.2 6.2 6.1 5.9 6.5 6.9 6.6 4.6 7.8 9.0 8.8 8.8 9.4 9.8 9.6 9.2 8.6 9.4 10.3 9.9 8.3 6.5 6.0 5.6 5.4 5.1 5.0 4.9 4.8 4.8 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7

5.6 5.7 6.0 5.9 6.7 7.3 7.1 5.7 5.1 7.9 9.7 9.9 9.3 9.3 10.0 10.5 10.4 9.8 9.1 10.0 11.1 10.9 9.2 6.9 6.3 5.9 5.5 5.2 5.1 5.0 4.9 4.9 4.8 4.8 4.8 4.8

4.7 5.0 5.5 5.7 6.5 7.2 7.3 6.5 6.4 6.5 6.4 6.5 7.4 9.3 10.1 9.9 9.2 9.2 10.0 10.5 10.4 9.8 9.1 10.0 11.2 11.0 9.3 7.0 6.3 5.9 5.6 5.3 5.1 5.0 4.9 4.9 4.8 4.8 4.8 4.8

4.3 4.7 5.2 5.3 6.0 6.7 6.9 6.3 6.8 7.1 6.9 6.7 7.1 8.6 9.3 9.1 8.5 8.6 9.2 9.7 9.7 9.1 8.5 9.3 10.3 10.2 8.7 6.7 6.2 5.8 5.5 5.2 4.9 4.8 4.8 4.7 4.6 4.6 4.7 4.6

4.3 4.7 5.1 5.3 6.0 6.6 6.7 6.3 7.0 7.6 7.8 7.7 8.5 10.5 10.9 9.8 8.1 7.9 8.1 7.3 7.3 7.2 7.0 5.4 5.1 5.0 4.9 4.8 4.6 4.5 4.6 4.5 4.4 4.4 4.5 4.4

4.5 5.2 5.6 5.8 6.5 7.2 7.3 6.8 7.6 8.3 8.4 8.3 9.2 11.6 11.9 10.5 8.7 8.6 8.8 8.3 7.9 7.9 8.3 7.9 7.7 7.5 7.0 5.8 5.3 5.1 5.0 4.8 4.7 4.6 4.7 4.6 4.6 4.6 4.6 4.6

5.4 5.9 6.0 6.1 6.8 7.4 7.5 7.0 7.8 8.5 8.6 8.6 9.5 11.9 12.2 10.7 8.9 8.8 9.1 8.6 8.2 8.2 8.6 8.1 8.0 7.8 7.3 6.0 5.5 5.2 5.0 4.9 4.8 4.8 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7

6.2 6.3 6.1 6.0 6.5 7.0 7.1 6.7 7.4 8.1 8.2 8.1 9.0 11.0 11.3 10.1 8.5 8.4 8.6 8.2 7.7 7.7 8.1 7.7 7.5 7.3 6.9 5.7 5.3 5.2 5.0 4.8 4.8 4.7 4.7 4.6 4.6 4.6 4.6 4.6

7
.8

9
.4

1
1
.1

5.8

8.4

7
.6

6
.1

6
.9

9.1 9.4

C11

C4

E7.16

E7.17

C12 C13 C14

C1C2C3

6.9 6.0 4.5 3.3 2.4

2.6 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.3 3.4 3.3 3.2 3.1 3.2 2.8 2.9 3.1 3.4 3.1 3.2 3.4 3.6 3.3 3.4 3.8 4.4 4.2 4.1 3.3 3.7 3.4 3.6 3.1 3.1 3.4 2.7 7.5 7.4 6.2 4.8 3.6

2.6 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.3 3.3 3.4 3.1 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.7 3.0 3.2 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.3 3.2 3.3 3.7 4.1 4.2 4.2 4.1 3.8 3.5 3.3 3.0 3.2 3.5 2.1 8.0 9.2 8.2 6.5 4.8

2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.8 2.9 3.1 3.1 3.2 3.0 3.0 2.9 3.3 3.6 3.9 3.9 3.8 3.5 3.3 2.9 2.9 3.1 3.1 2.0 8.6 10.4 9.4 7.4 5.4

2.5 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.8 3.0 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.4 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.9 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.1 3.0 3.3 3.5 3.6 3.6 3.5 3.4 3.3 3.0 2.9 3.3 3.3 2.1 8.6 9.6 8.5 6.7 4.9

2.9 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.5 3.6 3.7 3.7 3.5 3.4 3.3 3.0 3.0 3.4 3.5 3.5 3.4 3.6 3.6 3.4 3.4 3.6 3.7 3.7 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.3 3.2 3.6 3.5 2.1 7.8 7.7 6.4 5.0 3.8

7.0 6.3 4.8 3.6 2.7

5.4 5.6 6.3 7.0 8.7

4.9 6.1 7.4 7.5 8.0

4.8 6.2 7.8 8.2 8.3

4.8 6.1 7.2 7.3 7.8

4.6 5.5 6.1 6.7 8.4

4.7 4.7 4.8 4.9 5.0 5.1 5.3 5.6 5.8 5.9 6.2 6.6 7.2 6.8 6.5 6.7 7.0 6.6 5.8 6.4 7.1 7.1 6.5 6.9 7.0 6.3 5.3 4.9 6.0 6.7 6.7 6.3 6.5 6.7 6.0 5.4 5.4 5.9 6.1 6.2

4.8 4.9 4.9 5.0 5.1 5.3 5.5 5.7 5.9 6.0 6.3 7.0 7.8 7.5 7.1 7.3 7.6 7.1 6.2 6.8 7.6 7.7 7.0 7.5 7.6 6.8 5.5 5.0 6.3 7.2 7.2 6.8 7.0 7.2 6.4 5.7 5.4 5.8 5.6 5.3

4.8 4.9 4.9 5.0 5.1 5.2 5.4 5.7 5.9 6.1 6.4 7.2 8.0 7.6 7.3 7.4 7.8 7.2 6.2 6.8 7.7 7.8 7.1 7.6 7.6 6.8 5.5 4.9 6.3 7.2 7.3 6.9 7.1 7.2 6.4 5.5 5.2 5.3 4.7 4.2

4.7 4.7 4.7 4.8 5.0 5.1 5.2 5.4 5.8 5.9 6.2 6.8 7.6 7.2 6.8 6.9 7.3 6.7 5.9 6.4 7.1 7.3 6.6 7.0 7.1 6.4 5.2 4.7 5.9 6.7 6.8 6.4 6.6 6.7 6.0 5.2 4.9 5.0 4.5 4.0

4.5 4.5 4.5 4.6 4.8 4.9 4.9 5.2 5.6 5.7 5.9 6.4 7.1 6.8 6.9 6.5 6.2 6.9 6.6 7.3 7.8 7.7 6.9 6.0 5.7 5.9 6.2 6.3 5.9 6.4 6.7 6.6 5.9 5.4 4.8 4.3

4.6 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.9 5.0 5.2 5.4 5.8 5.8 6.2 6.8 7.7 7.4 7.0 7.2 7.6 7.1 6.2 6.8 7.6 7.8 7.3 8.1 8.7 8.5 7.4 6.1 5.5 5.5 5.7 5.8 6.0 6.7 7.4 7.2 6.5 5.8 5.2 4.8

4.7 4.7 4.8 4.9 5.0 5.1 5.3 5.6 5.8 5.9 6.2 7.0 7.9 7.6 7.3 7.4 7.8 7.3 6.4 7.0 7.8 8.1 7.6 8.5 9.2 8.6 6.8 4.9 4.9 6.9 7.7 7.6 6.9 6.3 6.0 5.7

4.7 4.7 4.7 4.8 4.9 5.1 5.3 5.5 5.7 5.8 6.0 6.6 7.5 7.2 6.9 7.0 7.4 7.0 6.1 6.6 7.4 7.6 7.2 8.0 8.7 7.8 3.7 6.4 7.3 7.3 6.8 6.4 6.4 6.4

6
.4

8
.1

1
0
.5 8.2

5.9

7
.7

5
.5

5
.1

8.5 7.5

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

(303) 628-9000

DENVER, COLORADO 80202

1600 BLAKE STREET

SHEET 5 OF 8

30 60 900

SCALE  IN  FEET PHOTOMETRICS PLAN

Southeast Rail Extension - Lone Tree City Center Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

(LONE TREE CITY CENTER  STATION)

SP16-10R

1.423 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #3
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 111 of 240



SHEET 6 OF 8

Southeast Rail Extension - Lone Tree City Center Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

(LONE TREE CITY CENTER  STATION)

SP16-10R

1.423 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #3
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST 

LIGHTING FIXTURES

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 112 of 240



LIGHT, TYP

PEDESTRIANHIGHBLOCK SMV TRASH RECEPTACLE
TYPE 1

WINDSCREEN

1.00%

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E
S

E
E
 D

W
G
 N

O
. 
2
 /
  

A
S
-3

2
0
0

BENCH B CANOPY TYPE 3

EMERGENCY TELEPHONE

CANOPY TYPE 1SIGNAGE, TYPGARDEN HYDRANT

TO RAIL TO BALLAST

TYPE 1

WINDSCREENBENCH B

LIGHT, TYP

PEDESTRIAN SMV SIGNAGE, TYP BENCH A

TRASH RECEPTACLE

NEWSPAPER RACK

1.00%

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E
S

E
E
 D

W
G
 N

O
. 
1
 /
  

A
S
-3

2
0
0

CANOPY TYPE 3

SHEET 7 OF 8

Southeast Rail Extension - Lone Tree City Center Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

(LONE TREE CITY CENTER  STATION)

SP16-10R

1.423 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #3
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST 

EAST PLATFORM ELEVATION

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 113 of 240



TVM

SMV BENCH B

WINDSCREEN TYPE 1

LIGHT, TYP

PEDESTRIAN SMV TRASH RECEPTACLE

BENCH A

SMV TVM

RACK

NEWSPAPER SIGNAGE, TYP SMV

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E

S
E

E
 D

W
G
 N

O
. 
2
 /
  

A
S
-3

2
0
1

TELEPHONE

EMERGENCY

TO RAIL TO BALLAST

1.00%

WINDSCREEN TYPE 1

BENCH B

LIGHT, TYP

PEDESTRIANSMV HIGHBLOCK SMV TRASH RECEPTACLE

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E

S
E

E
 D

W
G
 N

O
. 
1
 /
  

A
S
-3

2
0
1

HYDRANT

GARDEN CANOPY TYPE 1

1.00%

CANOPY TYPE 3SIGNAGE, TYP

SHEET 8 OF 8

WEST PLATFORM ELEVATION

Southeast Rail Extension - Lone Tree City Center Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

(LONE TREE CITY CENTER  STATION)

SP16-10R

1.423 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #3
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 114 of 240



Southeast Rail Extension - Lone Tree City Center Station
Site Plan

Southbound Rail

Northbound Rail

Access to Point of Safety Access RoadAcce

Safe Dispersal Area

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 115 of 240



design group
BRITINA

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

P: 303.456.2887

DENVER, CO 80202

1615 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 411

GRAPHIC TITLE

DENVER, CO 80202

475 17TH STREET, SUITE 720

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 116 of 240

josh
Image

josh
Rectangle

josh
Image

josh
Text Box
Canopy and Platform Materials

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Image

josh
Image

josh
Snapshot

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Image

josh
Rectangle

josh
Text Box
Pre-Finished Standing Seam

josh
Text Box
Berridge Shasta White

josh
Text Box
Canopy Roof

josh
Text Box
Painted/Pre-Finished Metal

josh
Text Box
Black RAL 9005

josh
Text Box
Windscreen Structure and Panels,Railings, Benches, Light Poles,Trash Receptacles

josh
Text Box
Painted/Pre-Finished Metal

josh
Text Box
Tactile Warning Strip

josh
Text Box
Tnemec White 00WH

josh
Text Box
Canopy StructureVMSCanopy Deck

josh
Text Box
Federal Standard #33538 

josh
Text Box
Concrete

josh
Text Box
Medium Broom Finish

josh
Text Box
Platform, Plaza, Sidewalks

josh
Text Box
Stone Veneer

josh
Text Box
Colorado Rose Sandstone, Buff Finish

josh
Text Box
Canopy Column Bases

josh
Text Box
Stone Veneer

josh
Text Box
Colorado Sandstone, Buff Finish 

josh
Text Box
Canopy Column Bases

josh
Text Box
Southeast Rail Extension - Lone Tree City Center Station



 

 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

Project Summary 
 

 
Date:   April 19, 2016 City Council Meeting 
 
 
Project Name: RidgeGate Station  
  
 
Location: The overall site is 12 acres, and is bordered by I-25 on the west, 

Havana Street on the east, and RidgeGate Parkway on the north. 
Schweiger Ranch is located to the south, across Havana Street. 

 
 
Project Type / #: Site Improvement Plan SP16-11R 
 
 
Staff Contacts: Kelly First, Community Development Department Director 
  
  
Meeting Type: Public Meeting  
 
 
Summary of Request:  Site Improvement Plan approval for the RidgeGate Station 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: 
  
 Unanimous approval, with three conditions. 
  
Suggested Action:  
 Approval, subject to three conditions noted in staff report.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 117 of 240



 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
 
DATE:  April 13, 2016 
 
FOR:  April 19, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: RidgeGate East Filing 1, (1st Amendment)  
 Site Improvement Plan SP16-11R 
 RidgeGate Station 
 
 

Owner Representative 

RidgeGate Investments, Inc 
Keith Simon 
10270 Commonwealth Street 
Lone Tree, CO 80124 
720-279-2581 

Regional Transportation District 
Nathan Herman 
1600 Blake Street 
Denver, CO 80202 
303-628-9000 

 
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date: April 12, 2016 
City Council Meeting Date:    April 19, 2016      
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
A. REQUEST: 

 
Approval of a Site Improvement Plan (SIP) for the RidgeGate Light Rail Station.  
 
This station is the end of the Regional Transportation District (RTD) Southeast Rail 
Extension project. It includes parking for 1,300 vehicles, a bus transfer facility, a Kiss-n-
Ride, and bicycle storage.  
 
A separate application is in process that will replat the property to create access and lots 
that coincide with the proposed station design. Pursuant to the City’s Subdivision 
Regulations, the replat is considered by the City Council.   
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 118 of 240



LOCATION: 
 
 The overall site is 12 acres, and is bordered by I-25 on the west, Havana Street on the 

east, and RidgeGate Parkway on the north. Schweiger Ranch is located to the south, 
across Havana Street. 

        
Vicinity Map 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B. SITE CHARACTERISTICS: 
 

The site has no distinctive topographical or vegetative features. As part of the Southeast 
Extension project, RTD prepared an Environmental Assessment, which resulted in a 
Finding of No Significant Impact.  
 

 
C. SERVICE PROVIDERS:   
 
  Water:   Parker Water District 
  Sanitation:  Parker Sanitation District 
  Police:   Lone Tree Police 
  Fire:   South Metro Fire Rescue Authority 
  Metro District:  Rampart Range Metropolitan District 
 
 
D. BACKGROUND: 

 
The 2.3 mile-long southeast extension project, from Lincoln Avenue to RidgeGate 
Parkway, is part of the RTD’s 2004 voter-approved FasTracks Program. The Southeast 
Line includes 19.1 miles extending from I-25/Broadway to Lincoln Avenue, with an 

N 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 119 of 240



additional connection along I-225 from I-25 to Parker Road. Construction on the 
extension is expected to begin this spring with service beginning in 2019. When 
completed, residents will be able to travel from the RidgeGate station on the new R Line 
through Aurora to Peoria Station and connect to the commuter train to Denver 
International Airport. They will be able to travel from RidgeGate to Union Station on the 
E Line and from RidgeGate to 18th and California in downtown Denver on the F Line.  
 
This SIP is one of three station SIPs that comprise the RTD Southeast Rail Extension 
project. Additional stations are Sky Ridge (SP16-09R) and Lone Tree City Center (SP16-
10R).   
 
In January of 2015, City staff and members of the RTD design team presented an 
overview of the project to the Planning Commission and City Council. The purpose of the 
work sessions was to seek feedback about key design elements and address them 
prior to the project going out for bid, thereby reducing the need for potentially 
costly changes later on. Comments regarding aesthetic elements like canopies, 
walls, fencing and landscaping were provided and have been incorporated into 
SIP.  In March, 2016, RTD again provided an overview of the stations to the 
Planning Commission and City Council, in anticipation of the SIPs coming before 
the City Council for action in April.  

 
 
E. DESCRIPTION: 
 

Zoning.  The site is zoned Planned Development (PD) 
under the RidgeGate Planned Development 4th 
Amendment. The proposed use is in conformance with 
zoning, and is located within Planning Area C/M-U #4.  
 
A sub-area plan for the property is currently being 
developed by the owner, with participation by the City 
of Lone Tree staff. The sub-area plan will incorporate 
the station design and provide guidance for how the 
balance of the property will be transit-oriented 
development. 
 
Site Design. The site is designed to provide convenient and safe access and circulation, 
and contains design features that create an inviting and safe public realm. The light rail 
line track extends down along the western side of the site. The station is located at the 
southern end of the property, with the platform on the west side. The balance of the 12-
acre property will be developed in the future by others.  
 
The space immediately north of the parking garage is envisioned as a passive open 
space and park area. This location was originally considered for a retail building; 
however, the property owner has re-evaluated that concept and thinks retail will be 
better suited north of the road.  
 
A detention/water quality pond is located on the east side of the site. 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 120 of 240



Site Plan 
 
 

 
 
 
Access.  Vehicular and pedestrian access will be from two points along Havana Street. 
A circular loop will provide car, bus, bicycle and pedestrian access to the station, with 
the bus operations taking place near the platform. 
 
Vehicles access the 1st level of the parking garage on the east side, or the 2nd level on 
the south side. A temporary cul-de-sac to accommodate kiss-n-ride drop off and loading 
is located on the north side of the site, near the platform.  
 
Parking.  There are 1,264 parking space within the parking garage and 52 surface 
spaces to the south of the garage.  

 
Design Elements. The station platform includes overhead canopy structures that are 
white, barrel shaped, with a standing seam metal roof. Benches, bike racks, trash 
receptacles, and other site features are detailed in the SIP. 
 
Landscaping. The site will be landscaped as generally shown on the colored site plan 
and landscape plan. Details are still in progress relative to specific landscape species, 
sizes and quantities date. It is recommended that the final landscape plan be subject to 
staff approval prior to final approval of the SIP. 
 
 
 
 

N
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 121 of 240



Building Design. The parking garage is four levels at the eastern end, transitioning with 
grade to three levels along the west. The structure is comprised on precast concrete and 
metal panels, with sandstone on the stair and elevator towers are located on the 
northeast, northwest, and southwest corners, and will consist of Colorado Rose 
sandstone, similar in color and appearance to that used elsewhere in Lone Tree. The 
west and south facades are clad in metal mesh framework for screening and visual 
interest.  

          
Lighting.  The location of street, parking and pedestrian lighting and associated 
specifications are included on the SIP. Lighting is compliant with City requirements.  
 
 

F. REFERRALS:    
 
The project was sent on referral to all key agencies and subscribers to the City’s referral 
list. All responses of substance are attached. The Fire District notes an outstanding 
issue relative to water supply. Water service is not yet available to the site from Parker 
Water District. In the interim, water will be made available through a separate agreement 
between RTD and the Meridian Metropolitan District. Once that agreement is finalized, 
all required submittals will be made to South Metro Fire. 
 
The City Forester made recommendations relative to landscaping that are noted and will 
be addressed as part of the final landscape plan review.   
 

 
G. PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW: 

 
Chair Kirchner opened the discussion on the Ridge Gate Station.  
 
Commissioner Dodgen inquired about the access drive shown to the southwest 
of the garage. Mr. Johnson responded that this was for maintenance access. 

 
Commissioner Dodgen inquired about bicycle and pedestrian connectivity to the 
Ridge Gate Station. Mr. Cotton said there would be a sidewalk/bike path under I-
25 at the RidgeGate interchange that would extend to Havana. With a TIP grant 
from DRCOG, the City also plans to construct a separated bike lane along 
RidgeGate Parkway east to the City limits. There will be bike lanes along the 
north station access road from Havana. 
 
Commissioner Carlson inquired about having a separated, elevated bike path for 
safety. Mr. Cotten responded that there were a hierarchy of streets, larger streets 
would have separated bike paths. 
 
Commissioner Heskin inquired about ADA parking in the parking garage.  Ms. 
Blakely responded that there would be about 24 spaces designated at the same 
level of the parking garage as the station platform – this would be level 2.  
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 122 of 240



Commissioner Rodriquez inquired about vehicular access and the purpose of the 
turnaround to the north of the platform. Mr. Johnson responded that the purpose 
of the round-about would be as a kiss-n-ride drop off – drivers would not have to 
enter the garage to drop people off. Also, there would be ample signage to keep 
people from driving down the bus drop-off lane. 
 
Commissioner Steele asked about the green space to the north of the garage. 
Mr. Jones replied that this was originally intended for trail space, but the owners 
has since decided to locate the retail on the north side of the drive instead. The 
owner will retain the property as a park or open space.  
 
Commissioner Steele inquired about what drove the ratio of parking provided. Mr. 
Herman responded that 1,300 spaces was the number created to service the 
station to a horizon year of 2035 based upon future demand modeling. Part of 
the purchase agreement is that a parcel of land was being held for development 
of a future parking structure for an anticipated need of 800 spaces. 
Commissioner Steele added that he was not fond of large parking structures as 
he felt that autonomous cars, ride-sharing, Uber, and other transportation trends 
were reducing the need for large parking lots. 
 
Commissioner Steele inquired about security for cars left in the garage on 
extended trips. Mr. herman indicated that RTD allows in-District patrons to park 
24 hours for free and after that the rate is $2 per day. The applicant responded 
that they would have the same level of security as other RTD parking garages – 
this includes video monitoring (recorded surveillance) not active surveillance. 
Commissioner Steele reiterated that now that RTD was connected to the airport, 
and presumably more people using RTD stations as long-term parking, security 
should be increased. 
 
Commissioner Steele inquired about RTD investigation into electric car stations. 
The applicant responded that they were carefully investigating the need for 
electric charging stations. 
 
Commissioner Steele inquired about how many trains would be stored over night 
at the station and during the day. There would be some storage of likely 1-2 
trains overnight and possible during the day. There would be no maintenance of 
cars at this location. 
 
Chair Kirchner noted that the bike racks and lockers shown on the plan did not 
match what was called for (24 show-26 provided).  
 
Chair Kirchner thanked RTD for this application and the work involved. 
 
Commissioner Dodgen moved to recommend approval of the RidgeGate station 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 123 of 240



1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of Lone Tree 
Public Works approval. 

 
2. Prior to final SIP approval, the related replat (SB16-23R) shall be 

approved by City staff and recorded. 
 

3. Prior to final SIP approval, the landscape plan shall be further detailed per 
City Zoning requirements to specify proposed plant types, quantities and 
sizes.  

  
Commissioner Spencer seconded, and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 

H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone 
Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the RidgeGate 
PDD, 4th Amendment. 

 
Staff recommends approval of the SIP, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of Lone 

Tree Public Works approval. 
 

2. Prior to final SIP approval, the related replat (SB16-23R) shall be 
approved by City staff and recorded. 

 
3. Prior to final SIP approval, the landscape plan shall be further detailed per 

City Zoning requirements to specify proposed plant types, quantities and 
sizes.  

 
 

 
I. ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Development Application 
2. Letter of Authorization 
3. Narrative & Statement of Design Intent 
4. Referral Comments  
5. SIP 
6. Renderings 

 
END 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 124 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 125 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 126 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 127 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 128 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 129 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 130 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 131 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 132 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 133 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 134 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 135 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 136 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 137 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 138 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 139 of 240



P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

COVER

March 18, 2016

APPROVAL CERTIFICATE

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station

ADA REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET.

BEEN SATISFIED. THE APPLICANT IS RESPONSIBLE TO ENSURE THAT SAID 

REQUIREMENTS OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) HAVE 

APPROVAL BY THE CITY OF LONE TREE DOES NOT SIGNIFY THAT THE 

(NOTARY PUBLIC)

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL.

                 , 20     , BY                                                                      .

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS       DAY OF

COUNTY OF

STATE OF

(PRINTED NAME AND TITLE)

(SIGNATURE OF OWNER)

(NAME OF OWNER)

CORPORATE AUTHORIZATIONS, HAVE BEEN OBTAINED.

AUTHORIZATIONS TO ENTER THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING ANY 

REPRESENTATIVE(S) BELOW INDICATE THAT ANY REQUIRED 

SHALL ALSO BE BOUND. THE SIGNATURES OF THE OWNERS(S)'(S) 

THAT (2) THE HEIRS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS OF THE OWNER(S) 

COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 16 OF THE LONE TREE MUNICIPAL CODE AND 

ACCORDANCE WITH THIS APPROVED SITE IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND IN 

TO DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IN 

THE OWNER(S) OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED HEREIN, HEREBY AGREE(S) (1) 

DATE:

TITLE:   MAYOR

NAME:

BY:

DATE:

TITLE:   CITY ENGINEER

NAME:

BY:

DATE:

TITLE:   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

NAME:

BY:

ACCORD WITH CITY REGULATIONS, AS APPROVED BY THE CITY ON (DATE).

THIS SIP HAS BEEN REVIEWED AND FOUND TO BE COMPLETE AND IN 

)

)

) ss.

SIP SHEET INDEX

SITE PLAN 03/18/161 of 11

Sheet NameN
U

M
B

E
R

Sheet Issue Date

03/18/162 of 11 GRADING PLAN

03/18/163 of 11 LANDSCAPE PLAN

03/18/164 of 11 SITE FURNISHINGS

03/18/166 of 11

03/18/167 of 11

03/18/168 of 11

03/18/169 of 11

03/18/1610 of 11

03/18/1611 of 11

PHOTOMETRICS PLAN

LIGHTING FIXTURES

EAST PLATFORM ELEVATION

WEST PLATFORM ELEVATION

03/18/165 of 11 SITE FURNISHINGS

Vicinity Map

*

IN
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E
 2

5

PARKING GARAGE ELEVATIONS SOUTH/WEST

RIDGEGATE EAST FILING 1

(RIDGEGATE STATION)

SP16-11R

12.000 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #4
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

RIDGEGATE PARKWAY

PARKING GARAGE ELEVATIONS NORTH/EAST

      

CONTACT: MICHAEL KIEFER

P: 303.781.9590

DENVER, CO 80211

2000 CLAY STREET, SUITE 200

YEH AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING

CONTACT: ALAN WISKUS

P: 720.481.3290

GREENWOOD VILLAGE, COLORADO 80111                            

5105 DTC PARKWAY, SUITE 420 

PK ELECTRICAL, INC.

LIGHTING AND ELECTRICAL DESIGN

CONTACT: STEVE HAKES

P: 303.953.9014

LITTLETON, CO 80120

801 WEST MINERAL AVENUE, SUITE 200

SAN ENGINEERING LLC

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING

CONTACT: CHRIS COOPER   

P: 303.456.2887  

DENVER, CO  80202

1615 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 411

BRITINA DESIGN GROUP

LANDSCAPE DESIGN

PLAN OR SUB-AREA PLAN.

OTHERWISE BE ADDRESSED IN AN APPROVED DEVELOPMENT 

PARKING, SIGNAGE AND OUTDOOR STORAGE, EXCEPT AS MAY 

INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO MAINTENANCE, LIGHTING, 

APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS OF THE LONE TREE ZONING CODE, 

STANDARD NOTE: THE PROPERTY HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL 

CONTACT: TARA BURKE

P: 720.855.7572

DENVER, CO 80202

475 17TH STREET, SUITE 720

IRON HORSE ARCHITECTS

ARCHITECT

CONTACT: KAREN CREAMER

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

WSP|PARSONS BRINCKERHOFF

LEAD DESIGN FIRM

CONTACT: ANDY MUTZ

P: 303.299.6965

DENVER, CO 80202

1560 BROADWAY 

SOUTHEAST RAIL EXTENSION 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT  

APPLICANT

CONTACT: KEITH SIMON

P: 720.279.2581

LONE TREE, CO 80124

10270 COMMONWEALTH STREET, SUITE B

RIDGEGATE INVESTMENTS, INC.

OWNER

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 140 of 240



T

B
D

G
-T
re
e
-D

e
c

B
D

G
-T
re
e
-E

v
g

B
D

G
-T
re
e
-O
rn

B
D

G
-T
re
e
-D

e
c

B
D

G
-T
re
e
-E

v
g

B
D

G
-T
re
e
-O
rn

RH

P
C

C

C
H

TPSS

RH
RH

P
C

C

C
H

TPSS

RH

HAVANA ST

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

RIDGEGATE EAST FILING 1

(RIDGEGATE STATION)

SP16-11R

12.000 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #4
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station

IN
TE

RSTATE
 25
 - S

OUTHBOUND

IN
TE

RSTATE
 25
 - N

ORTHBOUND

I-2
5 O

FF
-R

AMP T
O 

RID
GEGATE

 PKWY

 

 

 

REQUIRED LANDSCAPED AREA)

NATURAL AREAS (NOT INCLUDED IN THE 

INTERIOR PARKING ISLANDS, TRAILS AND WALKS

LANDSCAPED AREA (EXCLUDING PLANTED 

PARKING ISLANDS)

PARKING/ROADS (INCLUDING PLANTED INTERIOR 

BUILDING FOOTPRINT

AREA IN ARTICLE XXXVI)

TOTAL FLOOR AREA (SEE DEFINITION OF FLOOR 

BUILDING CODE)

MAXIMUM HEIGHT (AS MEASURED BY THE CITY'S 

PROVIDED

REQUIRED

PROVIDED

REQUIRED

ITEM

ITEM

ITEM

FOOTAGE

SQUARE 

SITE

% OF GROSS 

SQUARE FOOTAGE

27%

31%

PARKING

BICYCLE PARKING

GROSS SITE AREA 100%

SPACES REQUIRED

26

26

1300 (PER EIA)

1316 (GARAGE & SURFACE)*

* REQUIRED ADA PARKING SPACES PROVIDED WITHIN STRUCTURE

QUALITY POND

DETENTION AND WATER 

8 7

12 12

6 7

94,926

SPACES TOTAL

PARKING STRUCTURE - 1264 

TRANSITION PLAZA

BUS DROP-OFF AREA (4 BUS BAYS)

60 120 1800

SCALE  IN  FEET

HAPPY CANYON CREEK

100-YR FLOODPLAIN LIMITS
1ST LEVEL VEHICULAR ENTRANCE

1ST LEVEL PEDESTRIAN ENTRANCE

(PASSENGER LOADING/UNLOADING)

ACCOMMODATE KISS N RIDE 

TEMPORARY CUL-DE-SAC TO 

SOUTH OF INTERSECTION

BEGIN ONE-WAY BUS CIRCULATION 

9' x 18' STALL (TYPICAL)

TO TRACK CORRIDOR)

6' CHAINLINK FENCE (ADJACENT 

TO TRACK CORRIDOR)

6' CHAINLINK FENCE (ADJACENT 

C NORTHBOUND LIGHT RAIL TRACKL

C SOUTHBOUND LIGHT RAIL TRACKL

2ND LEVEL VEHICULAR ENTRANCE

ELEVATIONS FOR FURNISHINGS/DETAILS

RIDGEGATE STATION PLATFORMS - SEE PLATFORM 

HOUSE)

EQUIPMENT (RELAY 

LIGHT RAIL SIGNAL 

HOUSE, POWER CONTROL CABINET)

EQUIPMENT (RELAY HOUSE, COMM 

LIGHT RAIL SIGNAL/ELECTRICAL 

DRIVER RELIEF STATION TYPE 1

BIKE LOCKERS (8 EA)

BIKE RACKS (8 EA)

DRIVE

RTD MAINTENANCE 

TRACTION POWER SUBSTATION (TPSS)

WROUGHT IRON FENCE AROUND TPSS

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

HYDRANT

PROPOSED FIRE 

2 - 12' GATES

2 - 12' GATES

ACCESS DRIVE

TAIL TRACK 

FENCE BEHIND PLATFORM

6' VINYL CLAD CHAINLINK 

AREA (GARAGE ROOF)

APPROXIMATE SNOW STORAGE 

ENTRANCE

PEDESTRIAN 

2ND LEVEL 

OF INTERSECTION

CIRCULATION NORTH 

END ONE-WAY BUS 

TRACK

SOIL NAIL WALL AT TAIL 

2ND LEVEL PEDESTRIAN ENTRANCE

LOCATION (BY XCEL)

APPROXIMATE TRANSFORMER 

4
0
.2
4
'

38.00'

26.00' 107.21'

2
1
.0

0
'

2
1
.0

0
'

400.00'

2
4
.0

0
'

2
4
.0

0
'

24.00'

38.00'

24.00'

24.00'

2
4
.0

0
'

2
4
.0

0
'

3
2
.0

0
'

1
2
.0

0
'

6
2
.0

0
'

E
X
 9
6
.0
0
' R

O
W

B
O

C
 -
 B

O
C

2
6
.0
0
'

8
.0

0
'

8.00'

27.00'27.00'

51.25'

BUILDING SIZE

377,748

E
A
S

E
M

E
N

T

       U
T
IL
IT

Y
 

           2
1
.5

0
'

PD ZONING - COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE (C/M-U)

UNPLATTED - RIDGEGATE INVESTMENTS INC. REC. NO. 2007100482

UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY

PROPOSED DRAINAGE EASEMENT**

PROPERTY LINE**

PROPOSED RTD 

SUBSEQUENT SUBMITTALS.

CONSISTENT WITH PLATTING, WILL BE INCLUDED WITH 

THIS AREA. ADDITIONAL PROPERTY BOUNDARY INFORMATION, 

** NOTE: PLAT IS PENDING AT THE TIME OF SIP SUBMITTAL FOR 

PD ZONING - SPECIAL, SCHWEIGER RANCH

UNPLATTED - SCHWEIGER RANCH FOUNDATION REC. NO. 2008034431

SCHWEIGER RANCH 140,731

161,078

522,720

18%

125,985 24%

(PLAZA AREA)

SNOW STORAGE AREA 

APPROXIMATE

(SURFACE PARKING)

SNOW STORAGE AREA 

APPROXIMATE

SHEET 1 OF 11

SITE PLAN

BUS SHELTER(TYP)

BUS SHELTER(TYP)

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 141 of 240



6105

6
1
0
5

6105

6050

6025

6030

6030

6
0
3
0

6
0
3
0

6035

6
0
3
5

6035

6040

6040

6040

6040

6045

6045

60
45

6045

6050

6050

6050

6050

60
50

6050

6055

6055

6055

60
55

606
0

6060

6060

6
0
6
0

6065

6065

6
0
6
5

6
0
6
5

6070
6070

6
0
7
0

607
0

6075

607
5

6
0
7
5

6075

6
0
7
5

6080

6080

6080

6080

6085

6085

6085

6085

6090

6090

6090

6090

6090

6095

6095

6095

6
0
9
5

60
95

6
1
0
0

6100

6100

6100

6
1
0
0

6
1
0
0

6100

6105

6105

6
1
0
5

6
1
0
5

6105

6110

6125

T

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

6080

6
0
7
5

6075

6075

6075

6080

6080

6
0
8
5

6085

6090

6090

6090

60
75

6080

6070

6070

6070

6070

6070

6070

6070

6075

6075

60
75

6075

6075

6075

6075

608
0

6080

6080

6080

6085

6
0
8
5

6085

6090

6090

6090

6040

6
0
4
0

6
0
5
5

6
0
4
0

6045

6045

6050

6050

6
0
5
0

6
0
5
5

60
55

6055
6055

6
0
5
5

6
0
6
0

60
60

6060

6060

6065

6
0
6
5

6
0
6
5

60
65

6
0
6
5

6070

6070

6070

60
70

6055

6060

6
0
6
5

6065

RH

P
C

C

C
H

TPSS

RH

B
D

G
-T
re
e
-D

e
c

B
D

G
-T
re
e
-E

v
g

B
D

G
-T
re
e
-O
rn

B
D

G
-T
re
e
-D

e
c

B
D

G
-T
re
e
-E

v
g

B
D

G
-T
re
e
-O
rn

HAVANA ST

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

RIDGEGATE EAST FILING 1

(RIDGEGATE STATION)

SP16-11R

12.000 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #4
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station

IN
TE

RSTATE
 25
 - S

OUTHBOUND

IN
TE

RSTATE
 25
 - N

ORTHBOUND

I-2
5 O

FF
-R

AMP T
O 

RID
GEGATE

 PKWY

 

QUALITY POND

DETENTION AND WATER 

SPACES TOTAL

PARKING STRUCTURE - 1264 

TRANSITION PLAZA

BUS DROP-OFF AREA (4 BUS BAYS)

60 120 1800

SCALE  IN  FEET

HAPPY CANYON CREEK

100-YR FLOODPLAIN LIMITS

1ST LEVEL PEDESTRIAN ENTRANCE

(PASSENGER LOADING/UNLOADING)

ACCOMMODATE KISS N RIDE 

TEMPORARY CUL-DE-SAC TO 

TO TRACK CORRIDOR)

6' CHAINLINK FENCE (ADJACENT 

TO TRACK CORRIDOR)

6' CHAINLINK FENCE (ADJACENT 

C NORTHBOUND LIGHT RAIL TRACKL

C SOUTHBOUND LIGHT RAIL TRACKL

ELEVATIONS FOR FURNISHINGS/DETAILS

RIDGEGATE STATION PLATFORMS - SEE PLATFORM 

HOUSE)

EQUIPMENT (RELAY 

LIGHT RAIL SIGNAL 

HOUSE, POWER CONTROL CABINET)

EQUIPMENT (RELAY HOUSE, COMM 

LIGHT RAIL SIGNAL/ELECTRICAL 

DRIVER RELIEF STATION TYPE 1

BIKE LOCKERS (8 EA)

BIKE RACKS (8 EA)

DRIVE

RTD MAINTENANCE 

TRACTION POWER SUBSTATION (TPSS)

WROUGHT IRON FENCE AROUND TPSS

2 - 12' GATES

ACCESS DRIVE

TAIL TRACK 

FENCE BEHIND PLATFORM

6' VINYL CLAD CHAINLINK 

ENTRANCE

PEDESTRIAN 

2ND LEVEL 

TRACK

SOIL NAIL WALL AT TAIL 

2ND LEVEL PEDESTRIAN ENTRANCE

LOCATION (BY XCEL)

APPROXIMATE TRANSFORMER 

PD ZONING - SPECIAL, SCHWEIGER RANCH

UNPLATTED - SCHWEIGER RANCH FOUNDATION REC. NO. 2008034431

SCHWEIGER RANCH 

PD ZONING - COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE (C/M-U)

UNPLATTED - RIDGEGATE INVESTMENTS INC. REC. NO. 2007100482

UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED RTD 

EASEMENT

PROPOSED DRAINAGE 

ELEV = 6057.3

1ST LEVEL VEHICULAR ENTRANCE

ELEV = 6049.6

2ND LEVEL VEHICULAR ENTRANCE ELEV = 6069.3

ELEV = 6039.0

ELEV = 6067.6

ELEV = 6067.6

SOUTH OF INTERSECTION

BEGIN ONE-WAY BUS CIRCULATION 

ELEV = 6069.6

ELEV = 6070.7

NORTH OF INTERSECTION

END ONE-WAY BUS CIRCULATION 

ELEV = 6068.6

SHEET 2 OF 11

GRADING PLAN

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 142 of 240



6050

6040

6040

6040

6045

60
45

6050

6050

6050

60
50

6055

6055

60
55

606
0

6060

6060

6065

6
0
6
5

6
0
6
5

6070

6
0
7
0

6
0
7
5

6075

6080

6080

6090

T

ST

ST

ST

WATER WELL

PARKER W&S

RH

TPSS

RH

EVERGREEN TREE (TYP)

ORNAMENTAL TREE (TYP)

RTD IDENTITY SIGN

METAL EDGING (TYP)

ROCK MULCH TYPE 2 (TYP)

LARGE ORNAMENTAL GRASSES (TYP)

SMALL ORNAMENTAL GRASSES (TYP)

ROCK MULCH TYPE 1 (TYP)

ORNAMENTAL TREE (TYP)

METAL EDGING (TYP)

ROCK MULCH TYPE 1 (TYP)

SHADE TREE (TYP)

NATIVE GRASS (TYP)

PROP 5' TYPE R INLET

PROP FES

SHEET 3 OF 11

LANDSCAPE PLAN

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

RIDGEGATE EAST FILING 1

(RIDGEGATE STATION)

SP16-11R

12.000 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #4
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

40 80 1200

SCALE  IN  FEET

LEGEND

ROCK MULCH TYPE 1

SEED MIX

TURF

DECIDUOUS TREE 

ORNAMENTAL TREE 

EVERGREEN TREE 

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES 

DECIDUOUS SHRUB &

EVERGREEN SHRUB 

ROCK MULCH TYPE 2

ROCK MULCH

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 143 of 240



SHEET 4 OF 12

AA

AMERICAN BICYCLE SECURITY

MODEL 352 W/ PADLOCK HANDLE

PN #010

SITE FURNISHINGS

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station

RIDGEGATE EAST FILING 1

(RIDGEGATE STATION)

SP16-11R

12.000 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #4
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

45.00 MIN.45.00

45.00

45.00

45.00 45.00MIN

30.00

55.87 WITH STIPPLE FINISH (TYP)

TAN FIBERGLASS REINFORCED PLASTIC
TOP VIEW

3
'-
4
"

"2
16'-2

4
'-
1
"

4
'-
0
"

SIDE VIEW FRONT VIEW

3'-4"

W/PADLOCK

DOOR HANDLE

BICYCLE LOCKERS

BICYCLE LOCKERSBICYCLE RACKS
BOC

PLAN

BICYCLE RACK & LOCKER LAYOUT (TYP)

ELECTRICAL DRAWING SERIES

GROUNDING DETAILS IN

GROUNDING CONNECTION. SEE

TO BACK OF BENCH LEG FOR

1"X1"X1/4" STEEL TAB WELDED

RB-12 W/ ANTI-SLEEP RAIL

VICTOR STANLEY STEELSITES

RTD STANDARD BENCH -

ANCHOR, TYP

1/2" SST EXPANSION

BENCH A SIDE ELEVATION

"
8

5
1
'-
5

DUMOR BENCH WITHOUT BACK

BENCH A FRONT ELEVATION

DUMOR BENCH WITHOUT BACK

BENCH A PLAN

DUMOR BENCH WITH BACK

BENCH B FRONT ELEVATION

DUMOR BENCH WITH BACK

BENCH B PLAN

BENCH B SIDE ELEVATION

"
2

1
1
'-
5

NEWSPAPER "RAK" SYSTEMS

NOTES:

FAX: (251) 653-1014

LOCAL: (251) 653-4080

TOLL FREE: (800) 467-1725

THEODORE, AL 36582 U.S.A.

5500 PLANTATION RD.

RAK SYSTEMS, INC.

FROM:

6.  "RAK" SYSTEM MODEL NOS. AND DESCRIPTIONS AVAILABLE 

5.  AVAILABLE WITH LOCK OR LATCH

4.  ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN INCHES.

CONTACT FACTORY FOR DETAILS.

3.  ALL SPECIFICATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. PLEASE 

POWDER-COATED WITH TGIC POLYESTER POWDER COATING.

ETCHED, PHOSPHATIZED AND ELECROSTATICALLY 

2.  ALL FABRICATED COMPONENTS ARE STEEL SHOT-BLASTED, 

1.  STANDARD COLOR SHALL BE RAL 6009 FIR GREEN

"4
36'-0

1'-4"

DOME TOP

SHEET METAL 

DOME TOP

SHEET METAL 

49 B 49 B 49 B

49 HT 49 DW 49 T

SIDE ELEVATION FRONT ELEVATION

MB2 MB2

TRAY - MB3

ANCHOR (TYP.)

STEEL EXPANSION 

1/2"x2-1/2" STAINLESS 

ANCHOR (TYP.)

STEEL EXPANSION 

1/2"x2-1/2" STAINLESS 

"
4

3
5
'-
0

1
'-
7
"

"
4

3
3
'-
5

2
'-
1
1
"

"
4

3
6

"
2

1
1
'-
5

"
2

1
1
'-
5

DETAIL 2 - BICYCLE RACK

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE  ELEVATION TOP VIEW

PLACING ANCHORS

TO BOLT HOLES BEFORE 

SILICON OR POLYURETHANE 

ANCHOR (TYP.) (APPLY 

1/2" X 3" S.S. HILTI EXPANSION 
3/4" STEEL PLATE

BIKE RACK POST

OF BOLT HOLES

R3" TO CENTERLINE 

STEEL BASE PLATE

SECTION A-A

PLATE

STEEL BASE 

COLOR RAL 6009

FIR GREEN 

3
'-
2
"

1'-11"

"2
12 "2

12

1'-11"

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 144 of 240



SHEET 5 OF 12

SITE FURNISHINGS

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station

RIDGEGATE EAST FILING 1

(RIDGEGATE STATION)

SP16-11R

12.000 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #4
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

TICKET VENDING MACHINE (TVM)

LITTER RECEPTACLE ELEVATION

LITTER RECEPTACLE PLAN

LITTER RECEPTACLE GROUNDING CONNECTION

PREFINISHED METAL

CLEAR ACRYLIC

PREFINISHED METAL FRAME

PREFINISHED METAL SKIRT

SEE 8/AS-1601

TOP OF PLATFORM.

TRASH CAN BOLTED TO

RECEPTACLE

OUTSIDE FACE OF LITTER

IN PLATFORM SLAB

GROUNDING PLATE SET

METAL FRAME

LITTER RECEPTACLE

GROUNDING WIRE

PLATFORM SLAB

PROTRUDE 1 1/2" FROM

ANCHOR BOLT,

1/2" SST EXPANSION

WINDSCREEN TYPE 2 PLAN

WINDSCREEN TYPE 2 FRONT ELEVATION

" TYP2
12

"8
53'-8"8

311'-12"

4" TYP

TYP

"8
13'-4

4
" 

T
Y

P

5
'-
8
"

3
'-
0
"

T
Y

P
 E

A
 W

IN
G

"
2

1
2
'-
5

"8
32'-10

SHOWN DASHED

COLUMN BASE

BENCH B

ADA CLEAR GROUND SPACE

"
2

1
8
'-
4

"
2

1
8
'-
0

3
'-
3
"

3
'-
3
"

4
"

"
2

1
8

" 
T

Y
P

2
1

2

ACRYLIC PANEL, TYP

3/8" GLASS OR 

STEEL FRAME, TYP

BENCH B

SHOWN DASHED

CANOPY COLUMN

TYP

3/8" METAL PANEL, 

TYP

CONCRETE BASE, 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 145 of 240



R2

R2

R2

R2
R2R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

B B B B B B

R2

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

AA

1.1 1.4 1.8 2.5 3.0 2.9 2.6 2.0 1.6

1.4 1.7 2.3 3.1 3.7 3.8 3.6 2.8 2.2

2.0 2.4 3.4 4.4 5.3 5.3 5.1 4.0 3.3

3.1 3.6 4.9 6.1 7.0 6.8 6.5 5.5 4.8

4.2 5.0 6.5 7.9 7.9 5.6 2.3 3.4 3.8 4.0 4.1 4.3 4.6 4.8 5.0 5.1 4.8 4.5 4.1 3.8 3.5 3.3 3.2 3.1 3.1 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.2 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.0 3.4 3.9 4.5 4.9 4.8 4.4 3.7 3.5 3.5 3.6 3.8 3.5 2.5 6.8 8.0 7.1 6.2

5.4 6.4 8.3 9.5 8.9 5.3 2.2 3.3 3.7 3.8 4.0 4.2 4.5 4.8 5.0 5.1 4.8 4.4 3.9 3.6 3.3 3.0 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.8 3.0 3.5 4.0 4.4 4.4 4.1 3.7 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.8 3.5 2.6 7.7 9.5 8.4 7.4

5.8 7.0 9.0 10.0 9.1 5.2 2.1 3.2 3.8 3.9 4.0 4.2 4.3 4.5 4.7 4.7 4.4 4.1 3.7 3.3 3.1 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.9 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.8 3.1 3.3 3.7 3.7 3.7 3.6 3.4 3.4 3.5 3.9 3.6 2.9 7.7 9.5 8.4 7.4

5.5 6.6 8.5 9.3 8.3 5.3 2.2 3.4 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.1 4.2 4.3 4.4 4.4 4.1 3.8 3.5 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.9 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.7 2.7 3.0 3.3 3.4 3.5 3.5 3.4 3.4 3.6 4.1 3.8 2.8 6.8 8.6 7.6 6.7

4.5 5.5 6.9 7.8 7.8 5.7 2.6 3.6 4.1 4.1 4.2 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.1 3.9 3.6 3.3 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.1 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.9 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.5 3.8 4.2 3.9 2.5 6.6 7.1 6.1 5.4

3.2 4.0 5.1 6.0 6.2 6.3 5.4 5.5 4.5 3.9

2.3 2.8 3.7 4.6 5.0 5.2 4.7 4.2 3.3 2.8

1.6 1.9 2.7 3.2 3.6 3.7 3.3 3.1 2.3 1.9

1.2 1.5 2.2 2.7 3.0 3.1 2.5 2.3 1.7 1.4

2.2 1.9 1.4 1.2

2.0 1.7 1.3 1.1

2.5

2.4 2.1

2.2 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.7

2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.6

1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5

2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4

2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4

2.1 1.9 1.7 1.6

2.3 2.1 2.0 1.8

2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.0

2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.2

2.9 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.1 2.7 2.1

2.8 3.1 3.3 3.4 3.1 2.6 2.1

2.6 3.1 3.3 3.4 3.1 2.6 2.2

3.4 3.0 2.6 2.3

3.4 3.0 2.5 2.2

3.3 3.0 2.4 2.0

3.1 2.8 2.4 1.8

2.7 2.6 2.3 1.9

2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7

1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4

2.1 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1

2.2 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.5 1.2

2.3 2.2 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.2

2.4 2.3 2.1 1.7

2.4 2.3

2.7 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.6

2.6 2.8 3.0 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.2 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4

1.9 2.1 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.8 3.0 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.7 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.9 2.1

1.7 1.8 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.6

1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2

1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.2 2.0

1.4 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.2 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.1 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.3

1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.6 2.9 3.1 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.0 2.9 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4

1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.6 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.2 2.0

2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.1 1.8 1.8

2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.5 2.6 2.8 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.8

2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7

2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.3 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 1.9 1.7

2.2 2.4 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.2 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.6

2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.6 1.4

2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.1 1.9 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.4 2.1 1.7 1.5 1.4

2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5

2.0 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.4 2.9 3.0 3.1 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.5

1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 2.1 2.7 3.4 3.5 3.6 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6

1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 2.1 2.9 3.6 3.9 4.1 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6

2.2 3.0 3.9 4.1 4.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.7

1.6 2.2 3.3 4.1 4.4 4.3 4.0 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9

1.1 1.6 2.2 3.3 4.2 4.5 4.4 4.1 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.1

1.2 1.7 2.3 3.4 4.3 4.5 4.3 4.0 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4

1.3 1.8 2.5 3.5 4.2 4.2 4.0 3.6 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6

1.4 1.9 2.6 3.5 4.0 3.9 3.5 3.0 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.7 3.0 3.1 2.9 2.8

1.5 2.0 2.7 3.3 3.7 3.4 3.0 2.5 2.4 2.7 3.2 3.5 3.5 3.2 2.9 2.6

1.7 2.3 2.9 3.4 3.5 3.0 2.5 2.1 2.4 2.8 3.3 3.7 3.9 3.6 3.2 2.9

2.0 2.6 3.3 3.6 3.4 2.8 2.3 1.9 2.9 3.4 3.8 4.1 3.8 3.4 3.1 2.8

2.4 3.1 3.8 3.8 3.5 2.6 2.1 1.8 3.0 3.4 3.7 4.1 3.9 3.6 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.7

2.9 3.6 4.3 4.2 3.6 2.7 2.1 1.7 2.8 3.2 3.5 3.9 3.7 3.5 3.0 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.2

3.3 4.1 4.7 4.4 3.7 2.6 2.0 1.7 2.9 3.2 3.6 3.5 3.4 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.7

3.6 4.4 5.0 4.6 3.7 2.6 1.9 1.6 2.6 2.9 3.1 3.2 3.2 2.9 2.5

3.7 4.5 5.1 4.5 3.7 2.5 1.9 1.5 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.0

3.6 4.4 5.1 4.5 3.7 2.5 1.8 1.5 2.1 2.3 2.5

3.3 4.1 4.7 4.3 3.6 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.4 1.7

2.9 3.6 4.3 4.0 3.5 2.4 1.9 1.6

2.5 3.2 3.8 3.7 3.3 2.4 1.9 1.7

2.0 2.7 3.3 3.2 3.1 2.4 2.0 1.7

1.6 2.2 2.8 3.0 3.0 2.4 2.1 1.8

1.4 1.9 2.5 2.8 2.9 2.5 2.2 1.9

1.3 1.8 2.4 2.8 3.0 2.7 2.4 2.2

1.2 1.7 2.3 2.9 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.6

1.1 1.6 2.3 2.9 3.5 3.4 3.3 3.2

1.1 1.6 2.3 3.1 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.7

1.0 1.5 2.2 3.3 4.2 4.4 4.3 4.1

1.0 1.5 2.2 3.4 4.4 4.7 4.7 4.5

1.0 1.5 2.2 3.4 4.5 4.9 4.9 4.6

1.0 1.5 2.3 3.5 4.5 4.9 4.8 4.5

1.0 1.6 2.4 3.6 4.5 4.8 4.6 4.2

1.1 1.6 2.4 3.5 4.4 4.5 4.2 3.8

1.2 1.7 2.4 3.5 4.1 4.1 3.7 3.2

1.3 1.8 2.5 3.4 3.9 3.7 3.3 2.8

1.5 2.0 2.7 3.5 3.9 3.4 2.9 2.3

1.7 2.4 3.1 3.7 3.9 3.3 2.6 2.1

2.2 2.9 3.6 4.0 4.1 3.0 2.4 1.9

3.5 4.0 4.4 4.2 3.1 2.4 1.9

4.5 4.7 4.3 3.0 2.2

4.9 4.8 4.2 3.5 2.8

4.8 4.5 4.0 3.4

4.4 4.1 3.6 3.2

3.9 3.7 3.4 3.0

3.4 3.3 3.2 2.9

3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.3

2.8 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.0

2.7 2.6 2.5 2.2 1.9

2.8 2.7 2.6 2.2 1.8

2.9 2.8 2.6 2.2 1.9

2.9 2.7 2.3 2.0 1.8

2.8 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.1 2.1

2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.5 3.0 3.6 4.3 4.6 4.6 4.5 4.3 4.1 3.9 3.8 3.8 3.9

2.6 2.7 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.1 3.1 3.5 3.7 3.4 2.9 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.6 3.0 3.5 3.9 4.5 4.9 4.8 4.7 4.5 4.3 4.1 3.9 4.0 4.2 4.6 4.6

2.6 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.5 3.7 3.8 3.6 3.2 2.7 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.2 3.4 3.5 3.3 3.0 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.5 2.8 3.2 3.6 3.9 4.0 3.9 3.4 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.7 3.0 3.4 3.8 4.2 4.7 4.7 4.5 4.3 4.1 3.8 3.7 3.6 3.8 4.2 4.7 4.8 4.9 4.4 4.0

2.6 2.9 3.3 3.6 4.0 4.0 3.9 3.6 3.1 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.4 2.7 3.1 3.4 3.7 3.9 4.0 3.8 3.5 3.1 2.8 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.3 3.7 4.1 4.3 4.4 4.3 4.1 3.9 3.6 3.3 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.3 3.6 4.0 4.3 4.3 4.2 3.9 3.6 3.4 3.2 3.1 3.2 3.6 4.1 4.6 5.0 5.1 4.9 4.5 4.1 3.7

2.5 3.0 3.3 3.6 3.7 3.7 3.5 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.7 3.0 3.3 3.7 3.9 4.1 4.1 3.9 3.7 3.4 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.2 3.6 3.9 4.2 4.3 4.2 4.1 3.9 3.7 3.4 3.1 2.9 2.8 2.9 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.3 3.2 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.6 3.1 3.7 4.2 4.9 4.9 4.8 4.2 3.8 3.4

3.0 3.1 3.3 3.4 3.3 3.2 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.8 3.1 3.4 3.7 3.9 4.0 3.9 3.8 3.7 3.5 3.2 3.0 2.9 2.9 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.6 3.9 4.0 4.0 3.9 3.7 3.5 3.4 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.7 2.2 2.9 3.6 4.3 4.5 4.8 4.1 3.9 3.6 3.1 2.6

2.8 2.7 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.3 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.3 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.9 2.9 3.0 3.2 3.5 3.6 3.6 3.4 3.2 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.8 2.4 3.2 3.8 4.3 4.3 4.1 3.7 3.2 2.8 2.5

1.0 1.4 1.7 2.3 3.0 3.5 3.7 3.7 3.8 3.5 3.3 3.0 2.6

1.3 1.6 2.1 2.6 3.2 3.5 3.9 3.9 3.8 3.4 3.0 2.5

1.7 2.1 2.4 2.9 3.6 3.9 4.1 3.9 3.5 3.0

1.7 2.0 2.4 3.1 3.6 4.2 4.3 4.1 3.8 3.2

1.7 2.1 2.6 3.4 4.2 4.9 5.0 4.9 4.2 3.5

1.9 2.3 3.1 3.9 4.9 5.2 5.7 5.0 4.3 3.9

2.8 3.7 4.9 5.6 6.2 5.5 4.9 4.3 3.6

3.0 3.8 4.5 5.4 6.2 5.9 5.3 4.3 3.6

3.5 4.3 5.2 6.0 5.8 5.5 4.5 3.5 2.7

3.9 4.8 5.7 5.8 5.5 4.8 3.6 2.6 2.1 1.7

4.6 5.2 5.4 5.2 4.6 3.6 2.8 2.2 1.7

4.1 4.7 4.9 4.8 4.3 3.9 3.0 2.3

4.1 4.2 4.2 4.2 3.9

3.1 3.4 3.8 3.9

2.8 3.2

2.1

2.2 2.4 2.7

2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8

2.3 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.8

2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7

1.9 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.6

1.4 2.4

1.6 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.9 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.6

1.8 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.7 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.2 3.1 3.0 2.9

2.0 2.3 2.5 2.8 2.9 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.5 3.4 3.3 3.3 3.2 3.0

2.1 2.3 2.6 2.9 3.1 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.4 3.5 3.5 3.4 3.3 3.3 3.4 3.5 3.6 3.5 3.4 3.5 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.3 3.1

2.1 2.4 2.6 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.2 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.3 3.4 3.4 3.5 3.5 3.2 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.2 3.1

2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.2 3.2 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.9 2.9 2.9

1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.8

1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.2 3.4 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.2 3.5 3.3 3.0 2.8 2.7 2.8

1.9 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.1 3.5 3.6 3.4 3.1 2.9 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.9 3.1 3.5 3.7 3.6 3.3 3.0 2.9 3.0

2.0 2.5 2.8 2.7 2.8 3.0 3.0 2.9 3.1 3.1 3.0 3.2 3.3 3.1 3.3 3.2 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.1 3.1 3.4

2.3 2.9 3.1 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.5 3.8 3.6 3.8 3.4 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 3.1 3.7

2.5 3.2 3.4 2.6 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.4 2.6 3.6 4.2 3.9 4.1 3.6 2.7 2.5 2.6 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 3.0 4.0

2.4 3.1 3.4 2.6 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.5 2.4 2.7 3.6 4.1 3.9 4.2 3.6 2.7 2.5 2.6 2.4 2.6 2.5 2.5 3.0 3.9

2.3 2.9 3.1 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.5 3.8 3.6 3.8 3.4 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.5

2.0 2.5 2.8 2.7 2.8 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 3.2 3.3 3.1 3.4 3.2 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.0 3.0 3.2

1.8 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.7 3.1 3.5 3.6 3.4 3.0 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.8 3.0 2.9 2.9 3.2 3.5 3.7 3.6 3.3 2.9 2.8 2.8

1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.1 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.2 3.5 3.3 3.0 2.7 2.6 2.5

1.9 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4

2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6

2.0 2.3 2.6 2.8 2.9 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.4 3.4 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.4 3.4 3.3 3.1 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.8

2.0 2.3 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.4 3.4 3.3 3.3 3.2 3.4 3.5 3.5 3.4 3.3 3.3 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.0 2.8

1.9 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.1 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.4 3.2 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.6

1.7 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.4

1.5 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.1

6.5 7.8 9.4 9.4 8.0

5.7 7.0 9.1 10.2 10.9

5.5 6.5 7.9 8.7 10.4

6.0 6.4 7.1 7.5 8.2

5.8 5.9 6.2 6.9 7.4

9.5 8.7 7.7 6.1 5.4

10.3 9.1 8.1 6.3 5.0

11.3 10.2 9.2 7.1 5.4

9.0 9.9 9.6 7.8 5.9

9.1 8.5 7.4 7.0 6.1

8.5 8.5 8.2 5.7 4.3 4.7 4.5 4.7 5.0 5.4 5.9 6.1 6.2 6.2 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.0 6.0 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.0 6.1 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.5 6.7 7.0 7.2 7.3 7.3 7.4 6.9 6.0 5.9 6.1 6.0 5.3 4.9 4.5 3.8 3.2 3.1 5.5 7.0 7.0

6.8 7.5 8.1 6.1 4.9 5.1 4.8 4.4 4.5 5.0 5.6 6.1 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.4 6.5 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.3 6.4 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.4 6.3 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.5 6.4 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.4 6.5 6.5 6.4 6.4 6.5 6.5 6.6 6.7 6.9 7.1 7.4 7.7 7.8 8.1 8.4 7.9 6.9 6.8 7.0 6.9 6.1 5.2 5.8 6.9 6.5

5.1 6.1 7.5 7.0 5.8 5.3 5.7 6.2 6.3 6.1 5.5 4.7 4.2 4.4 4.9 5.6 6.2 6.6 6.5 6.4 6.5 6.5 6.3 6.3 6.4 6.3 6.3 6.4 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.4 6.2 6.2 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.5 6.5 6.6 6.6 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.4 6.4 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.7 6.9 7.1 7.4 7.8 8.1 8.6 9.1 8.7 7.5 7.4 7.6 7.6 6.8 6.2 5.0 3.7 4.6 6.1 6.3 5.8

4.0 5.2 6.9 7.2 6.7 6.3 6.9 7.4 6.6 5.8 5.2 4.5 4.1 4.5 4.9 5.5 6.1 6.4 6.2 6.1 6.2 6.2 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 5.9 6.1 6.0 5.9 6.0 6.0 5.9 5.9 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.3 6.1 6.2 6.2 6.1 6.1 6.2 6.1 6.1 6.4 6.5 6.6 7.0 7.4 7.7 8.3 8.8 8.4 7.3 7.2 7.4 7.4 6.8 6.9 6.4 5.4 4.7 4.8 4.7 4.3 4.5 5.1 6.1 5.9 5.5

6.2 6.7 7.2 7.4 7.8 8.0 7.9 7.9 8.9 9.6 9.8 9.2 8.5 8.7 8.9 8.7 8.3 8.5 8.5 8.1 8.0 8.4 8.3 7.9 8.2 8.3 8.0 7.9 8.3 8.2 8.1 8.2 8.4 7.8 8.0 8.3 8.2 7.8 8.2 8.3 8.0 7.8 8.4 8.2 8.0 8.1 8.3 7.9 8.1 8.3 8.2 7.9 8.3 8.4 7.9 7.9 8.3 8.2 7.8 8.0 7.9 7.6 7.4 8.0 7.8 7.1 5.9 4.9 4.6 5.3 6.1 6.8 6.5 6.6 6.8 6.3 5.1 4.1 4.1 4.1

7.0 7.4 7.6 7.8 8.3 8.4 8.2 8.2 9.2 10.0 10.1 9.6 8.9 9.1 9.2 9.0 8.6 8.8 8.8 8.3 8.3 8.7 8.5 8.2 8.4 8.5 8.3 8.1 8.6 8.4 8.3 8.4 8.6 8.1 8.3 8.5 8.5 8.0 8.5 8.5 8.3 8.1 8.6 8.4 8.2 8.4 8.5 8.1 8.3 8.5 8.4 8.1 8.5 8.6 8.2 8.2 8.6 8.4 8.0 8.2 8.2 7.9 7.8 8.6 8.6 7.5 5.7 4.4 3.9 4.6 5.5 6.5 6.8 7.0 7.3 6.9 5.9 5.2 5.3 5.5

8.0 8.0 8.0 7.9 8.1 8.1 7.9 7.9 8.8 9.5 9.7 9.2 8.7 8.8 8.9 8.7 8.2 8.5 8.5 8.0 7.9 8.2 8.1 7.7 8.0 8.1 7.9 7.7 8.1 8.0 7.9 8.0 8.2 7.7 7.9 8.1 8.0 7.6 8.0 8.1 7.9 7.7 8.2 7.9 7.8 7.9 8.1 7.7 7.9 8.1 8.0 7.7 8.0 8.2 7.8 7.8 8.1 8.0 7.7 7.9 7.9 7.7 7.6 8.6 8.2 6.5 5.5 6.6 7.1 7.7 7.6 6.9 6.5 7.0 7.2

8.6 8.3 7.9 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.3 7.3 8.1 8.6 8.9 8.5 8.0 8.2 8.3 8.0 7.6 7.8 7.7 7.3 7.2 7.5 7.4 7.1 7.3 7.4 7.2 7.0 7.4 7.3 7.2 7.3 7.5 7.0 7.1 7.4 7.3 6.9 7.3 7.4 7.1 7.0 7.5 7.2 7.1 7.2 7.4 7.0 7.1 7.3 7.3 7.0 7.3 7.4 7.1 7.0 7.4 7.3 7.0 7.2 7.2 7.0 7.0 8.0 7.2 4.4 6.0 6.8 7.5 7.6 7.2 7.0 7.5 7.8

7
.2

9
.5

1
0
.2

8
.2

1
0
.9

8
.2

7
.2

9
.8

5
.5

7
.2

8
.2

5
.2

7.2 6.7

8.6 7.6

8.5 6.5

9.7 8.7

7.1 10.2

4.6 5.9

6
.9

6
.4

4
.4

8
.3

5
.2

7
.7

8
.1

8
.4

8
.1

7
.6

7
.7

9.7 10.4

10.8 10.5

1
0
.4

9
.1

9
.8

9
.9

PHOTOMETRICS PLAN

SHEET 6 OF 11

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

(RIDGEGATE STATION)

SP16-11R

12.000 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #4
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

RIDGEGATE EAST FILING 1

H
AVAN

A STR
EET

PARKING GARAGE

PARKING LOT

SURFACE 

BUS DROP-OFF AREA

RIDGEGATE STATION PLATFORMS

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 146 of 240



SHEET 7 OF 11

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station

LIGHTING FEATURES

RIDGEGATE EAST FILING 1

(RIDGEGATE STATION)

SP16-11R

12.000 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #4
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station
04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 147 of 240



B1 B2 B3 B4 B5 B6 B7 B8

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E

S
E

E
 D

W
G
 N

O
. 
2
 /
  

A
S
-4

2
0
0

HIGHBLOCKGARDEN HYDRANT

LIGHT, TYP

PEDESTRIAN SMV, TYP WINDSCREEN TYPE 2, TYP BENCH B CANOPY TYPE 2

TO RAILTO BALLAST

A1

TYPE 1

CANOPY SIGNAGE, TYP

TELEPHONE

EMERGENCY

SLOPE 0.50%

B9 B10 B11 B12 B13 B14

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E
S

E
E
 D

W
G
 N

O
. 
1
 /
  

A
S
-4

2
0
0

CANOPY TYPE 2

TO BALLAST TO RAIL

SMV

TYPE 2, TYP

WINDSCREEN BENCH B EXTENDED HIGHBLOCK CANOPY TYPE 1

A2

NEWSPAPER RACKSIGNAGE, TYP

LIGHT, TYP

PEDESTRIANBENCH B

SLOPE 0.50%

SHEET 8 OF 11

EAST PLATFORM ELEVATION

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

RIDGEGATE EAST FILING 1

(RIDGEGATE STATION)

SP16-11R

12.000 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #4
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 148 of 240



M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E
S

E
E
 D

W
G
 N

O
. 
2
 /
  

A
S
-4

2
0
1

TO RAILTO BALLAST

LIGHT, TYP

PEDESTRIAN TRASH RECEPTACLE, TYP SIGNAGE, TYP

SLOPE 0.50%

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E

S
E

E
 D

W
G
 N

O
. 
1
 /
  

A
S
-4

2
0
1

HYDRANT

GARDEN

LIGHT, TYP

PEDESTRIAN HIGHBLOCK TRASH RECEPTACLE, TYP SIGN TYPE 8

TO RAILTO BALLAST

SIGN POLE EMERGENCY TELEPHONESIGN POLE

SLOPE 0.50%

SHEET 9 OF 11

WEST PLATFORM ELEVATION

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

RIDGEGATE EAST FILING 1

(RIDGEGATE STATION)

SP16-11R

12.000 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #4
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 149 of 240



SHEET 10 OF 11

ELEVATIONS

PARKING GARAGE NORTH/EAST 

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

RIDGEGATE EAST FILING 1

(RIDGEGATE STATION)

SP16-11R

12.000 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #4
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 150 of 240



SHEET 11 OF 11

ELEVATION

PARKING GARAGE SOUTH/WEST 

Southeast Rail Extension - Ridgegate Station

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

RIDGEGATE EAST FILING 1

(RIDGEGATE STATION)

SP16-11R

12.000 ACRES

 AMENDMENT, PLANNING AREA C/M-U #4
TH

RIDGEGATE PDD, 4

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 151 of 240



Southeast Rail Extension - RidgeGate Station
Site Plan

Southbound Rail

Northbound Rail

Bus Loop

SOUTH HAVANA STREET

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 152 of 240



design group
BRITINA

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

P: 303.456.2887

DENVER, CO 80202

1615 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 411

GRAPHIC TITLE

DENVER, CO 80202

475 17TH STREET, SUITE 720

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 153 of 240

josh
Rectangle

josh
Image

josh
Text Box
Canopy and Platform Materials

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Image

josh
Image

josh
Image

josh
Snapshot

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Image

josh
Rectangle

josh
Text Box
Pre-Finished Standing Seam

josh
Text Box
Berridge Shasta White

josh
Text Box
Canopy Roof

josh
Text Box
Painted/Pre-Finished Metal

josh
Text Box
Black RAL 9005

josh
Text Box
Windscreen Structure and Panels,Railings, Benches, Light Poles,Trash Receptacles

josh
Text Box
Painted/Pre-Finished Metal

josh
Text Box
Tactile Warning Strip

josh
Text Box
Tnemec White 00WH

josh
Text Box
Canopy StructureVMSCanopy Deck

josh
Text Box
Federal Standard #33538 

josh
Text Box
Concrete

josh
Text Box
Medium Broom Finish

josh
Text Box
Platform, Plaza, Sidewalks

josh
Text Box
Stone Veneer

josh
Text Box
Colorado Rose Sandstone, Buff Finish

josh
Text Box
Canopy Column Bases

josh
Text Box
Stone Veneer

josh
Text Box
Colorado Sandstone, Buff Finish 

josh
Text Box
Canopy Column Bases

josh
Text Box
Southeast Rail Extension - RidgeGate Station



design group
BRITINA

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

P: 303.456.2887

DENVER, CO 80202

1615 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 411

GRAPHIC TITLE

DENVER, CO 80202

475 17TH STREET, SUITE 720

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 154 of 240

josh
Rectangle

josh
Image

josh
Text Box
Drivers Relief Station and Windscreen Materials

josh
Text Box
Southeast Rail Extension - RidgeGate Station

josh
Image

josh
Image

josh
Image

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Text Box
Glass

josh
Text Box
Oldcastle Clear

josh
Text Box
Windscreens

josh
Text Box
Pre-Finished Standing Seam

josh
Text Box
Berridge Shasta White

josh
Text Box
Roof

josh
Text Box
Painted/Pre-Finished Metal

josh
Text Box
Tnemec No. 2 Pencil

josh
Text Box
Gutter, Downspout, Soffit, Fascia

josh
Text Box
Painted/Pre-Finished Metal

josh
Text Box
Tnemec Winter Mist

josh
Text Box
Doors, Trim, Metal Panel

josh
Text Box
CMU Base Course

josh
Text Box
Basalite 720 WR Ground Face

josh
Text Box
Exterior walls

josh
Text Box
CMU Accent Course

josh
Text Box
Basalite 807 WR Split Face

josh
Text Box
Exterior walls



design group
BRITINA

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

P: 303.456.2887

DENVER, CO 80202

1615 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 411

GRAPHIC TITLE

DENVER, CO 80202

475 17TH STREET, SUITE 720

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 155 of 240

tina
Image

tina
Image

tina
Image

tina
Image

tina
Image

tina
Image

tina
Image

josh
Rectangle

josh
Image

josh
Text Box
Garage Materials

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Arrow

josh
Rectangle

josh
Arrow

josh
Rectangle

josh
Text Box
Precast Spandrel Panel

josh
Text Box
Buff / Tan, Sandblasted

josh
Text Box
Storefront Glazing

josh
Text Box
Stone Veneer

josh
Text Box
Clear, Pilkington Energy Advantage Low E

josh
Text Box
Colorado Rose Sandstone, Coarse Ashlar

josh
Text Box
Painted/Pre-Finished Metal

josh
Text Box
FLEXOSPAN 320 Parchment, Ribbed Panel

josh
Text Box
Metal Panels 

josh
Text Box
Painted Concrete

josh
Text Box
Hazelnut, TNEMEC Paint

josh
Text Box
Upturned Beams

josh
Text Box
4" Square Wire Mesh

josh
Text Box
Stainless Steel

josh
Text Box
Ground Levels

josh
Text Box
Southeast Rail Extension - RidgeGate Station Garage

tina
Text Box
Stair Tower BasesColumns

tina
Text Box
Painted/Pre-Finished Metal

tina
Text Box
FLEXOSPAN 380 Charcoal

tina
Text Box
Metal PanelPedestrian CanopiesStorefront MullionsMetal FrameVehicular Entry Signage

tina
Text Box
Stair Towers



design group
BRITINA

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

P: 303.456.2887

DENVER, CO 80202

1615 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 411

GRAPHIC TITLE

DENVER, CO 80202

475 17TH STREET, SUITE 720

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 156 of 240

josh
Rectangle

josh
Image

josh
Text Box
Garage Elevations

josh
Text Box
East Elevation

josh
Text Box
Southeast Rail Extension - RidgeGate Station Garage

tina
Image

tina
Image

tina
Text Box
North Elevation



design group
BRITINA

P: 303.832.9091

DENVER, CO 80202

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 500

(303) 299-6990

DENVER,  COLORADO  80202

1560  BROADWAY,  SUITE  700

FasTracks
Southeast Rail
Extension

DENVER, CO 80202

 STREET, SUITE 400
TH

555 17

Southeast Rail Extension - Sky Ridge Station

P: 303.456.2887

DENVER, CO 80202

1615 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 411

GRAPHIC TITLE

DENVER, CO 80202

475 17TH STREET, SUITE 720

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 157 of 240

josh
Rectangle

josh
Image

josh
Text Box
Garage Elevations

josh
Text Box
Southeast Rail Extension - RidgeGate Station Garage

tina
Image

tina
Image

tina
Text Box
West Elevation

tina
Text Box
South Elevation



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 158 of 240



 

 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

Project Summary 
 

 
Date:   April 19, 2016 City Council Meeting 
 
 
Project Name: RidgeGate East Filing 1, 1st Amendment 
  
 
Location: Southeast of I-25 and RidgeGate Parkway, west of Havana Street 
 
 
Project Type / #: Subdivision Replat (Final Plat) SB16-23R 
 
 
Staff Contacts: Kelly First, Community Development Department Director 
  
  
Meeting Type: Public Meeting  
 
 
Summary of Request:  This application amends the original plat to create new lots and 

right-of-way to coincide with the plans for the light rail station, public 
access, and other parcels for future development. 

 
Planning Commission Recommendation: 
  
 Not applicable. 
  
Suggested Action:  
 Approval, subject to final approval by the City Public Works 

Department.  
 
 
 
 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 159 of 240



 

 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
 
DATE:  April 13, 2016 
 
FOR:  April 19, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: RidgeGate East Filing 1, (1st Amendment)  
 Site Improvement Plan SP16-11R 
 RidgeGate Station 
 
 

Owner Representative 

RidgeGate Investments, Inc 
Keith Simon 
10270 Commonwealth Street 
Lone Tree, CO 80124 
720-279-2581 

Regional Transportation District 
Nathan Herman 
1600 Blake Street 
Denver, CO 80202 
303-628-9000 

 
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date: April 12, 2016 
City Council Meeting Date:    April 19, 2016      
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
A. REQUEST: 

 
Approval of a Final Plat application to subdivide 34.25 acres into three lots and public 
road right-of-way.  
 
The property is currently undeveloped. It includes property that will be developed by the 
Regional Transportation District (RTD) as the RidgeGate Light Rail Station as part of the 
Southeast Rail Extension project. No improvements are proposed with this application; it 
is solely to subdivide property and dedicate public right-of-way to the City of Lone Tree 
while also defining parcels that will be conveyed to RTD.   
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 160 of 240



 
LOCATION: 

 
 The property is located southeast of I-25 and RidgeGate Parkway, west of Havana 

Street. 
 

        
Vicinity Map 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B. SITE CHARACTERISTICS: 
 

The site has no distinctive topographical or vegetative features.  
 

 
C. SERVICE PROVIDERS:   
 
  Water:   Parker Water District 
  Sanitation:  Parker Sanitation District 
  Police:   Lone Tree Police 
  Fire:   South Metro Fire Rescue Authority 
  Metro District:  Rampart Range Metropolitan District 
 
 
D. BACKGROUND: 

 
This application amends RidgeGate East Filing 1, approved by the City Council on June 
16, 2015 and recorded with Douglas County, and attached for reference. That plat 
established five lots for development and public road right of way, none of which has 
been constructed. The City Subdivision Code stipulates that the City Council is the 

N 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 161 of 240



authority to approve vacation of right-of-way dedicated on a plat, whether or not it has 
ever been used as such. The vacation of the original platted right-of-way is being 
accomplished with this replat, in accordance with requirements for Final Plats.  

 
 
E. DESCRIPTION: 
 

The site is zoned Planned Development (PD) under the RidgeGate Planned 
Development 4th Amendment. A sub-area plan for the property is currently being 
developed by the owner, with participation by the City of Lone Tree staff.  
 
Lot 1-A will be conveyed, by separate document, to RTD. Lots 2-A and 3-A will be 
retained by RidgeGate Investments, Inc. for future development. “Rail Way” is the public 
right-of-way that will be dedicated to the City with this replat.  
 
 

F. REFERRALS:    
 
The project was sent on referral. Comments of substance from the City Public Works 
Department are attached.  
 

 
 

G. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the 
Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the RidgeGate PDD, 4th Amendment. 

 
Staff recommends approval of the plat, subject to: 

 
1. Final approval of the Final Plat is subject to City of Lone Tree Public 

Works approval. 
 

 
H. ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Development Application 
2. Narrative  
3. Referral Comments  
4. Original Plat (RidgeGate East Filing 1) 
5. Proposed Plat (RidgeGate East Filing 1, 1st amendment 

 
 
END 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 162 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 163 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 164 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 165 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 166 of 240



V

I
E

W

C

O

R

R

I
D

O

R

2

V

I

E

W

C

O

R

R

I

D

O

R

3

V

I

E

W

C

O

R

R

I

D

O

R

4

P

A

R

K

 

M

E

A

D

O

W

S

 

D

R

.
VIEW

CORRIDOR

1

VIEW

CORRIDOR

5

11

21 22

16 15

9 10

14

12

13

2523

Q
:\

D
EN

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
57

67
-0

0-
Ri

dg
eg

at
e 

M
is

c 
D

es
ig

n\
D

es
ig

n\
Su

rv
ey

\R
id

ge
ga

te
 E

as
t F

ili
ng

 N
o.

 1
 P

la
t\

dw
g\

Ri
dg

eg
at

e 
Ea

st
 F

ili
ng

 N
o.

 1
.d

w
g,

 S
he

et
 1

, 4
/2

8/
20

15
 1

1:
11

:3
1 

A
M

, 1
:1

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 167 of 240



Δ=

    C20

Δ

    C21

Δ

    C22

Δ

    C23

Δ

    C24

Δ

    C25

Δ

Δ

Q
:\

D
EN

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
57

67
-0

0-
Ri

dg
eg

at
e 

M
is

c 
D

es
ig

n\
D

es
ig

n\
Su

rv
ey

\R
id

ge
ga

te
 E

as
t F

ili
ng

 N
o.

 1
 P

la
t\

dw
g\

Ri
dg

eg
at

e 
Ea

st
 F

ili
ng

 N
o.

 1
.d

w
g,

 S
he

et
 2

, 4
/2

8/
20

15
 1

1:
11

:5
6 

A
M

, 1
:1

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 168 of 240



V

I
E

W

C

O

R

R

I
D

O

R

2

V

I

E

W

C

O

R

R

I

D

O

R

3

V

I

E

W

C

O

R

R

I

D

O

R

4

P

A

R

K

 

M

E

A

D

O

W

S

 

D

R

.
VIEW

CORRIDOR

1

VIEW

CORRIDOR

5

11

21 22

16 15

9 10

14

12

13

2523

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 169 of 240



Δ

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 170 of 240



CITY OF LONE TREE 
STAFF REPORT 

TO:  

FROM: 

DATE: 

FOR:  

SUBJECT: 

Mayor Gunning and City Council 

John Cotten-Public Works; Phil Buckley-Corum 

April 13, 2016 

April 19, 2016 

Lone Tree Pedestrian Bridge  

Summary 
Pursuant to authorization, on January 5, 2016, for the Schematic Design phase 
drawings and pricing we are pleased to report that effort has resulted in Hamon 
Infrastructure submitting an Interim Guaranteed Maximum Price (IGMP) in early 
April that meets the desired budget. 

Cost 
We are seeking a funding approval of $6,707,850.00.  This is the balance of the 
original $7,000,000.00 project cost minus the $280,150.00 authorized in early 
January 2016.  Specific requests include the following: 

• Hamon Infrastructure - $34,460.00 (Balance of preconstruction fee) The
complete Hamon Infrastructure construction agreement will be complete 
within 2 weeks for City of Lone Tree review and approval.  This agreement 
totals $5,160,000.00 and includes a 10% contingency. 

• Fentress Architects - $460,450.00 (Balance of design documents and
construction administration 

• Corum Real Estate – $102,000.00 (Balance of preconstruction and
construction phase project management) 

Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
Recommend approval to move forward with remaining preconstruction/design 
efforts with contracts noted above. We are also seeking approval to continue 
efforts to finalize a construction agreement with Hamon Infrastructure based on 
their IGMP proposal. 

Background 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 171 of 240



Project background is summarized on the attached memorandum, dated April 13, 
2016, from Phil Buckley of Corum Real Estate. 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 172 of 240



 

 

MEMORANDUM  

TO: CITY OF LONE TREE 

FROM: CORUM REAL ESTATE GROUP 

SUBJECT: LONE TREE PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE 

DATE: APRIL 13, 2016 

 

I. SCHEMATIC DESIGN & PRICING PROCESS 

Pursuant to authorization by the City of Lone Tree City Council, on January 5, 2016, Corum 

Real Estate managed the predevelopment process and collaborated with, Fentress Architects, 

Design Consultant team and Hamon Infrastructure to further develop the design and 

construction parameters for the Lone Tree Pedestrian Bridge project.  Over the course of the 

last several months the team met on a bi-weekly basis. Hamon also proactively engaged the 

services of a steel fabricator shop to provide real-time cost estimating as well as cost and 

schedule reductions throughout the process.  Key decisions that were made, during this 

process, include the following: 

 Parameters for all design components 

 Foundation designs 

 Sizing for mast columns and all steel members  

 Clearances and load requirements 

 Bridge enclosure details  

 North and South ramping and abutment details  

 Lighting details  

 

Pursuant to these decisions, Fentress Architects issued an SD pricing package on March 7
th

 for 

Hamon to competitively price out key components of the project. In late March, Hamon 

presented a very detailed estimate for the project with detail back up and bid comparisons for 

a majority of the trades.  

 

We are pleased to report that Hamon did achieve an Interim Guaranteed Maximum Price 

(IGMP) that meets the desired budget.  The details of the overall budget are on a separate 

attachment.  Additionally, Hamon’s pricing includes a 10% contingency which is broken out 

separately on the cost summary sheet. 

  
 

II.  RECOMMENDATION/FUNDING  AUTHORIZATION REQUEST 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 173 of 240



2 
 

 

Given the success of the predevelopment effort, it is our recommendation to move forward 

with the balance of the design and pricing process to achieve completion of Construction 

Documents by late June 2016. Throughout the remaining design, which will be overseen and 

managed by Corum, we will work closely with Hamon and the design team to complete the 

Construction Documents within the parameters of the IGMP pricing and the overall 

development budget. After Hamon completes final GMP pricing from the construction 

documents we will seek final approval from Council and move into the construction phase. 

 

A cost estimate for the balance of the preconstruction and construction period for Fentress 

Architects, Hamon and Corum Real Estate are detailed in the attached funding request.  We 

would anticipate working closely with the City attorney to begin development of the 

construction agreement for Hamon.  An overall proposed project milestone schedule is also 

included for reference. 

 

We will be working closely with City staff and Planning Department throughout the 

remaining design and construction period and intend to provide regular updates to City 

Council. As always, we welcome any feedback and dialogue with the City of Lone Tree and 

look forward to continuing working towards the successful completion of the Lone Tree 

Pedestrian Bridge.     

 

 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 174 of 240



 

600 S. CHERRY STREET   SUITE 625    GLENDALE, COLORADO 80246 
PHONE: 303.796.2000    FAX: 303.796.2065 

 
 
 
 
April 12, 2016  
 
Mr. Seth Hoffman 
City Manager 

City of Lone Tree 

9220 Kimmer Drive 

Suite 100 

Lone Tree, CO 80124 

 

Re: Engagement of Preconstruction/Construction Services  

 Lincoln Pedestrian Bridge – City of Lone Tree, Colorado 

 

Dear Mr. Hoffman: 

 

We are looking forward to providing project management services on the City of Lone Tree’s 

proposed pedestrian bridge project.  Below is a brief summary of the balance of preconstruction 

and construction services for the Construction Document Phase and fees we have previously 

discussed. 

 

We will provide one-source project management to the City of Lone Tree staff regarding the Lincoln 

Pedestrian Bridge project.  In general, we will set the agenda for the project and maintain data 

requiring Owner decisions, with recommendations for ongoing decisions.  To continue the Project 

Team’s initial effective performance, we will assemble the data provided by the City of Lone Tree 

staff and vendors into a master project budget/forecasting tool/cost report so that there will be an 

on-going reference of total project budget/cost status and trending.  We will oversee the timely 

performance of the General Contractor’s pricing, their scheduling, and the Contractor’s bidding and 

procurement program.  We will also lead the effort to develop the AIA A-133 CM/GC agreement 

between Hamon Infrastructure and the City of Lone Tree.   

 

Services are further defined as follows: 

 

Pre-Construction (April 25th – July 2016) 

1) During the remaining 3 month pre-construction phase, various progress documentation 

from Fentress Architects their design consultants, Hamon Infrastructure and other specialty 

vendors will be monitored by this office, as requested by City of Lone Tree. The concept 

would also include attending design meetings as needed.   

2) Review and evaluate the current cost budget estimates provided by the General Contractor 

and Design Team; Continue to advise on possible cost reduction strategies; Specifically, 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 175 of 240



 

2 

monitor progress of the IGMP pricing effort and assist to reconcile with the current hard 

cost budget. Establish a plan of action for preserving maximum time to incorporate added 

scope alternates into the project. 

3) Monitor the work products and progress drawings of the architect engineers and any 

Owner-retained specialty consultants. 

4) Prepare and issue appropriate RFP’s for required owner vendors such as materials testing 

and other potential vendors; Summarize responses and make recommendations as 

appropriate; Negotiate agreements for City of Lone Tree review and final approval 

5) Prepare/negotiate/administer any General Contractor or Design Agreements for City of 

Lone Tree and its counsel’s review. 

6) Act as City of Lone Tree’s resource during the pre-construction process. 

7) Meet with Public Entities i.e. Douglas County or other governing authorities regarding any 

potential issues with the project. 

8) Comment on the General Contractor’s overall construction schedule and make 

recommendations to City of Lone Tree.  Review site logistics and access plan and comment 

accordingly. 

9) Coordinate with City of Lone Tree so that its stated program requirements are incorporated 

into the documents. 

Construction Phase (August 2016 – March 2017) 

1) Attend weekly coordination meetings with City of Lone Tree, Fentress Architects and the 

Hamon Infrastructure; Assure appropriate minutes are issued, including follow-up action 

items from these meetings. 

2) Monitor progress, workmanship, and budget/cost status of the project and comment to City 

of Lone Tree accordingly. Update the budget/cost report on a monthly basis and include 

with my monthly report. 

3) Confirm City of Lone Tree’s program requirements are satisfactorily incorporated into any 

drawings’ revisions during the construction process.  Review and research potential 

coordination issues with FF&E or A/V systems.  Where appropriate issue RFP’s for specific 

items, summarize responses and make recommendations to City of Lone Tree. 

4) Comment on Contractor’s overall proposed schedule and monitor progress. 

5) Assist City of Lone Tree in administration of owner vendors including soils testing, special 

equipment, etc. This would include monitoring appropriate reports and/or work efforts and 

commenting accordingly.   

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 176 of 240



 

3 

6) Act as a resource to City of Lone Tree management team throughout the construction 

process 

Project Accountability 

7) During the course of construction, we will conduct a special monthly management meeting 

at the project site with a representative of City of Lone Tree. After each meeting, Corum Real 

Estate will submit to you, in writing, a “Construction Progress Report,” which will include: 

 An evaluation of the progress of construction 

 Any deficiencies noted 

 An evaluation of the quality of construction 

 An evaluation of the project’s status with regard to Construction Schedules 

 Photographs of the project showing progress of construction 

 A summary of pending and executed Change Orders 

 Any other pertinent project issues which, in our opinion, should be known to the 

City of Lone Tree. 

During these special monthly visits to the project site, we will review the Contractor’s 

monthly Payment Requests, and evaluate the accuracy of the represented percentage of 

completion for each line item from the statement dealing with Direct Construction Costs for 

the scope of work under contract between City of Lone Tree and the General Contractor. 

8) Based on the foregoing, we will issue to you, in writing, a “Payment Release” form to include 

the following: 

 Outline of the Direct Construction Costs under contract, including Change Order 

amounts 

 Summary of Direct Construction Costs for work and materials in place 

 Summary of materials stored off-site and on-site 

 Confirm appropriate lien waivers are provided; If not, identify outstanding 

waivers to be provided prior to release of funding 

 Percentage of project completion 

9) We will monitor Concrete Test Reports and Soils Compaction Test Reports prepared by 

others; deficiencies will be summarized. 

10) We will review, negotiate, and recommend approval of Design Professional and Contractor 

Change Orders as submitted, and we will keep you informed as to their change in the scope 

of work and as to their impact to project costs. 

11) We will prepare monthly updates to an overall Project Financial Recap that will track 

project budgets, forecasts, and costs to date for all project-related scopes of work and 

services. 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 177 of 240



 

4 

12) Upon completion of the project, we will issue, in writing, a Final Report to the effect that the 

project has been properly certified by the Design Professionals-of-Record as completed 

substantially in accordance with the Plans and Specifications. 

Project Closeout Phase (April 2017) 

A one-month period in April 2017 will be established for closeout of contracts, punch list 
review, finalization and delivery of as-built drawings, warranties, etc. 

 

All of the services necessary for the design and construction of the project are to be performed by 

separate Architects and General Contractors, with this firm being only in a role of coordinating the 

work of others.  Project accounting is assumed to be performed by the City of Lone Tree staff.  We 

will incorporate the staff monthly vendor payment reports into an overall project financial recap as 

part of our basic services. 

 

Compensation for the remaining Construction Documents and Construction Phases will be billed 

monthly at $11,000/month. It is understood that the total remaining pre-construction and 

construction period reflects an anticipated 10 month aggregate period.  Should our services be 

desired longer than these periods, our work beyond would continue to be billed at the initially 

agreed upon hourly rate of $160/hour. 

 

We would like to thank you for selecting our firm to render these services and look forward to 
working with the City of Lone Tree toward successful completion of this project. 
 
Please indicate your acceptance of the terms of this Agreement by signing and returning one 
executed copy of this Agreement for our records. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Philip L. Buckley 
Senior VP – Construction 
Corum Real Estate 

ACCEPTED: 
City of Lone Tree 
 
 
By: _____________________________ 
 
 
Title: ___________________________ 
 
 
Date: ___________________________ 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 178 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 179 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 180 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 181 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 182 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 183 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 184 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 185 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 186 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 187 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 188 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 189 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 190 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 191 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 192 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 193 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 194 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 195 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 196 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 197 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 198 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 199 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 200 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 201 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 202 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 203 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 204 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 205 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 206 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 207 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 208 of 240

Kellydunn
Text Box
To Be Updated



Discipline Consultant
Total per 

Consultant

1 Civil Engineering Not included $0

2 Landscape Not included $0

3 Architectural Fentress Architects $284,600

4 Cost Estimating Not included $0

5 Structural Thornton Tomasetti $280,000

6 Electrical/Lighting/Plumbing ME Engineers/Illume $60,000

Total $624,600

$20,000

City of Lone Tree, Colorado

Exhibit C:  Pedestrian Bridge Design and Documentation Fees
Fentress Team | 20140080 | 24 July 2015

Reimbursable Estimate

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 209 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 210 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 211 of 240



 
CITY OF LONE TREE 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council  
 
FROM:  Lisa A. Albers, P.E., Capital Improvement Project Manager 
 

DATE:  April 8, 2016 
 
FOR:   April 19, 2016 City Council Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Brannan Sand and Gravel Company, LLC Contract 

for the 2016 Asphalt Overlay Program 

 
Summary 
Staff recommends City Council approve the construction contract (attached) with Brannan 
Sand and Gravel Company, LLC in the amount of $771,326.45 for the City of Lone Tree 
2016 Asphalt Overlay Program project and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
contract.  
 
Cost 
The total contract cost is $771,326.45. 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to approve the contract with Brannan Sand and Gravel Company, LLC in the 
amount of $771,326.45 for the City of Lone Tree 2016 Asphalt Overlay Program and 
authorize the City Manager to execute the contract documents.   
 
Background 
Bids were received and opened for the 2016 Asphalt Overlay Program on April 7, 2016 
and Brannan Sand and Gravel was the low bidder.  Staff checked references and the 
bonding company for Brannan Sand and Gravel Company, LLC and all feedback was 
positive.  Brannan Sand and Gravel Company, LLC has performed work for the City in 
previous years.   
 
The 2016 Asphalt Overlay Program will focus on three areas: 
 

- Charter Subdivision (last overlaid in 2001-2006) 
o Includes Sweet Water Rd, Chaparral Rd, Wildflower Pl, Bighorn Ct, 

Lodgepole Tr, Arrowhead Way and Ct, 7 Arrows Tr, Eagle Feather Way and 
Ct, and Winter Way.  

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 212 of 240



- Park Meadows Drive Repairs (full-depth replacement in distressed areas). 
- Park Meadows Center Drive from Yosemite to a point just north of Marshalls.   

 
The remaining funds for 2016 will be used to mill and overlay Park Meadows Drive east 
of Yosemite during the construction of the northbound right turn lane at the Park Meadows 
Drive and Yosemite intersection.   
 
Enclosed is a map of the streets to be overlaid in 2016.   
 
Attachments:  
- Attachment A: Map of 2016 Asphalt Overlay  
- Attachment B: Bid Opening Summary 
- Attachment C: Bid Tabulation 
- Attachment D: Notice of Award 
- Attachment E: Agreement 
- Attachment F: Notice to Proceed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 213 of 240



04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 214 of 240

albersl
Text Box
2016 Asphalt Overlay Program

albersl
Text Box
Attachment A

albersl
Image



CITY OF LONE TREE

BID OPENING SUMMARY

Project:

Job #

Bid Location:

Bid Date:

Bid Time:

Total Bid:
5% Bid Bond Signed & 

Submitted?

Addenda 

Acknowledged (2)?

$771,326.45 Yes Yes

$781,988.88 Yes Yes

$805,733.14 Yes Yes

$834,596.50 Yes Yes

$915,476.42 Yes Yes

$1,052,891.00 Yes Yes

$878,159.57 N/A N/A

Bids opened by: Taylor C. Goertz, P.E., City of Lone Tree Public Works

Witnessed by: Lisa Albers, P.E., City of Lone Tree, Capital Improvement Project Manager

Schmidt Construction Company

Martin Marietta

Chavez Construction

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

CONTRACTOR 

2016 Street Overlay

061-428

Lone Tree Public Works Department

Thursday, April 07, 2016

10:00 AM

Brannan Sand and Gravel Company, LLC

Aggregate Industries

PLM Asphalt & Concrete, Inc.

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 215 of 240

albersl
Text Box
Attachment B



BID TABULATION

Client: City of Lone Tree Job No: 061-428

Project: 2016 Street Overlay

Date: 4/7/2016

Bid Schedule A - 2016 Street Overlay

Charter Subdivision

 No. Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost

1 2" Asphalt Rotomill 45,119 S.Y. $2.55 $115,053.45 $2.90 $130,845.10 $2.34 $105,578.46 $2.25 $101,517.75 $2.60 $117,309.40 $2.64 $119,114.16 $3.00 $135,357.00
2 Asphalt Overlay-2" 5,013 TON $75.00 $375,975.00 $59.50 $298,273.50 $65.40 $327,850.20 $68.80 $344,894.40 $67.00 $335,871.00 $70.80 $354,920.40 $85.00 $426,105.00
3 Traffic Control 1 L.S. $16,000.00 $16,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $24,430.00 $24,430.00 $18,775.00 $18,775.00 $33,080.00 $33,080.00 $28,400.00 $28,400.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00
4 Mobilization 1 L.S. $22,400.00 $22,400.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $12,575.00 $12,575.00 $3,700.00 $3,700.00 $17,455.00 $17,455.00 $8,400.00 $8,400.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
5 Erosion Control 1 L.S. $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,874.37 $2,874.37 $1,506.00 $1,506.00 $1,782.00 $1,782.00 $3,800.00 $3,800.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00
6 Force Acccount 1 L.S. $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

TOTAL Charter Sub-Division $557,428.45 $490,618.60 $498,308.03 $495,393.15 $530,497.40 $539,634.56 $615,462.00

Bid Schedule F - 2016 Street Overlay

Park Meadows Dr - West of Yosemite

 No. Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost

1 Full Depth Removal/Replacement 393 TON $130.00 $51,090.00 $105.00 $41,265.00 $107.50 $42,247.50 $161.50 $63,469.50 $130.00 $51,090.00 $174.00 $68,382.00 $160.00 $62,880.00
2 Saw Cut Asphalt 893 L.F. $5.00 $4,465.00 $3.25 $2,902.25 $1.95 $1,741.35 $5.65 $5,045.45 $1.50 $1,339.50 $2.40 $2,143.20 $3.00 $2,679.00
3 Traffic Control 1 L.S. $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $5,980.00 $5,980.00 $11,265.00 $11,265.00 $2,595.00 $2,595.00 $13,250.00 $13,250.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
4 Mobilization 1 L.S. $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $2,045.00 $2,045.00 $1,400.00 $1,400.00 $8,932.00 $8,932.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00
5 Erosion Control 1 L.S. $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $445.00 $445.00 $423.00 $423.00 $1,134.00 $1,134.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

TOTAL #5 Park Meadows Dr - West of Yosemite $71,055.00 $50,667.25 $52,458.85 $81,602.95 $65,090.50 $89,275.20 $87,559.00

Bid Schedule G - 2016 Street Overlay

Park Meadows Center Drive

 No. Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost

1 2" Asphalt Rotomill 16,430 S.Y. $2.50 $41,075.00 $2.81 $46,168.30 $2.45 $40,253.50 $2.25 $36,967.50 $2.65 $43,539.50 $2.85 $46,825.50 $3.00 $49,290.00
2 Asphalt Overlay -2" 1,826 TON $75.00 $136,950.00 $57.00 $104,082.00 $65.70 $119,968.20 $68.80 $125,628.80 $68.00 $124,168.00 $76.32 $139,360.32 $85.00 $155,210.00
3 8" White Solid 1,100 L.F. $2.80 $3,080.00 $1.10 $1,210.00 $1.10 $1,210.00 $1.50 $1,650.00 $1.40 $1,540.00 $1.25 $1,375.00 $6.00 $6,600.00
4 4" Double Yellow 3,272 L.F. $1.04 $3,402.88 $1.10 $3,599.20 $1.10 $3,599.20 $1.50 $4,908.00 $1.20 $3,926.40 $1.25 $4,090.00 $5.00 $16,360.00
5 4" White Skip 4,362 L.F. $0.52 $2,268.24 $0.55 $2,399.10 $0.55 $2,399.10 $0.37 $1,613.94 $0.35 $1,526.70 $0.32 $1,395.84 $5.00 $21,810.00
6 White Arrow Symbol 11 EA. $360.00 $3,960.00 $300.00 $3,300.00 $300.00 $3,300.00 $484.00 $5,324.00 $388.00 $4,268.00 $410.00 $4,510.00 $400.00 $4,400.00
7 White "ONLY" Symbol 4 EA. $540.00 $2,160.00 $400.00 $1,600.00 $390.00 $1,560.00 $707.50 $2,830.00 $605.00 $2,420.00 $590.00 $2,360.00 $500.00 $2,000.00
8 2' Stop Bar 46 EA. $50.00 $2,300.00 $22.00 $1,012.00 $22.00 $1,012.00 $29.80 $1,370.80 $30.00 $1,380.00 $25.00 $1,150.00 $400.00 $18,400.00
9 White Crossblock (2' x 10') 36 EA. $180.00 $6,480.00 $220.00 $7,920.00 $220.00 $7,920.00 $298.00 $10,728.00 $230.00 $8,280.00 $250.00 $9,000.00 $300.00 $10,800.00

10 Traffic Control 1 L.S. $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $17,750.00 $17,750.00 $13,350.00 $13,350.00 $7,510.00 $7,510.00 $12,050.00 $12,050.00 $31,600.00 $31,600.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00
11 Mobilization 1 L.S. $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $14,500.00 $14,500.00 $9,250.00 $9,250.00 $3,700.00 $3,700.00 $10,100.00 $10,100.00 $17,400.00 $17,400.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00
12 Erosion Control 1 L.S. $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $1,506.00 $1,506.00 $810.00 $810.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00
13 Force Account 1 L.S. $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

TOTAL #5 Park Meadows Center Drive $249,676.12 $230,040.60 $231,222.00 $228,737.04 $239,008.60 $286,566.66 $349,870.00

Grand Total = $878,159.57 $771,326.45 $781,988.88 $805,733.14 $834,596.50 $915,476.42 $1,052,891.00
Engineer's Opinion Brannan Sand & Gravel Aggregate Industries PLM Asphalt & Concrete, Inc. Schmidt Construction Company Martin Marietta Chavez Construction

Chavez ConstructionEngineer's Opinion Brannan Sand & Gravel Aggregate Industries PLM Asphalt & Concrete, Inc. Schmidt Construction Company Martin Marietta

Engineer's Opinion Brannan Sand & Gravel Aggregate Industries PLM Asphalt & Concrete, Inc. Schmidt Construction Company Martin Marietta Chavez Construction

Schmidt Construction Company Martin Marietta Chavez Construction

TTG Corporation

Consulting Engineers

Engineer's Opinion Brannan Sand & Gravel Aggregate Industries PLM Asphalt & Concrete, Inc.

Page 1 of 1

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 216 of 240

albersl
Text Box
Attachment C



 
2016 Street Overlay 00 51 00 - 1 Project No. 061-428 
 

SECTION 00 51 00 

  

NOTICE OF AWARD 
 
 

Dated  April 19, 2016 
 
 
TO:      BRANNAN SAND AND GRAVEL COMPANY, LLC 
 
Project:     2016 Street Overlay 
 
ENGINEER's Project No.:  PROJECT No. 061-428 
 
OWNER:    CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO 
 
 
You are hereby notified that your Bid dated April 7, 2016 for the above Contract has been considered. 
You are the apparent successful Bidder and have been awarded a contract for Bid Schedules A, F 
and G.  
 

2016 Street Overlay 
 
The Estimated Contract Price based on total of Unit Price Work is: 
 
Seven Hundred Seventy One Thousand Three Hundred Twenty Six Dollars and Forty Five Cents    
($771,326.45) 
 
Four (4) copies of each of the proposed Contract Documents (with reduced-sized Drawings) 
accompany this Notice of Award.  
 
You must comply with the following conditions precedent within ten (10) days of the date of this Notice 
of Award that is by April 29, 2016. 
 

1. You must deliver to the CITY all four (4) fully executed counterparts of the Agreement 
including all the Contract Documents.  This includes the sets of Drawings.  Each of the 
Contract Documents must bear your signature on the cover of the page. 

 
2. You must deliver with the executed Agreement the Contract Security (Bonds) as specified in 

the Instructions to Bidders, General Conditions (paragraph 6.01) and Supplementary 
Conditions. 

 
Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle CITY to consider your bid 
abandoned, to annul this Notice of Award and to declare your Bid Security forfeited. 
 
Within ten (10) days after you comply with those conditions, CITY will return to you two (2) fully signed 
counterparts of the Agreement with the Contract Documents attached. 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 
By: ______________________________________ 
 
Title: City Manager 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 217 of 240

albersl
Text Box
Attachment D



2016 Street Overlay 00 52 43 - 1 Project No. 061-428 

 

SECTION 00 52 43 
 

AGREEMENT – UNIT PRICE 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is dated as of the     day of     in the year 20___ by 
and between the 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO 
(hereinafter called CITY) and 

 
 

BRANNAN SAND AND GRAVEL COMPANY, LLC 
(hereinafter called Contractor) 

 
 
CITY and Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as 
follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1. WORK 
 
Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work is 
generally described as follows: 
 

2016 STREET OVERLAY 
 

ARTICLE 2. ENGINEER 
 
The project has been designed by TTG Engineers, Inc., who is hereinafter called “Engineer” and 
who will assume all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned to 
“Engineer” in the contract documents in connection with completion of the Work in accordance with 
the Contract Documents. 
 
 
ARTICLE 3. CONTRACT TIME 
 
3.1 The Work to be provided under all awarded schedules shall meet Final Completion no later 

than August 19, 2016 and that Substantial and Final Completion dates for all awarded Work 
shall be negotiated based on the Bid Schedule’s Phasing/Schedule Plan for that awarded 
work.  At a minimum, all awarded work shall be substantially completed within sixty (60) days 
and final completion shall be seventy-five (75) days. 

 
3.2 Liquidated Damages: CITY and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence of this 

Agreement and that CITY will suffer financial loss if the Work is not substantially complete 
within the time specified in Paragraph 3.1 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in 
accordance with Article 11 of the General Conditions. They also recognize the delays, 
expense and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss 
suffered by CITY if the Work is not substantially completed on time. Accordingly, instead of 
requiring any such proof, CITY and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay 
(but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay CITY Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00)for each day 
that expires after the time specified in Paragraph 3.1 above for substantial completion until 
the Work is substantially complete. After Substantial Completion if Contractor shall neglect, 
refuse or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Time or any proper 
extension thereof granted by CITY, Contractor shall pay CITY Five Hundred dollars ($500) 
for each day that expires after the time specified in Paragraph 3.1 above for completion and 
readiness for final payment. 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 218 of 240

albersl
Text Box
Attachment E



2016 Street Overlay 00 52 43 - 2 Project No. 061-428 

 

 
ARTICLE 4. CONTRACT PRICE 
 
CITY shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in current funds in accordance with the 
Contract Documents: 
 
For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the established unit price for each separately 
identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of that item, in accordance with the 
attached Bid Schedule.  
 
As provided in paragraph 13.03 of the General Conditions, estimated quantities are not guaranteed 
by CITY or Engineer, and determinations of actual quantities and classification are to be made by 
Engineer as provided in paragraph 10.06 of the General Conditions and any applicable 
Supplementary Conditions attached hereto. Unit prices have been computed as provided in 
paragraph 13.03.B of the General Conditions. 
 
ESTIMATE TOTAL OF ALL UNIT PRICE WORK 
 
Seven Hundred Seventy One Thousand Three Hundred Twenty Six Dollars and Forty Five Cents     
($771,326.45) 
 
 
ARTICLE 5. PAYMENT PROCEDURES 
 
Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 14 of the General 
Conditions. Applications for payment will be processed by CITY as provided in the General 
Conditions and Supplementary Conditions. 
 
5.1 Progress Payments. CITY shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price 

on the basis of a Contractor’s Applications for Payment as recommended by Engineer. All 
progress payments will be on the basis of the progress of the Work measured by the 
schedule of values established in paragraph 2.05 of the General Conditions (and in case of 
Unit Price Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event the is no schedule 
of values, as provided in the General Conditions. 

 
5.1.1 Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the 

percentage indicated below, but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously 
made and less such amounts as Engineer shall determine, or CITY may withhold, in 
accordance with Paragraphs 15.01.C.5 and 15.01.C.6 of the General Conditions. 

 
 a. 95% of Work completed (with the balance being retainage). If Work has been at least 

50% completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character and progress of the 
Work have been satisfactory to CITY and Engineer, CITY, on recommendation of 
Engineer, may determine that as long as the character and progress of the Work 
remain satisfactory to them, there will be no additional retainage except as provided 
by the General Conditions, or State law. 

 
 b. 95% (with the balance being retainage) of materials and equipment not incorporated 

in the Work (but delivered, suitably stored and accompanied by documentation 
satisfactory to CITY as provided in Paragraph 15.01.B.1 of the General Conditions). 

 
5.2 Final Payment. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with 

Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions, CITY shall pay the remainder of the Contract 
Price as recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06, as amended by 
the supplementary conditions. 

 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 219 of 240



2016 Street Overlay 00 52 43 - 3 Project No. 061-428 

 

ARTICLE 6. INTEREST 
 
All moneys not paid when due hereunder as provided in Article 15 of the General Conditions shall 
bear interest at the maximum rate of 8% per year.  
 
ARTICLE 7. CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS 
 
In order to induce CITY to enter into this Agreement, Contractor makes the following 
representations: 
 
7.1 Contractor has familiarized himself with the nature and extent of the Contract 

Documents, Work, site, locality, and with all local conditions and Laws and 
Regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance, or furnishing 
of the Work. 

 
7.2 Contractor has studied carefully all reports of explorations and test of subsurface 

conditions and drawings of physical conditions which are identified in the 
Supplementary Conditions as provided in Paragraph 5.03 of the General Conditions, 
and accepts the determination set forth in Paragraph SC-5.03 of the Supplementary 
Conditions of the extent of the technical data contained in such reports and drawings 
upon which Contractor is entitled to reply. 

 
7.3 Contractor has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for 

obtaining and carefully studying) all such examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, and studies (in addition to or to supplement those referred to in 
Paragraph 7.2 above) which pertain to the subsurface or physical conditions at or 
contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, performance or 
furnishing of the Work as Contractor considers necessary for the performance or 
furnishing of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of Paragraph 5.03 of the General Conditions; and no 
additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar 
information or data are or will be required by Contractor for such purposes. 

 
7.4 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on 

the Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or 
contiguous to the site and assumes responsibility for accurately locating said 
Underground Facilities. No additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in respect of said Underground 
Facilities are or will be required by Contractor in order to perform and furnish the 
Work at the Contract Price within the Contract Time and in accordance with the other 
terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the provisions 
of Paragraph 5.04 of the General Conditions. 

 
7.5 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, 

investigations, tests, reports and data with the terms and conditions of the Contract 
Documents. 

 
7.6 Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies 

that he has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof 
by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 

 
ARTICLE 8. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire agreement between CITY and Contractor 
concerning the Work, consist of the following: 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 220 of 240



2016 Street Overlay 00 52 43 - 4 Project No. 061-428 

 

 
8.1 This Agreement (Pages 00 52 43 – 1 to 00 52 43 - 7, inclusive). 
 
8.2 Exhibit to this Agreement (pages  0  to 0, inclusive). 
 
8.3 Performance, Payment and other Bonds (identified in 00 61 13.13 and 00 61 13.16). 
 
8.4 Notice of Award. 
 
8.5 Notice to Proceed. 
 
8.6 General Conditions (Pages 1 to 65, inclusive) being the Standard General Conditions 

of the Construction Contract (2013 Edition). 

 
8.7 Supplementary Conditions (Pages 1-13, inclusive). 
 
8.8. Drawings and Specifications bearing the title:  
 

  2016 Street Overlay  
 
8.9 Addendum numbers 1-2. 
 
8.10 Contractor’s Bid, dated April 7, 2016. 
 
8.11  Documentation submitted by Contractor prior to Notice of Award (Pages 1  to 1)   
  inclusive). 
 
8.12 The following which may be delivered or issued after the Effective Date of the 

Agreement and are attached hereto: All written amendments and other documents 
amending, modifying, or supplementing of the Contract Documents pursuant to 
Paragraph 11.01 of the General Conditions. 

 
The documents listed in Article 8 et. seq. above are attached to this Agreement 
(except as expressly noted otherwise above). 

 
There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 8. The 
Contract Documents may only be amended, modified or supplemented as provided 
in Paragraph 11.01 of the General Conditions. 

 
In case of discrepancy, the order of precedence of the following Contract Documents 
is as follows (i.e., the document with the lower numerical value shall govern over the 
documents with a higher value): 

 
1. Change Orders 
2. This Agreement 
3. Addenda 
4. Drawings 
5. Supplementary Conditions 
6. Specifications 
7. General Conditions 
 

 
 
 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 221 of 240



2016 Street Overlay 00 52 43 - 5 Project No. 061-428 

 

ARTICLE 9. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND IMMIGRATION STATUS OBLIGATIONS 
 

9.1 CONTRACTOR shall give all notices and comply with all Laws and Regulations 
applicable to furnishing and performance of the Work, including, without limitations, 
any preference for Colorado Labor as may be required pursuant to Article 17, of Title 
8 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (the “Keep Jobs in Colorado Act”).  Except where 
otherwise expressly required by applicable Laws and Regulations, neither CITY nor 
DESIGN PROFESSIONAL shall be responsible for monitoring CONTRACTOR's 
compliance with any Laws or Regulations. 

 
9.2 Contractor certifies, through signature of its authorized representative executing this 

Agreement, that it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien who will 
perform work under the public contract for services and that the Contractor will 
participate in the United States Government’s E-Verify Program or the State of 
Colorado Department of Labor and Employment Program (“Department Program”) in 
order to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for 
employment to perform work under the public contract for services. 

 
9.3  Contractor shall not: 
 

1)  Knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work  under this 
Agreement; or 

 
2)  Enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to the contractor that 
the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to 
perform work under the public contract for services. 

 
9.4 Contractor shall affirm as required by C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102 (c) (II) the employment 

eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work under 
the public contract for services through participation in either the E-Verify Program or 
the Department Program. 

 
9.5 Contractor is prohibited from using the E-Verify Program or Department Program 

procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while the public 
contract for services is being performed. 

 
9.6 If Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under 

the public contract for services knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, 
Contractor shall be required to: 

 
1)  Notify the subcontractor and the City within three days that the Contractor has 
actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal 
alien; and 

 
2)  Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three days of receiving 
the notice required pursuant to sub-subparagraph 9.2 2) required the subcontractor 
does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that the 
Contractor shall not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such three 
days the subcontractor provides information to establish that the subcontractor has 
not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. 

 
9.7 Contractor shall comply with all rules and regulations and any reasonable request by 

the State Department of Labor and Employment made in the course of the 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 222 of 240



2016 Street Overlay 00 52 43 - 6 Project No. 061-428 

 

Department’s performance of its lawful duties pursuant to C.R.S. 8-17.5-101 et seq., 
as amended from time to time. 

 
9.8 If Contractor violates any of the provisions set forth in this section, the City may 

terminate the Agreement and Contract shall be liable for all actual and consequential 
damages incurred by the City. 

 
ARTICLE 10. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
10.1 Terms used in this Agreement which are defined in Article 1 of the General 

Conditions shall have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions. 
 
10.2 Reference to the General Conditions shall include modifications thereof by the 

Supplementary Conditions. 

 
10.3 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract 

Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the 
party sought to be bound; and specifically but without limitation, monies that may 
become due and monies that are due may not be assigned without such consent 
(except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and 
unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment no 
assignment will release or discharge that assignor from any duty or responsibility 
under the Contract Documents. 

 
10.4 Except for the intended beneficiaries of the Labor and Material Payment Bond 

executed in conjunction with this Agreement, nothing in this Agreement shall be 
construed to give any rights or benefits by virtue of this Agreement to anyone other 
than CITY and Contractor, and all duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to 
this Agreement will be for sale and exclusive benefit of CITY and Contractor and not 
for the benefit of any other party. 

 
 
10.5 CITY and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns and legal 

representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in 
the Contract Documents. 

 
10.6 Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable 

under any law or regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions 
shall continue to be valid and binding upon CITY and Contractor, who agree that the 
Contract Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part 
thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes a close as possible to 
expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 

 
10.7 The CITY and Contractor acknowledge and agree that the payments hereunder shall 

constitute current expenditures of the CITY payable in the fiscal years for which 
funds are appropriated for the payment thereof. The CITY’s obligations under this 
Agreement shall be from year to year only and shall not constitute a multiple-fiscal 
year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation of the CITY, or an obligation of 
the CITY payable in any fiscal year beyond the fiscal year for which funds are 
appropriated for the payment thereof, or payable from any funds of the CITY other 
than funds appropriated for the payment of current expenditures. No provision of this 
Agreement shall be construed to pledge or to create a lien on any class or source of 
CITY monies, assets or properties. 

 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 223 of 240



2016 Street Overlay 00 52 43 - 7 Project No. 061-428 

 

10.8 To the extent this contract may be construed to be a “sole source contract” within the 
meaning of sections 15 through 17 of Article XXVIII of the Colorado Constitution, and 
to the extent these constitutional provisions have not been enjoined or invalidated by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, the requirements and limitations of these 
constitutional provisions are hereby incorporated in this contract, including the 
following: 

 
 Because of a presumption of impropriety between contributions to any campaign and 

sole source government contracts, contract holders shall contractually agree, for the 
duration of the contract and for two years thereafter, to cease making, causing to be 
made, or inducing by any means, a contribution, directly or indirectly, on behalf of the 
contract holder or on behalf of his or her immediate family member and for the 
benefit of any political party or for the benefit of any candidate for any elected office 
of the state or any of its political subdivisions.  

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 224 of 240



2016 Street Overlay 00 52 43 - 8 Project No. 061-428 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this Agreement in triplicate. One 
counterpart each has been delivered to CITY, Contractor, and Engineer. All portions of the Contract 
Documents have been signed or identified by CITY and Contractor or by Engineer on their behalf. 
 
This Agreement will be effective on       , 20____. 
 
 
CITY:        CONTRACTOR: 
CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO    BRANNAN SAND AND GRAVEL 

COMPANY, LLC     
 
 
By:        By:       
  
Title:        Title:       
 
 
 
Attest:       Attest:  
 
By:        By:        
 
Title:         Title:        
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 [SEAL]      [SEAL] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Address For Giving Notices:  
 
CITY:      CONTRACTOR: 
 
City of Lone Tree                                             
9220 Kimmer Dr, Suite 100                            
Lone Tree, CO 80124                             
Attn: Lisa A. Albers, P.E.     Attn:         
 
 
 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 225 of 240



 

2016 Concrete Replacement 00 55 00 - 1 Project No.061-428 

 

SECTION 00 55 00 
 

NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 

Dated April 19, 2016 
 
 

TO:     BRANNAN SAND AND GRAVEL COMPANY, LLC 
 

PROJECT:     2016 Concrete Replacement 
 

Engineers Project No.:   PROJECT No. 061-428 
 
AGREEMENT DATE:  _______________________ 
 

OWNER:    CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO 
 
You are notified that the Contract Time under the above contract will commence to run on 
____________________, 20___.  By that date, you are to start performing the Work and your other 
obligations under the Contract Documents.  In accordance with Article 3 of the Agreement the dates of 
Substantial Completion and Final Completion are _________________, 20___ and ________________, 
20___, respectively. 
 
Before you may start any Work at the site, paragraph 2.01.B of the Supplementary Conditions provides 
that the CONTRACTOR shall deliver to CITY (with copies to ENGINEER) certificates of insurance which 
the CONTRACTOR is required to purchase and maintain in accordance with Paragraphs 6.02, 6.03, and 
6.05 of the General Conditions, and any modification as contained within the Supplementary Conditions of 
the Contract Documents. 
 
Work at the site must be started by _______________, 20___ as indicated in the Contract Documents. 
 
THE CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________ 
 
 
 
Copy to CITY 
(Use Certified Mail, 
Return Receipt Requested) 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 226 of 240

albersl
Text Box
Attachment F



 
CITY OF LONE TREE 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council  
 
FROM:  Lisa A. Albers, P.E., Capital Improvement Project Manager 
 

DATE:  April 11, 2016 
 
FOR:   April 19, 2016 City Council Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Silva Construction, Inc. Contract for the 2016 

Concrete Replacement  

 
Summary 
Staff recommends that Council approve the construction contract (attached) with Silva 
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $488,700 for the City of Lone Tree 2016 Concrete 
Replacement project and authorize the City Manager to execute the contract.  
 
Cost 
The total contract cost is $488,700. 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to approve the contract with Silva Construction, Inc.in the amount of $488,700 for 
the City of Lone Tree 2016 Concrete Replacement and authorize the City Manager to 
execute the contract documents.   
 
Background 
Bids were received and opened for the 2016 Concrete Replacement project on April 7, 
2016 and Silva Construction, Inc. was the low bidder.  Staff checked references and the 
bonding company for Silva Construction, Inc. and all feedback was positive.  Silva 
Construction, Inc. was the contractor for the 2015 Concrete Replacement.   
 
Locations of concrete replacement correlate with the asphalt overlay.  Areas of 
replacement include the Charter subdivision, Park Meadows Center Drive, and failing 
concrete crosswalks within RidgeGate West Village.    
 
Attachments:  
- Attachment A: Bid Opening Summary 
- Attachment B: Bid Tabulation 
- Attachment C: Notice of Award 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 227 of 240



- Attachment D: Agreement 
- Attachment E: Notice to Proceed 

 

 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 228 of 240



CITY OF LONE TREE

BID OPENING SUMMARY

Project:

Job #

Bid Location:

Bid Date:

Bid Time:

Total Bid:
5% Bid Bond Signed & 

Submitted?

Addenda 

Acknowledged (2)?

$488,700.00 Yes Yes

$542,640.00 Yes Yes

$599,030.00 Yes Yes

$878,159.57 N/A N/A

Bids opened by: Taylor C. Goertz, P.E., City of Lone Tree Public Works

Witnessed by: Stephen Touron, City of Lone Tree Public Works

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

CONTRACTOR 

2016 Concrete Replacement

061-428

Lone Tree Public Works Department

Thursday, April 07, 2016

10:00 AM

Silva Construction, Inc.

Thoutt Brothers Concrete Contractors

Nora Concrete Construction Corp.

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 229 of 240

albersl
Text Box
Attachment A



BID TABULATION

Client: City of Lone Tree Job No: 061-428

Project: 2016 Concrete Replacement

Date: 4/7/2016

Bid Schedule A - 2016 Street Overlay

Charter Subdivision

 No. Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost

1 Handicap Ramp Removal/Replacement 24 EA. $2,500.00 $60,000.00 $1,700.00 $40,800.00 $2,850.00 $68,400.00 $3,975.00 $95,400.00
2 Remove/Replace Curb/Gutter/Sidewalk 20,000 S.F. $7.50 $150,000.00 $7.50 $150,000.00 $7.70 $154,000.00 $7.30 $146,000.00
3 Remove/Replace Concrete Crosspan 1,800 S.F. $11.50 $20,700.00 $12.00 $21,600.00 $12.00 $21,600.00 $11.72 $21,096.00
4 Traffic Control 1 L.S. $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $10,880.00 $10,880.00 $9,075.00 $9,075.00
5 Mobilization 1 L.S. $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $14,850.00 $14,850.00 $2,925.00 $2,925.00
6 Erosion Control 1 L.S. $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,650.00 $3,650.00 $825.00 $825.00
7 Force Acccount 1 L.S. $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

TOTAL Charter Sub-Division $272,200.00 $252,400.00 $298,380.00 $300,321.00

Bid Schedule F - 2016 Street Overlay

Miscellaneous Concrete

 No. Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost Unit Cost  Total Cost

1 Remove/Replace Curb and Gutter 1,100 L.F. $32.00 $35,200.00 $30.00 $33,000.00 $31.00 $34,100.00 $28.50 $31,350.00
2 Remove/Replace Curb/Gutter/Sidewalk 6,500 S.F. $7.50 $48,750.00 $7.50 $48,750.00 $7.70 $50,050.00 $7.30 $47,450.00
3 Remove/Replace Concrete Sidewalk (Width Varies) 2,500 S.F. $7.50 $18,750.00 $7.50 $18,750.00 $7.70 $19,250.00 $6.94 $17,350.00
4 Remove/Replace Concrete Crosspan 2,500 S.F. $11.50 $28,750.00 $12.00 $30,000.00 $12.00 $30,000.00 $11.72 $29,300.00
5 Remove/Replace Concrete Crosswalk 8,800 S.F. $11.50 $101,200.00 $7.50 $66,000.00 $12.00 $105,600.00 $9.38 $82,544.00
6 Erosion Control 1 L.S. $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $800.00 $800.00 $4,300.00 $4,300.00 $825.00 $825.00
7 Traffic Control 1 L.S. $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $17,550.00 $17,550.00 $5,575.00 $5,575.00
8 Mobilization 1 L.S. $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $14,800.00 $14,800.00 $2,925.00 $2,925.00
9 Force Account 1 L.S. $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

TOTAL #6   Miscellaneous Concrete Replacement $283,650.00 $236,300.00 $300,650.00 $242,319.00

Grand Total = $555,850.00 $488,700.00 $599,030.00 $542,640.00
Engineer's Opinion Silva Construction, Inc. Nora Concrete Construction Corp. Thoutt Brothers

Thoutt  Bros. Concrete Contractors

TTG Corporation

Consulting Engineers

Engineer's Opinion Silva Construction, Inc. Nora Concrete Construction Corp

Engineer's Opinion Silva Construction, Inc. Nora Concrete Construction Corp Thoutt  Bros. Concrete Contractors

Page 1 of 1
04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 230 of 240

albersl
Text Box
Attachment B



 
2016 Concrete Replacement 00 51 00 - 1 Project No. 061-428 
 

SECTION 00 51 00 

  

NOTICE OF AWARD 
 
 

Dated April 19, 2016 
 
 
TO:      SILVA CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
 
Project:     2016 Concrete Replacement 
 
ENGINEER's Project No.  PROJECT No. 061-428 
 
OWNER:    CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO 
 
 
You are hereby notified that your Bid dated __________________________, 20___ for the above 
Contract has been considered.  You are the apparent successful Bidder and have been awarded a 
contract for  
 

2016 Concrete Replacement 
 
The Estimated Contract Price based on total of Unit Price Work is: 
 
Four Hundred Eighty Eight Thousand and Seven Hundred Dollars      
($488,700) 
 
Four (4) copies of each of the proposed Contract Documents (with reduced-sized Drawings) 
accompany this Notice of Award.  
 
You must comply with the following conditions precedent within ten (10) days of the date of this Notice 
of Award that is by April 29, 2016. 
 

1. You must deliver to the CITY all four (4) fully executed counterparts of the Agreement 
including all the Contract Documents.  This includes the sets of Drawings.  Each of the 
Contract Documents must bear your signature on the cover of the page. 

 
2. You must deliver with the executed Agreement the Contract Security (Bonds) as specified in 

the Instructions to Bidders, General Conditions (paragraph 6.01) and Supplementary 
Conditions. 

 
Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle CITY to consider your bid 
abandoned, to annul this Notice of Award and to declare your Bid Security forfeited. 
 
Within ten (10) days after you comply with those conditions, CITY will return to you two (2) fully signed 
counterparts of the Agreement with the Contract Documents attached. 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 
By: ______________________________________ 
 
Title: City Manager 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 231 of 240

albersl
Text Box
Attachment C



2016 Concrete Replacement 00 52 43 - 1 Project No. 061-428 

 

SECTION 00 52 43 
 

AGREEMENT – UNIT PRICE 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is dated as of the     day of     in the year 20___ by 
and between the 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO 
(hereinafter called CITY) and 

 
 

SILVA CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
 (hereinafter called Contractor) 

 
CITY and Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as 
follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1. WORK 
 
Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work is 
generally described as follows: 
 

2016 CONCRETE REPLACEMENT 
 

ARTICLE 2. ENGINEER 
 
The project has been designed by TTG Engineers, Inc., who is hereinafter called “Engineer” and 
who will assume all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned to 
“Engineer” in the contract documents in connection with completion of the Work in accordance with 
the Contract Documents. 
 
 
ARTICLE 3. CONTRACT TIME 
 
3.1 The Work to be provided under all awarded schedules shall meet Final Completion no later 

than August 19, 2016 and that Substantial and Final Completion dates for all awarded Work 
shall be negotiated based on the Bid Schedule’s Phasing/Schedule Plan for that awarded 
work.  At a minimum, Work shall be substantially completed within sixty (60) days and 
seventy-five (75) days for final completion. 

 
3.2 Liquidated Damages: CITY and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence of this 

Agreement and that CITY will suffer financial loss if the Work is not substantially complete 
within the time specified in Paragraph 3.1 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in 
accordance with Article 11 of the General Conditions. They also recognize the delays, 
expense and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss 
suffered by CITY if the Work is not substantially completed on time. Accordingly, instead of 
requiring any such proof, CITY and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay 
(but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay CITY Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00)for each day 
that expires after the time specified in Paragraph 3.1 above for substantial completion until 
the Work is substantially complete. After Substantial Completion if Contractor shall neglect, 
refuse or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Time or any proper 
extension thereof granted by CITY, Contractor shall pay CITY Five Hundred dollars ($500) 
for each day that expires after the time specified in Paragraph 3.1 above for completion and 
readiness for final payment. 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 232 of 240

albersl
Text Box
Attachment D



2016 Concrete Replacement 00 52 43 - 2 Project No. 061-428 

 

 
ARTICLE 4. CONTRACT PRICE 
 
CITY shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in current funds in accordance with the 
Contract Documents: 
 
For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the established unit price for each separately 
identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of that item, in accordance with the 
attached Bid Schedule.  
 
As provided in paragraph 13.03 of the General Conditions, estimated quantities are not guaranteed 
by CITY or Engineer, and determinations of actual quantities and classification are to be made by 
Engineer as provided in paragraph 10.06 of the General Conditions and any applicable 
Supplementary Conditions attached hereto. Unit prices have been computed as provided in 
paragraph 13.03.B of the General Conditions. 
 
ESTIMATE TOTAL OF ALL UNIT PRICE WORK 
 
Four Hundred Eighty Eight Thousand and Seven Hundred Dollars 
($488,700)  
 
ARTICLE 5. PAYMENT PROCEDURES 
 
Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 14 of the General 
Conditions. Applications for payment will be processed by CITY as provided in the General 
Conditions and Supplementary Conditions. 
 
5.1 Progress Payments. CITY shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price 

on the basis of a Contractor’s Applications for Payment as recommended by Engineer. All 
progress payments will be on the basis of the progress of the Work measured by the 
schedule of values established in paragraph 2.05 of the General Conditions (and in case of 
Unit Price Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event the is no schedule 
of values, as provided in the General Conditions. 

 
5.1.1 Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the 

percentage indicated below, but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously 
made and less such amounts as Engineer shall determine, or CITY may withhold, in 
accordance with Paragraphs 15.01.C.5 and 15.01.C.6 of the General Conditions. 

 
 a. 95% of Work completed (with the balance being retainage). If Work has been at least 

50% completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character and progress of the 
Work have been satisfactory to CITY and Engineer, CITY, on recommendation of 
Engineer, may determine that as long as the character and progress of the Work 
remain satisfactory to them, there will be no additional retainage except as provided 
by the General Conditions, or State law. 

 
 b. 95% (with the balance being retainage) of materials and equipment not incorporated 

in the Work (but delivered, suitably stored and accompanied by documentation 
satisfactory to CITY as provided in Paragraph 15.01.B.1 of the General Conditions). 

 
5.2 Final Payment. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with 

Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions, CITY shall pay the remainder of the Contract 
Price as recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06, as amended by 
the supplementary conditions. 

 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 233 of 240



2016 Concrete Replacement 00 52 43 - 3 Project No. 061-428 

 

ARTICLE 6. INTEREST 
 
All moneys not paid when due hereunder as provided in Article 15 of the General Conditions shall 
bear interest at the maximum rate of 8% per year.  
 
ARTICLE 7. CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS 
 
In order to induce CITY to enter into this Agreement, Contractor makes the following 
representations: 
 
7.1 Contractor has familiarized himself with the nature and extent of the Contract 

Documents, Work, site, locality, and with all local conditions and Laws and 
Regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance, or furnishing 
of the Work. 

 
7.2 Contractor has studied carefully all reports of explorations and test of subsurface 

conditions and drawings of physical conditions which are identified in the 
Supplementary Conditions as provided in Paragraph 5.03 of the General Conditions, 
and accepts the determination set forth in Paragraph SC-5.03 of the Supplementary 
Conditions of the extent of the technical data contained in such reports and drawings 
upon which Contractor is entitled to reply. 

 
7.3 Contractor has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for 

obtaining and carefully studying) all such examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, and studies (in addition to or to supplement those referred to in 
Paragraph 7.2 above) which pertain to the subsurface or physical conditions at or 
contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, performance or 
furnishing of the Work as Contractor considers necessary for the performance or 
furnishing of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of Paragraph 5.03 of the General Conditions; and no 
additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar 
information or data are or will be required by Contractor for such purposes. 

 
7.4 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on 

the Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or 
contiguous to the site and assumes responsibility for accurately locating said 
Underground Facilities. No additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in respect of said Underground 
Facilities are or will be required by Contractor in order to perform and furnish the 
Work at the Contract Price within the Contract Time and in accordance with the other 
terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the provisions 
of Paragraph 5.04 of the General Conditions. 

 
7.5 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, 

investigations, tests, reports and data with the terms and conditions of the Contract 
Documents. 

 
7.6 Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies 

that he has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof 
by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 

 
ARTICLE 8. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire agreement between CITY and Contractor 
concerning the Work, consist of the following: 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 234 of 240



2016 Concrete Replacement 00 52 43 - 4 Project No. 061-428 

 

 
8.1 This Agreement (Pages 00 52 43 – 1 to 00 52 43 - 7, inclusive). 
 
8.2 Exhibit to this Agreement (pages 0 to 0, inclusive). 
 
8.3 Performance, Payment and other Bonds (identified in 00 61 13.13 and 00 61 13.16). 
 
8.4 Notice of Award. 
 
8.5 Notice to Proceed. 
 
8.6 General Conditions (Pages 1 to 65, inclusive) being the Standard General Conditions 

of the Construction Contract (2013 Edition). 

 
8.7 Supplementary Conditions (Pages 1-13, inclusive). 
 
8.8. Drawings and Specifications bearing the title:  
 

  2016 Street Overlay  
 
8.9 Addendum number N/A. 
 
8.10 Contractor’s Bid, dated April, 7, 2016. 
 
8.11  Documentation submitted by Contractor prior to Notice of Award (Pages 1 to 1,   
  inclusive). 
 
8.12 The following which may be delivered or issued after the Effective Date of the 

Agreement and are attached hereto: All written amendments and other documents 
amending, modifying, or supplementing of the Contract Documents pursuant to 
Paragraph 11.01 of the General Conditions. 

 
The documents listed in Article 8 et. seq. above are attached to this Agreement 
(except as expressly noted otherwise above). 

 
There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 8. The 
Contract Documents may only be amended, modified or supplemented as provided 
in Paragraph 11.01 of the General Conditions. 

 
In case of discrepancy, the order of precedence of the following Contract Documents 
is as follows (i.e., the document with the lower numerical value shall govern over the 
documents with a higher value): 

 
1. Change Orders 
2. This Agreement 
3. Addenda 
4. Drawings 
5. Supplementary Conditions 
6. Specifications 
7. General Conditions 
 

 
 
ARTICLE 9. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND IMMIGRATION STATUS OBLIGATIONS. 

 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 235 of 240



2016 Concrete Replacement 00 52 43 - 5 Project No. 061-428 

 

9.1 CONTRACTOR shall give all notices and comply with all Laws and Regulations 
applicable to furnishing and performance of the Work, including, without limitations, 
any preference for Colorado Labor as may be required pursuant to Article 17, of Title 
8 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (the “Keep Jobs in Colorado Act”).  Except where 
otherwise expressly required by applicable Laws and Regulations, neither CITY nor 
DESIGN PROFESSIONAL shall be responsible for monitoring CONTRACTOR's 
compliance with any Laws or Regulations. 

 
9.2 Contractor certifies, through signature of its authorized representative executing this 

Agreement, that it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien who will 
perform work under the public contract for services and that the Contractor will 
participate in the United States Government’s E-Verify Program or the State of 
Colorado Department of Labor and Employment Program (“Department Program”) in 
order to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for 
employment to perform work under the public contract for services. 

 
9.3  Contractor shall not: 
 

1)  Knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work  under this 
Agreement; or 

 
2)  Enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to the contractor that 
the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to 
perform work under the public contract for services. 

 
9.4 Contractor shall affirm as required by C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102 (c) (II) the employment 

eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work under 
the public contract for services through participation in either the E-Verify Program or 
the Department Program. 

 
9.5 Contractor is prohibited from using the E-Verify Program or Department Program 

procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while the public 
contract for services is being performed. 

 
9.6 If Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under 

the public contract for services knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, 
Contractor shall be required to: 

 
1)  Notify the subcontractor and the City within three days that the Contractor has 
actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal 
alien; and 

 
2)  Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three days of receiving 
the notice required pursuant to sub-subparagraph 9.2 2) required the subcontractor 
does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that the 
Contractor shall not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such three 
days the subcontractor provides information to establish that the subcontractor has 
not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. 

 
9.7 Contractor shall comply with all rules and regulations and any reasonable request by 

the State Department of Labor and Employment made in the course of the 
Department’s performance of its lawful duties pursuant to C.R.S. 8-17.5-101 et seq., 
as amended from time to time. 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 236 of 240



2016 Concrete Replacement 00 52 43 - 6 Project No. 061-428 

 

 
9.8 If Contractor violates any of the provisions set forth in this section, the City may 

terminate the Agreement and Contract shall be liable for all actual and consequential 
damages incurred by the City. 

 
ARTICLE 10. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
10.1 Terms used in this Agreement which are defined in Article 1 of the General 

Conditions shall have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions. 
 
10.2 Reference to the General Conditions shall include modifications thereof by the 

Supplementary Conditions. 

 
10.3 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract 

Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the 
party sought to be bound; and specifically but without limitation, monies that may 
become due and monies that are due may not be assigned without such consent 
(except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and 
unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment no 
assignment will release or discharge that assignor from any duty or responsibility 
under the Contract Documents. 

 
10.4 Except for the intended beneficiaries of the Labor and Material Payment Bond 

executed in conjunction with this Agreement, nothing in this Agreement shall be 
construed to give any rights or benefits by virtue of this Agreement to anyone other 
than CITY and Contractor, and all duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to 
this Agreement will be for sale and exclusive benefit of CITY and Contractor and not 
for the benefit of any other party. 

 
 
10.5 CITY and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns and legal 

representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in 
the Contract Documents. 

 
10.6 Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable 

under any law or regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions 
shall continue to be valid and binding upon CITY and Contractor, who agree that the 
Contract Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part 
thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes a close as possible to 
expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 

 
10.7 The CITY and Contractor acknowledge and agree that the payments hereunder shall 

constitute current expenditures of the CITY payable in the fiscal years for which 
funds are appropriated for the payment thereof. The CITY’s obligations under this 
Agreement shall be from year to year only and shall not constitute a multiple-fiscal 
year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation of the CITY, or an obligation of 
the CITY payable in any fiscal year beyond the fiscal year for which funds are 
appropriated for the payment thereof, or payable from any funds of the CITY other 
than funds appropriated for the payment of current expenditures. No provision of this 
Agreement shall be construed to pledge or to create a lien on any class or source of 
CITY monies, assets or properties. 

 
10.8 To the extent this contract may be construed to be a “sole source contract” within the 

meaning of sections 15 through 17 of Article XXVIII of the Colorado Constitution, and 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 237 of 240



2016 Concrete Replacement 00 52 43 - 7 Project No. 061-428 

 

to the extent these constitutional provisions have not been enjoined or invalidated by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, the requirements and limitations of these 
constitutional provisions are hereby incorporated in this contract, including the 
following: 

 
 Because of a presumption of impropriety between contributions to any campaign and 

sole source government contracts, contract holders shall contractually agree, for the 
duration of the contract and for two years thereafter, to cease making, causing to be 
made, or inducing by any means, a contribution, directly or indirectly, on behalf of the 
contract holder or on behalf of his or her immediate family member and for the 
benefit of any political party or for the benefit of any candidate for any elected office 
of the state or any of its political subdivisions.  

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 238 of 240



2016 Concrete Replacement 00 52 43 - 8 Project No. 061-428 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this Agreement in triplicate. One 
counterpart each has been delivered to CITY, Contractor, and Engineer. All portions of the Contract 
Documents have been signed or identified by CITY and Contractor or by Engineer on their behalf. 
 
This Agreement will be effective on       , 20____. 
 
CITY:        CONTRACTOR: 
CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO    SILVA CONSTRUCTION, INC.     
 
 
By:        By:       
       
Title:       Title:       
 
 
 
Attest:       Attest:  
 
By:       By:      
 
Title:       Title:      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 [SEAL]      [SEAL] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Address For Giving Notices:  
 
CITY:      CONTRACTOR: 
 
City of Lone Tree                                             
9220 Kimmer Dr, Suite 100                            
Lone Tree, CO 80124                             
Att’n: Lisa A. Albers, P.E.      Att’n:         
 
 
 
 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 239 of 240



 

2016 Concrete Replacement 00 55 00 - 1 Project No.061-428 

 

SECTION 00 55 00 
 

NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 

Dated April 19, 2016 
 
 

TO:     SILVA CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
 

PROJECT:     2016 Concrete Replacement 
 

Engineers Project No.:   PROJECT No. 061-428 
 
AGREEMENT DATE:  _______________________ 
 

OWNER:    CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO 
 
You are notified that the Contract Time under the above contract will commence to run on 
____________________, 20___.  By that date, you are to start performing the Work and your other 
obligations under the Contract Documents.  In accordance with Article 3 of the Agreement the dates of 
Substantial Completion and Final Completion are _________________, 20___ and ________________, 
20___, respectively. 
 
Before you may start any Work at the site, paragraph 2.01.B of the Supplementary Conditions provides 
that the CONTRACTOR shall deliver to CITY (with copies to ENGINEER) certificates of insurance which 
the CONTRACTOR is required to purchase and maintain in accordance with Paragraphs 6.02, 6.03, and 
6.05 of the General Conditions, and any modification as contained within the Supplementary Conditions of 
the Contract Documents. 
 
Work at the site must be started by _______________, 20___ as indicated in the Contract Documents. 
 
THE CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________ 
 
 
 
Copy to CITY  
(Use Certified Mail, 
Return Receipt Requested) 

04/19/16 City Council Packet Page 240 of 240

albersl
Text Box
Attachment E


	2016-04-19 Agenda
	2016-04-19 Agenda
	Arbor Day 2016
	2016-04-05 Minutes
	MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING
	CITY OF LONE TREE
	HELD
	April 5, 2016
	2. The Final Plat application shall include a detailed landscape plan, including detailed plans for the parks, retaining walls, entryways, and pump house.
	3. The applicant shall provide wildfire mitigation measures as called for in the proposed Sub-Area Plan chapter on Planning Area 11 in the CC&Rs to be recorded with the Final Plat.
	4. The applicant shall post a large map in the sales office and provide a map to purchasers and prospective purchasers of lots in Tract GG that shows the extension of Cabela Drive to the bluffs, with a note that states that there are a maximum of 346 ...
	5. The developer shall provide information to residents about living with wildlife when they buy their homes, available through the Colorado Parks and Wildlife offices.
	6. Construction inspection reports, as-built records and a final written and sealed certification shall be provided (by a licensed professional structural engineer and/or professional Geotechnical Engineer) demonstrating that the retaining walls as co...
	7. Final approval by the Public Works Department.
	8. Proposed private streets (Tracts C and D) shall be designed to meet the City’s public street standards per Public Works Department requirements, provided the resulting impact of retaining walls is not substantially greater than the applicant’s curr...
	9. A note shall be added to the final plat restricting Lot 10 to a ranch model only.
	From:  Kelly First, Director of Community Development
	Date:  April 6, 2016
	11. The Final Plat application shall include a detailed landscape plan, including detailed plans for the parks, retaining walls, entryways, and pump house.
	12. The applicant shall provide wildfire mitigation measures as called for in the proposed Sub-Area Plan chapter on Planning Area 11 in the CC&Rs to be recorded with the Final Plat.
	13. The applicant shall post a large map in the sales office and provide a map to purchasers and prospective purchasers of lots in Tract GG that shows the extension of Cabela Drive to the bluffs, with a note that states that there are a maximum of 346...
	14. The developer shall provide information to residents about living with wildlife when they buy their homes, available through the Colorado Parks and Wildlife offices.
	15. Construction inspection reports, as-built records and a final written and sealed certification shall be provided (by a licensed professional structural engineer and/or professional Geotechnical Engineer) demonstrating that the retaining walls as c...
	16. Final approval by the Public Works Department.
	17. Proposed private streets (Tracts C and D) shall be designed to meet the City’s public street standards per Public Works Department requirements, provided the resulting impact of retaining walls is not substantially greater than the applicant’s cur...

	1of2 PMBID budget amendment - 4-19-16
	2of2 PMBID Budget Amendments 2015 and 2016
	Resolution 16-12 Staff Report Cancelling Election - Declaring Candidates Elected
	Resolution 16-12 Cancelling Election - Declaring Candidates Elected
	Res 16-13 Arts Commission
	Ped Bridge IGAs 4-19-16
	20f7 Signed PMMD IGA
	30f7 Signed S. Suburban Agreement
	4of7 Signed RidgeGate Investments Agreement
	5of7 Signed OPMD -3-21-16 Lone Tree IGA
	6of7 IGA-DC-LoneTree-Ped-Bridge-ARTrevised-mar-25-2016
	Heritage Hills - Updated IGA 4-13-16
	1 of 4 report
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	DATE:  April 13, 2016
	FOR:  April 19, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting
	The site has no distinctive topographical or vegetative features. As part of the Southeast Extension project, RTD prepared an Environmental Assessment, which resulted in a Finding of No Significant Impact.
	E. DESCRIPTION:
	G. PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW:
	H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the RidgeGate PDD, 4PthP Amendment.
	Staff recommends approval of the SIP, subject to the following conditions:
	1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of Lone Tree Public Works approval.
	2. Prior to final SIP approval, the related replat (SB16-23R) shall be approved by City staff and recorded.
	3. Prior to final SIP approval, the landscape plan shall be further detailed per City Zoning requirements to specify proposed plant types, quantities and sizes.
	I. Attachments:
	1. Development Application
	2. Letter of Authorization
	3. Narrative & Statement of Design Intent
	5. SIP
	6. Renderings
	END

	2 of 4 packet materials
	3 of 5 SIP
	SIP Sheets - Skyridge
	SERE-SIP-SS-000
	SERE-SIP-SS-001
	SERE-SIP-SS-002
	SERE-SIP-SS-003
	SERE-SIP-SS-004
	SERE-SIP-SS-005
	SERE-SIP-SS-006
	SERE-SIP-SS-007
	SERE-SIP-SS-008
	SERE-SIP-SS-009
	SERE-SIP-SS-010
	SERE-SIP-SS-011
	SERE-SIP-SS-012


	4 of 5 renders
	5 of 5 render
	1 of 4 staff report
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	DATE:  April 13, 2016
	FOR:  April 19, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting
	The site has no distinctive topographical or vegetative features. The site and surrounding area are currently undeveloped. As part of the Southeast Extension project, RTD prepared an Environmental Assessment, which resulted in a Finding of No Signific...
	E. DESCRIPTION:
	G. PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW
	The following excerpt is taken directly from the DRAFT minutes of the April 12, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting:
	H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the RidgeGate PDD, 4PthP Amendment.
	Staff recommends approval of the SIP, subject to the following condition:
	1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of Lone Tree Public Works approval.
	I. Attachments:
	1. Letter of Authorization
	2. Development Application
	3. Narrative & Statement of Design Intent
	5. SIP
	6. Renderings
	END

	2 of 4 packet
	3 of 4 SIP
	SIP Sheets - Lone Tree
	SERE-SIP-CC-000
	SERE-SIP-CC-001
	SERE-SIP-CC-002
	SERE-SIP-CC-003
	SERE-SIP-CC-004
	SERE-SIP-CC-005
	SERE-SIP-CC-006
	SERE-SIP-CC-007
	SERE-SIP-CC-008


	4 of 4 renderings
	1 of 5 staff report
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	DATE:  April 13, 2016
	FOR:  April 19, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting
	The site has no distinctive topographical or vegetative features. As part of the Southeast Extension project, RTD prepared an Environmental Assessment, which resulted in a Finding of No Significant Impact.
	E. DESCRIPTION:
	G. PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW:
	H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the RidgeGate PDD, 4PthP Amendment.
	Staff recommends approval of the SIP, subject to the following conditions:
	1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of Lone Tree Public Works approval.
	2. Prior to final SIP approval, the related replat (SB16-23R) shall be approved by City staff and recorded.
	3. Prior to final SIP approval, the landscape plan shall be further detailed per City Zoning requirements to specify proposed plant types, quantities and sizes.
	I. Attachments:
	1. Development Application
	2. Letter of Authorization
	3. Narrative & Statement of Design Intent
	5. SIP
	6. Renderings
	END

	2 of 5 packet
	3 of 5 SIP
	SIP Sheets - Ridgegate
	SERE-SIP-RS-000
	SERE-SIP-RS-001
	SERE-SIP-RS-002
	SERE-SIP-RS-003
	SERE-SIP-RS-004
	SERE-SIP-RS-005
	SERE-SIP-RS-006
	SERE-SIP-RS-007
	SERE-SIP-RS-008
	SERE-SIP-RS-009


	4 of 5 renderings
	16_0404 Combined PB, Britina, and IHA SIP Drawings_IHA Britina and PB to Printer
	SERE Stations SIP Material Boards
	RidgeGate Parkway Station Material Board
	Stations Standard Details Material Board
	Roof


	2016-04-01 Ridgegate Station Site Plan Rendering-Revised
	RidgeGate Parkway Garage NE Elevations
	RidgeGate Parkway Garage SW Elevations


	5 of 5 render
	1 of 4 staff report
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	DATE:  April 13, 2016
	FOR:  April 19, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting
	The site has no distinctive topographical or vegetative features.
	E. DESCRIPTION:
	G. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the RidgeGate PDD, 4PthP Amendment.
	Staff recommends approval of the plat, subject to:
	1. Final approval of the Final Plat is subject to City of Lone Tree Public Works approval.
	H. Attachments:
	1. Development Application
	2. Narrative
	4. Original Plat (RidgeGate East Filing 1)
	5. Proposed Plat (RidgeGate East Filing 1, 1PstP amendment
	END

	2 of 4 packet
	3 of 4 original plat
	4 of 4 proposed plat
	RG East Filing No. 1, 1st Amendement_1-Sheet 1
	RG East Filing No. 1, 1st Amendement_1-Sheet 2

	City of Lone Tree Staff Report
	PedBridge
	City of Lone Tree Staff Report
	PedBridge
	1of3 LTB - Schematic Design Pricing Process  Recommendation
	2of3LT Budget Worksheet 3-30-16
	3of3 LT Pedestrian Bridge Schedule - 04.13.16

	1of 4 Pre-Construction Services - 2016-04-13 PedBridge
	2of4 IGMP ESTIMATE PedBridge
	3of4 20140080 2015 0724 SD-CA B101 - FINAL revised PedBridge
	4of 4 Lincoln Ped Bridge CD and Construction Engagement Ltr PedBridge
	LTB - Schematic Design Pricing Process  Recommendation

	2016 Asphalt Overlay Contract Award.City Council Packet.4.19.16
	2016 Concrete Contract Award.City Council Packet.4.19.16
	PedBridgeIGA.pdf
	1of7 Ped Bridge IGAs 4-19-16
	2of7 IGA-DC-LoneTree-Ped-Bridge-ARTrevised-mar-25-2016
	2b0f7 Signed PMMD IGA
	30f7 Signed S. Suburban Agreement
	4of7 Signed RidgeGate Investments Agreement
	5of7 Signed OPMD -3-21-16 Lone Tree IGA
	7of7 Heritage Hills - Updated IGA 4-13-16

	1 of 5 Sky RIdge Station CC staff report.pdf
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	DATE:  April 13, 2016
	FOR:  April 19, 2016 City Council Meeting
	The site has no distinctive topographical or vegetative features. As part of the Southeast Extension project, RTD prepared an Environmental Assessment, which resulted in a Finding of No Significant Impact.
	E. DESCRIPTION:
	H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, the RidgeGate PDD, 4PthP Amendment, and the Sky Ridge Station TOD Sub-Area Plan.
	Staff recommends approval of the SIP, subject to the following conditions:
	1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of Lone Tree Public Works approval.
	2. Prior to final SIP approval, the landscape plan shall be further detailed per City Zoning requirements to specify proposed plant species, quantities, and sizes.
	I. Attachments:
	1. Letter of Authorization
	2. Development Application
	3. Narrative & Statement of Design Intent
	6. SIP
	7. Renderings
	END

	PedBridge.pdf
	1of City of Lone Tree Staff Report
	2of Lincoln Ped Bridge CD and Construction Engagement Ltr
	3of LTB - Schematic Design Pricing Process  Recommendation
	1of 4 Pre-Construction Services - 2016-04-13 PedBridge
	2of4 IGMP ESTIMATE PedBridge
	3of4 20140080 2015 0724 SD-CA B101 - FINAL revised PedBridge
	4of 4 Lincoln Ped Bridge CD and Construction Engagement Ltr PedBridge




